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CITY OF CONCORD ORGANIZATIONAL MISSION STATEMENT

(Adopted January 31, 1996)

Our mission is to join with our community to make Concord a
city of the highest quality. We do this by providing responsive, cost effective
and innovative local government services.

OUR VISION FOR THE FUTURE

We will be a customer based, performance driven, results oriented organization, focused on finding
the answer, solving the problem, and achieving positive outcomes.

We will partner with the Concord community to maximize resources, deliver high quality services,
and be recognized as setting the standard for excellence.

We will be trustworthy guardians of the public’s resources.
We will make Concord a premier business location.

We will collaborate to provide “seamless” services that benefit both our external and internal
customers, streamlining our work processes and removing barriers wherever they arise.

We will accept the challenge of change and be committed to continually enhancing the safety,
environment, quality of life, and economic vitality of our community.

We will constantly look for new and better ways to deliver services. We will seek to be innovative,
take reasonable risks, learn from our mistakes and always strive for excellence.

We will welcome diversity in our community and our work place.

We will conduct our work in an atmosphere of trust, respect and courtesy with open doors and open
communication for our customers and each other.

We will provide ethical, dynamic and effective leadership, establish clear direction and priorities,
and model the mission and values in support of our common Vision.

We will be accountable for our performance and our organization’s success, and be recognized for
our achievements.
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ORGANIZATIONAL VALUES

Integrity and Trust
We say what we mean and mean what we say. We honor our word and keep our commitments. We
are worthy of the public’s and each other’s trust.

Commitment to Service
We put our customers first. We respond to our internal customers and treat them with the same
courtesy and respect as our external customers. We facilitate, enable, and problem-solve.

Partnerships

We place a high value on building partnerships with members of our community to assure we
understand their needs and continue to deliver the services they desire in the most effective
manner possible.

Innovation and Continuous Improvement

We strive for excellence in the quality and productivity of our work. We create a work environment
in which we look for new solutions and experiment with innovative ways to do things - even if they
don’t always work the first time. We recognize the need to be dynamic in meeting the community’s
changing needs. Each and every employee is given the opportunity to develop and grow.

Performance Accountability

We set measurable performance goals which support the priorities of the City and our individual
work groups. We are given the necessary authority, training and resources to enable us to achieve
these goals. Performance reviews are conducted in a timely and effective manner. Employee
advancement and other incentives are based on performance. We are proud of the professionalism,
competency and dedication that exist throughout the organization.

Long Range Planning

We conduct long range strategic and financial planning to maximize service delivery and build the
economic stability of the City. We practice sound fiscal management to protect the public’s
resources.

Team Work

We respect each other as individuals, and we take the time and effort to show it. Although certain
positions have more decision-making authority, we treat all members of the organization with the
same consideration for their ideas and concerns. We really listen to, and give each other honest
feedback. We recognize partnerships among work groups and employees as essential to effectively
maximizing resources and delivering high quality services.

Individual Worth and Diversity

We recognize and appreciate the uniqueness of each individual. We value the contribution made
and the synergy created by different experiences and perspectives. We are committed to treating
each and every person within the organization and the larger community with respect and dignity.
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CORPORATE GOALS
Adopted June 23, 1998

Continue to make Concord a desirable place to live, work, and raise a family.

Be responsive to the needs of Concord citizens, maintain a high level of cus-
tomer satisfaction, and provide quality public information and outreach.

Promote and improve Concord as a premier location for existing, expanding, and
new businesses.

Ensure a balanced budget for a ten-year planning period with adequate replace-
ment funds for buildings and equipment.

Preserve and enhance the livability of Concord's residential neighborhoods with

opportunities for a broad range of housing options.

Offer an array of recreation, leisure, and cultural events and programs to meet
the needs of citizens of all ages, with an emphasis on the well-being of youth.

Maintain a safe and efficient traffic circulation system.

Have Concord be among the safest cities of comparable size in California and
have citizens feel safe in their homes, places of work, and throughout the City.

Maintain City parks, recreation facilities, streets, buildings, and other infrastruc-
ture to meet high standards of condition and appearance.

Guide Concord's development according to the General Plan and manage physi-
cal resources based on sound environmental principles.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Concord

In accordance with the Municipal Code, Chapter 2, Article 1V, Section 2-223 of the
City of Concord, we are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) of the City of Concord for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The
City's independent auditor, Maze & Associates, Certified Public Accountants, has
issued an unqualified ("clean") opinion on the City of Concord's financial statements.
The independent auditor's report is located on page 1 of the financial section of this
report.
City Landscape

The CAFR was prepared by the City's Finance Department in conformance with the
principles and standards for financial reporting set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standard Board (GASB). Management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, based upon a
comprehensive framework of internal control that has established for this purpose.
Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the
objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements. We believe the data is presented
in a manner designed to set forth fairly the financial position and results of operations
of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various funds; and that
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the
City's financial affairs have been included.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent
auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the
basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and
should be read in conjunction with it. Further discussion of the accounting policies
used by the City is found in the notes to the financial statements.

The City of Concord is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with
the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and
Nonprofit Organizations. Information related to this single audit, including a schedule
of federal expenditures of federal awards, the independent auditor's report on internal
control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations are included in a
separately issued single audit report.

Reporting Entity

The agencies included in the reporting entity are: the City of Concord, the
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord; the Concord Sanitary Sewer Services,
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Inc.; the City of Concord Retirement System and the City of Concord Joint Powers
Financing Authority.

The financial statements for the California Public Entity Insurance Authority, the
Pavilion Associates, the Concord Senior Citizens Club, the Friends of Camp Concord,
Concord Plaza Tower, Inc., and the Concord Pleasant Hill Aquatic Foundation are not
included as they are administered by boards separate from and independent of the
City.

Internal Controls

In developing and enhancing the City's accounting system, significant consideration is
given to the adequacy of the City's system of internal accounting controls. Internal
controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the safeguarding of
assets against the loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and the reliability of
financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for
assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and that the evaluation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Concord's History

The first inhabitants of the valley were a small tribe of the Chupcan Indians. In the
1700's early Spanish explorers became the first outsiders to cross the area, upon
receipt of the "Monte Del Diablo" land grant in 1834. The 17,921 acre land grant
covered the majority of the valley and was used for cattle operations. Don Salvio's
grand adobe, which is still located in downtown Concord, became the business, social
and cultural center of the region. In 1868, Don Salvio Pacheco, his son, Don
Fernando Pacheco, and his son-in-law, Don Francisco Galindo, created a new town at
the center of their Rancho. They called their new town Todos Santos (All Saints) and
in 1869 offered lots free of charge to merchants and residents. Within months after
Todos Santos had been recorded as the official town name, "Concord" was heralded
by the Contra Costa Gazette as the actual name. By 1879 a population of 300 was
reported. It would double by February 1905, when incorporation of the "Town of
Concord" was approved by a two-vote margin.

It would take 35 years for the population to double again. Concord began World War
Il with a high school, a modern hospital, five churches, two railroads, a fine library, a
nationally recognized central plaza, two cinemas, a full-service downtown commercial
area, tree lined streets, comfortable homes and a population of 1,400. The war years
brought expansion to the area because of the proximity of naval operations. The
postwar years began a population boom. By 1948, the population had grown to
6,500.

Located 29 miles east of San Francisco, Concord now is the largest city in the Contra
Costa County with a population of 124,599. The City covers 31.13 square miles and
provides a full range of services including police protection, recreational activities,
community development, street improvements and maintenance services. Over the
last 20 years, Concord has become a major job center in Contra Costa County and it
is the County's strongest retail location. Concord offers the amenities that many
businesses require for success. Here, business-friendly government policies,
outstanding Class A office space values, numerous industrial parks and excellent
transportation combine with favorable home prices, an educated workforce and a
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dynamic retail environment to create ideal conditions for business to expand and
make Concord a premier business location.

The City's commitment to families and to the community fosters a high quality of life
with attractive residential neighborhoods, abundant recreation and entertainment for
all ages. Concord, the city where "Families Come First," is a community of friendly
neighborhoods with an excellent park system, convenient shopping, large preserves
of open space, and an exciting downtown. Concord's housing mix offers affordable
home and rental prices that are among the most favorable in the Bay area, allowing
residents to live where they work and play. In addition, the City offers its residents a
comprehensive housing program, including first-time home buying and single-family
home repair loans. An extensive transportation system, including easy freeway
access, two BART stations, bus services and a local private aviation airport, makes
Concord's location convenient to the Bay area.

Profile of the Government

Concord is a General Law city, formed under the State legislative status and
structured under provisions of the California constitution. Its governing body, the City
Council, is comprised of five elected members, who serve "at-large" rather than by
district, each for four-year terms. City voters also elect a City Treasurer who serves a
four-year term.

Municipal elections are held in November of the even-numbered years. Council terms
overlap, with three Council members elected one year and the other two elected two
years later. Each year, the Council selects one of its members to serve as Mayor and
another as Vice Mayor. The City Council also serves as the Redevelopment Agency
Board.

Concord is operated under the Council-Manager form of government. The Council
hires the City Manager, who is then responsible for all management functions of the
City, including the budget, delivery of services, hiring of personnel and implementation
of capital projects. The City Council also directly hires the City Attorney who serves
as the City's primary legal advisor.

Budgetary Control

The Concord Municipal Code requires the City Manager to present the Annual
Operating Budget to the City Council for approval. The City Council has adopted a
number of Policy & Procedures, including Budget and Fiscal Policies; Budget
Preparation; Budget Appropriation and Transfer Controls, which provide direction in
the development of the Annual Operating Budget. The City Manager has also
authorized several Administrative Directives which further clarify budget policies,
processes and related controls.

The annual budget kickoff meeting is conducted in November. City Departments
prepare their budgets in November and December for review by the Budget
Committee in January and February. The Budget Committee is comprised by the City
Manager, Assistant City Manager, Director of Finance and the Budget Officer. All
budget changes and recommendations are finalized in March. The proposed budget
document is prepared in April and provided to the City Council. A budget workshop is
conducted with the City Council in May and the City Council conducts two public
hearings on the budget in June. Budget adoption occurs at the final public hearing in
June.

Xi
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Ultimate budgetary control resides at the fund level; however, the City has adopted a
number of budgetary appropriation and transfer procedures to provide strong internal
controls while encouraging improved accountability and administrative
responsiveness. All budgetary transfers require Director of Finance review and
approval. All transfers of appropriations affecting Personnel Services (wages &
benefits) require Director of Human Resources and City Manager review and
approval. Additionally, all transfers between funds and between departments require
City Manager or City Council review and approval.

All project appropriation transfers require City Manager approval. Transfers in excess
of $20,000 require City Council approval. The City Council must approve all new
appropriations with the exception of money received for specific purposes (e.g.
Developer Contributions) where the appropriation and revenue received are of equal
value. Special revenue budget appropriations based on funds provided by grants,
donations or contributions require City Manager and City Council approval.

Long Range Financial Planning

In 1995 the City of Concord implemented Ten-Year Financial Planning to realize its
vision as “trustworthy guardians of the public’s resources” and its mission to be “a cost
effective government”. Most importantly, it has been effectively used to attain
financial stability for the City. Ten-Year Financial Planning requires that the City
Manager annually present balanced Ten-Year financial plans for all major funds
including the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Improvement Funds,
Proprietary Funds and also for the Redevelopment Agency. Twenty-Year financial
information is presented for both the Sewer Fund and the Redevelopment Agency.
Twenty-Five Year financial information is presented for Post Retirement Healthcare
Benefits. The Ten-Year Plan also requires adequate replacement funds for buildings,
vehicles, and equipment. The Ten-Year Plan projections include all projected sources
of revenue and all projected expenditures including salaries, benefits, materials,
services and capital improvement projects. Each year all plans are revisited, and
assumptions are evaluated and updated.

The Ten-Year Financial Planning Program has many benefits over typical single year
budgeting. It enables the City to foresee potential problems early, giving the
organization time to respond and take action before a problem develops. It enables
us to determine whether we can support today’s decisions tomorrow. For example, it
can tell us if we can support future capital projects as well as their related operating
and maintenance costs. Likewise, the long term financial impact and affordability of
labor proposals can be more easily analyzed. Ten-Year Planning also increases the
accountability to stakeholders by explicity communicating the anticipated financial
status of the City over a 10 year period.

Major Initiatives and Events

Building, Engineering and Neighborhood Services Department (BENS) designed 17
capital projects with a value of $9.4 million and completed construction of 16 capital
projects totaling $6.9 million.

BENS received the Excellence Award in Capital Budgeting for Fiscal Year 2008-09

Ten-Year CIP/TIP from the California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO).
This is the 10th consecutive year that the City has received this reward.

Xii
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Concord's Newhall Community Park maintenance building is the American Public
Works Association (APWA) 2009 Project of the Year in the less than five million
dollars project category. The APWA recognized economy and construction innovation
as the most significant aspects of the project. The City reduced the cost of the
building from $450,000 to $98,000 by selecting a pre-engineered building.

The San Francisco Bay Section of the California Water Environment Association
(CWEA) has selected City of Concord's joint $21 million sewer project with Central
Contra Costa Sanitary District as the first place winner in the Engineering
Achievement of the Year Award category. The CWEA awards program recognizes
outstanding professional achievement in the wastewater field.

Diablo Creek Golf Course, home of The First Tee Program, has achieved “ACE”
Chapter status awarded by The First Tee National Headquarters. This is the highest
rating set by program. The First Tee is a youth program established to teach life skills
and instill core values through the game of golf in a year-round program for boys and
girls ages 8 through 18.

Concord was recognized in 2009 for twenty-eighth year as a Tree City U.S.A. by the
National Arbor Day Foundation. The national award honors Concord's commitment to
its community forest. The Park Services maintains 379 acres of developed parkland
and 691 acres of open space.

Concord broke the Guinness Book of World Record on July 1, 2008 for largest guitar
ensemble when musicians from all over the Bay Area converged on Todos Santos
Plaza for the evening festivities. The event drew 2,052 registered guitarists plus
families and friends who joined Country Joe McDonald in playing their way into the
record book with a rousing rendition of the Woody Guthrie classic “This Land is Your
Land.” The previous record was set on June 23, 2007 in Leinfelden, Germany when
1,802 players performed “Smoke on the Water.”

Economic Condition and Outlook

The National and State economies reflect unprecedented challenges in a time of
major changes in the traditional ways in which money and credit are used. The
financial markets have been struggling to overcome problems related to collapse in
the global financial system and subprime mortgage market, high unemployment rate
and economic recession. Virtually every sector of the economy is experiencing
negative trends. As these downward trends ripple throughout the world economy, the
City of Concord is not exempt. The declining real estate values, property and sales
tax revenues have placed fiscal constraints on the City that are expected to last
several years. General Fund revenues decreased 5.7% or $4 million from the prior
year. The City's assessed valued decreased 8.5% from the prior year.

As part of a three-year plan to bring the City's budget back into balance, the City has
implemented a variety of cost-saving measures, including services reduction, early
retirements for eligible employees, mandatory furloughs, pay reductions, layoffs as
well as some small revenue enhancements to close the budget gap. Key City
services, including public safety and maintenance of public facilities and infrastructure,
will continue to receive high priority.

For the first time, $3.2 million in reserves were used to balance the Fiscal Year 2008-
09 budget. The City also reduced the combined total of contingencies and reserves
from an aggregate 30% to 15% of the General Fund operating expenditures. It is
anticipated that as the economy improves, the City will be able to replenish the
reserves and continue growth as we have in the past.

xiii
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Despite financial market volatility, the City of Concord has faired comparatively well,
though we anticipate that revenues will reflect little or no growth. Our diversified
economy, strong job base, diverse sales tax base, successful efforts to retain and
attract new businesses and the City's ten-year financial planning policy, have
contributed to the City's financial stability and leave the City comparatively well
positioned to face the challenges ahead. While development has slowed, Concord’s
reductions are more moderate than the decline experienced by cities which have been
in a more aggressive pattern of expansion.

The City's ability to sustain a vibrant local economy to insure future fiscal strength will
continue to depend on the City's ability to attract the business community and to
balance business and residential needs to the benefit of both. The City's past
success in attracting and retaining successful businesses has not been coincidental.
Concord devotes considerable energy to providing a variety of services and programs
to attract new quality businesses as well as help existing companies to achieve
sustained growth. The City's Economic Vitality Strategy promotes partnerships
among businesses, merchants, residents, community groups and City Departments to
anticipate needs and solve problems when they occur. The Strategy guides City
policy to enable Concord to provide efficient and timely local services to maximize a
new company’s success. Concord's award winning One-Stop Permit Center at City
Hall provides expedient permit processing, cuts red tape, cuts construction costs and
enables developers to open earlier and produce revenue sooner. Concord's Business
Retention Program offers a variety of services to assist the retention and expansion of
Concord businesses. The program enhances Concord's relationship with businesses
by strengthening communication, providing education workshops and assisting with
site selection and permit facilitation.

While the projected success in the development area eventually points to a positive
outlook, the City is facing the same uncertainties as other agencies in the State,
including the rise in cost for salaries and benefits including retirement, health
insurance, workers compensation, as well as the continuing State budget crisis. For
over 20 years, the State legislature has been taking local tax dollars that local
governments use to provide vital services like fire protection, law enforcement,
healthcare, parks and libraries. The State has taken more than $40 billion from cities,
counties and special districts in the last 15 years. The State justified these diversions
as "temporary" that would lapse when the economy improved, however, as the
economy has improved the State has continued to increase spending and the
revenues have not been returned to local agencies.

Although the passage of Proposition 1A in 2004 has restored some predictability to
our budget, it is not a guarantee that cities will not experience cash flow impacts due
to future loans to the State. The State has suspended Proposition 1A in Fiscal Year
2009-10, borrowing approximately $2.25 million from the City. The City has elected to
participate in a securitization program to receive its revenue in a timely manner. The
State continues to face structural budget shortfalls. Although the State made a
number of optimistic revenue assumptions to close the continuing budget shortfall,
these assumptions are already unraveling. The State has not yet dealt with its
structural financial issues and continues to rely on a number of one-time solutions and
gimmicks rather than focusing on aligning ongoing revenue with ongoing program
expenditure to fix their structural deficit.
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Reserves

To address the financial uncertainties discussed above, the City maintains various
General Fund Reserves and contingencies to total not less than 15% of operating
expenditures.

e General Fund Operating Contingency Reserve - this established reserve requires
a minimum 10% of the General Fund operating expenditures to be set aside for
general operating needs.

e Employee Benefit Reserve - this reserve was established to address future
anticipated increases in cost for existing employee benefits. The balance of this
reserve at June 30, 2009 was $915,546.

e Capital Maintenance Reserve - this reserve was created to address
unexpected/unplanned capital maintenance needs. The balance of this reserve at
June 30, 2009 was $2,600,000.

e Economic Contingency Reserve - established to compensate for any future State
raids on municipal budgets and to prepare for any other fiscal crisis that may
occur. The balance of this reserve at June 30, 2009 was $11,512,802.

e Unforecasted Reserve - established to fund capital projects that have not been
identified in the Capital Improvement Program, or, where there might be funding
level change in grant financed projects. The balance of this reserve at June 30,
2009 was $2,901,044.

Cash Management

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested, in accordance with the City of
Concord’'s adopted Investment Policy, in U.S. Government and Agency Securities,
Corporate Notes, Commercial Paper, Money Market and Mutual Funds, and the
California State Local Agency Investment Fund. As of June 30, 2009, maturity of the
investments ranged from 0 day to 3 years with an average maturity of 315 days. The
average yield on investments was 2.029%. Interest rates on new investments fell
during the past year. Investment income also included gains in the fair market value
of investments. Increases in fair market value during the current year, however, do
not mean that these gains will be realized unless the investments are sold before
maturity. The City of Concord holds investments to maturity, thus gains due to
changes in the fair market value should not be realized unless the investment is sold.
The City of Concord's Investment Policy is certified by the Association of Public
Treasurers, U.S. & Canada.

Risk Management

The City is a member of California State Association of Counties - Excess Insurance
Authority (CSAC-EIA). The coverage has a self-insured limit of $500,000 to a
maximum of $35 million for general liability; and $500,000 to a maximum of $300
million for Workers' Compensation.

The City provides fully-insured health plans through the Public Employees Retirement
System, a fully-insured dental and life insurance program, an Employee Assistant
Program (EAP), and a self-insured short term and long term disability program
through Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company.
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Pension Plan and Other Post-Employment Benefits

The City participates in two distinct retirement funds. The City entered the California
Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) beginning with Fiscal Year 1993-94. On
June 28, 1999, Concord funded prior service credit in PERS for all the current
employees. PERS is a multiple-employer public employees defined benefit pension
plan for safety and non-safety personnel. PERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and
their beneficiaries.

The City of Concord Retirement System (CCRS) is a closed plan and is a single
employer defined benefit pension plan covering all full time employees of the City who
retired or left service prior to June 28, 1999. Participants are divided into two primary
groups for coverage: general employees and safety employees. Funding for the
CCRS was held by Sun America Insurance. On May 21, 2009, Public Agency
Retirement Services (PARS) became the new administrator for the CCRS.

The City of Concord also provides post-retirement health benefits for its retired
employees and their eligible dependents. At the end of the fiscal year, there were 231
retired employees and 206 eligible dependents receiving these benefits which are
currently financed on a pay as you go basis. A funding plan has been developed and
incorporated into the City's Ten-Year Plan to fund the City's obligation for Other Post
Employment Benefits (OPEB) as identified in the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement 45.

Awards

This is the seventeenth consecutive year that the City of Concord has been
recognized for excellence in financial reporting. This year's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) has again been submitted to the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA) for evaluation. | believe the June 30, 2009 CAFR
exceeds the high standards set by the previous year's report. Suggestions by the
GFOA for further improvement of the CAFR have been included in this report. The
fact that GFOA continues to present the Finance Department with this award is
especially gratifying.

The City of Concord has also been recognized for excellence in budgeting. The City's
Fiscal Year 2008-09 Operating Budget received the Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award from the GFOA and the Excellence in Operational Budgeting
Award from California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO). The City
received the Excellence in Capital Budgeting for its Capital Improvement Program
from CSMFO.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Concord issues its financial statements in the format prescribed by the provisions of
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 34 “Basic Financial Statements - and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments” (GASB 34). GASB 34
requires the City to provide this overview of its financial activities for the fiscal year, which should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying Transmittal Letter and Basic Financial Statements.

FiscaL 2009 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financial highlights of the year include the following:

Government-Wide

e The City’s total net assets were $835 million at June 30, 2009, down $18 million from the
prior year. Of this total, $750 million were governmental assets and $85 million were
business-type assets.

e Government-Wide governmental revenues include program revenues of $33 million and
general revenues of $75 million for a total of $108 million, down $2 million from the prior
year’s total.

e Total Government-Wide governmental expenses were $126 million, an increase of $0.3
million from the prior year.

e Government-Wide business-type revenues were $20 million while expenses were $20
million.

Fund Level

Governmental Fund balances decreased $7 million in fiscal 2009.
Governmental Fund revenues increased to $107 million in fiscal 2009, up $2 million from
the prior year.

e Governmental Fund expenditures increased to $115 million in fiscal 2009, up $1 million
from the prior year.
General Fund revenues of $70 million reflected a decrease of $4 million in fiscal 2009.
General Fund expenditures of $78 million reflected an increase of $1 million when
compared to the prior year.

e The net transfers reflected in the General Fund totaled $1 million in for fiscal 2009
compared with net transfers of $2 million out of the General Fund in fiscal 2008.

e General Fund balance of $24 million at June 30, 2009 decreased $6 million from fiscal
2008.

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is in five parts:

1. Introductory section, which includes the Transmittal Letter and general information;

2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this part);

3. The Basic Financial Statements, which include the Government-Wide and the Fund
financial statements, along with the Notes to these financial statements;

4. Supplemental Information for Non-Major Governmental Funds and Internal Service Funds;
and

5. Statistical information and other schedules.
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THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Basic Financial Statements comprise the Government-Wide Financial Statements and the
Fund Financial Statements; these two sets of financial statements provide two different views of
the City’s financial activities and financial position.

The Government-Wide Financial Statements provide a longer-term view of the City’s activities as a
whole, and comprise the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. The Statement
of Net Assets provides information about the financial position of the City as a whole, including all
its capital assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to that used by
corporations. The Statement of Activities provides information about all the City’s revenues and all
its expenses, also on the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues or
expenses of each the City’s programs. The Statement of Activities explains in detail the change in
Net Assets for the year.

All of the City’s activities are grouped into Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities, as
explained below. All the amounts in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
are separated into Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities in order to provide a
summary of these two activities of the City as a whole.

The Fund Financial Statements report the City’'s operations in more detail than the Government-
Wide Statements and focus primarily on the short-term activities of the City’'s General Fund and
other Major Funds. The Fund Financial Statements measure only current revenues and
expenditures and fund balances; they exclude capital assets, long-term debt and other long-term
amounts.

Major Funds account for the major financial activities of the City and are presented individually,
while the activities of Non-Major Funds are presented in summary, with subordinate schedules
presenting the detail for each of these other funds. Major Funds are explained below.

The fiduciary statements provide financial information about the activities of the Concord
Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, for which the City acts solely as agent.

The Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities present information about the
following:

e Governmental Activities - All of the City’s basic services are considered to be Governmental
Activities, including General Government; Public Safety; Public Works; Planning and Economic
Development; Building, Engineering and Neighborhood Services; and Community and
Recreation Services. These services are supported by general City revenues such as taxes,
and by specific program revenues such as developer fees.

e The City’s Governmental Activities include the activities of two separate legal entities: the
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord and the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing
Authority. The City is financially accountable for these entities.

e Business-Type Activities - The City’s two enterprise activities, the sewer and the golf course,
are reported here. Unlike governmental services, these services are supported by charges
paid by users based on the amount of the service they use. The City’'s Business-Type
Activities include the activities of an additional separate legal entity, the Concord Sanitary
Sewer Services Inc., which is inactive.

Government-Wide Financial Statements are prepared on the accrual basis, which means they
measure the flow of all economic resources of the City as a whole.
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Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about each of the City’s most
significant funds, called Major Funds. The concept of major funds and the determination of which
funds are major funds were established by GASB 34 and replace the concept of combining like
funds and presenting them in total. Instead, each Major Fund is presented individually, with all
Non-Major Funds summarized and presented in a single column. Subordinate schedules present
the detail of these Non-Major Funds. Major Funds present the major activities of the City for the
year, and may change from year to year as a result of changes in the pattern of City’s activities.

In the City’s case, the Housing and Community Services Fund, the Redevelopment Agency Fund
and the General Reimbursable Projects Fund are the only Major Governmental Funds in addition
to the General Fund.

Fund Financial Statements include Governmental, Enterprise, and Internal Service Funds as
discussed below.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis, which
means they measure only current financial resources and uses. Capital assets and other long-
lived assets, along with long-term liabilities, are not presented in the Governmental Fund Financial
Statements.

Enterprise and Internal Service Fund Financial Statements are prepared on the full accrual basis,
as in the past, and include all their assets and liabilities, current and long-term.

Since the City’s Internal Service Funds provide goods and services only to the City’'s Governmental
and Business-Type Activities, their activities are reported only in total at the Fund level. Internal
Service Funds may not be Major Funds because their revenues are derived from other City Funds.
These revenues are eliminated in the Government-Wide Financial Statements and any related
profits or losses are returned to the Activities that created them, along with any residual net assets
of the Internal Service Funds.

Comparisons of Budget and Actual financial information are presented only for the General Fund,
as required by GASB 34.

Fiduciary Statements

The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in the separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and
the Pension Trust Fund Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets. These activities are excluded
from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its
own operations. The Pension Trust Fund consists of the City of Concord Retirement System, a
separate legal entity.

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE
The analyses reflected below focus on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table

2) of the City as a whole. The information summarizes the Citywide Statement of Net Assets and
Statements of Activities stated more fully in the Financial Section of this report.
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Table 1: Primary Government Net Assets
As of June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

Activities Activities
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Cash and Investments $97.4 $112.3 $36.3 $43.8 $133.7 $156.1
Other Assets 58.6 54.1 (0.2) 0.1 58.5 54.2
Capital Assets 715.8 729.2 88.7 83.0 804.5 812.2
Total Assets  871.8 895.6 124.9 126.9 996.7 1,022.5
Long-Term Debt Outstanding 94.2 99.4 24.6 25.4 118.8 124.8
Other Liabilities 27.7 27.5 15.5 17.0 43.2 445
Total Liabilities 121.9 126.9 40.1 42.4 162.0 169.3

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 622.6 630.5 71.3 70.4 693.9 700.9
Restricted 88.9 89.4 88.9 89.4
Unrestricted 38.4 48.8 13.5 14.1 51.9 62.9
Total Net Assets $749.9 $768.7 $84.8 $84.5 $834.7 $853.2
Table 2: Primary Government Changes in Governmental Net Assets

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
EXPENSES
General Government $12.7  $13.2 $12.7  $13.2
Public Safety 45.3 42.4 45.3 42.4
Public Works 36.4 36.6 36.4 36.6
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services 6.6 6.5 6.6 6.5
Planning & Economic Development 10.6 12.3 10.6 12.3
Community & Recreation Services 9.5 9.5 9.5 9.5
Interest on Long-Term Debt 5.2 55 5.2 55
Loss on Sale of Property 0.0 0.0
Sewer $18.7 $24.9 18.7 24.9
Golf Course 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.6
Total Expenses  126.3 126.0 20.4 26.5 146.7 152.5
REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 17.8 12.2 19.7 194 37.5 31.6
Operating Contributions and Grants 4.7 6.2 4.7 6.2
Capital Grants 10.5 8.8 0.1 0.1 10.6 8.9
Total Program Revenues 33.0 27.2 19.8 19.5 52.8 46.7
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes 29.0 30.3 29.0 30.3
Sales Taxes 24.3 27.3 24.3 27.3
Other Taxes 9.1 9.3 9.1 9.3
Motor Vehicle in Lieu 9.6 9.8 9.6 9.8
Investment Earnings 2.3 5.3 0.8 15 3.1 6.8
Miscellaneous Revenues and Transfers 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.2
Gain on Sale of Property 0.0 0.0
Total General Revenues 74.5 82.1 0.9 1.6 75.4 83.7
Total Revenues  107.5 109.3 20.7 21.1 128.2 130.4
Change in Net Assets (18.8) (16.7) 0.3 (5.4) (18.5) (22.1)
Beginning Net Assets 768.7 785.4 84.5 89.9 853.2 875.3

Ending Net Assets $749.9 $768.7 $84.8  $84.5 $834.7 $853.2
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The analyses below focus on the net assets and changes in net assets of the City's Governmental
Activities (Table 3, 4 and 5) and Business-Type Activities (Table 6 and 7) presented in the Citywide
Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities that follow.

Governmental Activities

Table 3: Governmental Net Assets

As of June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

Governmental

Activities
2009 2008
Cash and Investments $97.4 $112.3
Other Assets 58.6 54.1
Capital Assets 715.8 729.2
Total Assets 871.8 895.6
Long-Term Debt Outstanding 94.2 99.4
Other Liabilities 27.7 27.5
Total Liabilities 121.9 126.9

Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 622.6 630.5
Restricted 88.9 89.4
Unrestricted 38.4 48.8
Total Net Assets $749.9 $768.7

The City's net assets from Governmental Activities decreased $18.8 million to $749.9 million in
2009. This decrease in the Changes in Net Assets reflected in the Statement of Activities, as shown
in Table 3, is discussed below:

Cash and investments decreased $14.9 million due to a decrease in cash flow from major
revenue sources.

Capital assets decreased $13.4 million, net of depreciation charges. Improvements and
additions to streets infrastructure, the storm drainage system and other capital projects
were more than offset by the normal annual depreciation charges and the retirement of old
computer equipment.

Long-term debt declined $5.2 million as payments have been made on existing debt.

Other assets, net of other liabilities, increased $4.3 million due primarily to the increase in
land held for redevelopment.

Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, decreased $7.9 million as assets
depreciated and equipment was disposed.

Restricted net assets decreased $0.5 million as net assets restricted for Capital Projects
and Debt Service decreased $1.8 million and net assets restricted for Community
Development Projects increased $1.3 million.

Unrestricted net assets reflect the resources that can be used to finance day-to-day
operations without constraints established by debt covenants or other legal requirements.
Unrestricted net assets decreased $10.4 million.
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Governmental Activities - Sources of Revenues
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 (see Table 4)

Property Taxes, 27%
Sales Taxes, 23%

Charges for Services, 17%

Capital Grants, 10%

Motor Vehicle In Lieu, 9%
Other Taxes, 8%

Operating Grants & Contributions, 4%

Investment Earninas, 2%

As the Sources of Revenue Chart above shows, 27% or $29.0 million of the City’s fiscal 2009
governmental activities revenue came from property taxes, and approximately 23% or $24.3 million
came from sales taxes. The remaining 50% came primarily from four sources - charges for
services, capital grants, motor vehicle in lieu, and other taxes.

Governmental Activities - Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 (see Table 4)

Public Safety, 36%

Public Works, 29%

General Government, 10%

Planning & Economic Development, 8%

Community & Recreation Services, 8%

Building, Engineering & Neighborhood
Services, 5%

Interest on Long Term Debt, 4%

The Functional Expenses Chart above includes only current year expenses, which are discussed
in detail below. Public Safety accounted for $45.3 million or 36% of expenses, while Public Works
accounted for $36.5 million or 29% of expenses, followed by General Government which
accounted for $12.7 million or 10% of expenses. The remaining 25% were spread fairly evenly
among Planning and Economic Development; Community and Recreation Services; Building,
Engineering and Neighborhood Services; and interest expense.

The expenses reflected above do not include capital outlay, which is now added to the City’'s
capital assets on the Government-Wide Financial Statements. In 2009, the City’s capital assets
declined a net of $13.4 million, as discussed above, due to annual depreciation, which offset the
additions made. The details of the changes in capital assets are reflected in Table 8 below.
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The Statement of Activities presents program revenues and expenses and general revenues in
detail. All these are elements in the Changes in Governmental Net Assets summarized below:

Table 4:

Changes in Governmental Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

Governmental
Activities
2009 2008
EXPENSES
General Government $12.7 $13.2
Public Safety 45.3 42.4
Public Works 36.4 36.6
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services 6.6 6.5
Planning & Economic Development 10.6 12.3
Community and Recreation Services 9.5 9.5
Interest on Long-Term Debt 5.2 55
Loss on Sale of Property 0.0 0.0
Total Expenses 126.3 126.0
REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 17.8 12.2
Operating Contributions and Grants 4.7 6.2
Capital Grants 10.5 8.8
Total Program Revenues 33.0 27.2
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes 29.0 30.3
Sales Taxes 24.3 27.3
Other Taxes 9.1 9.3
Motor Vehicle in Lieu 9.6 9.8
Investment Earnings 2.3 5.3
Miscellaneous Revenues and Transfers 0.2 0.1
Gain on Sale of Property 0.0 0.0
Total General Revenues and Transfers 74.5 82.1
Total Revenues 107.5 109.3
Change in Net Assets ($18.8) ($16.7)

The expense of Governmental Activities totaled $126.3 million in fiscal 2009, reflecting a $0.3

million increase from the prior year.

Increases in Public Safety were offset by decreases in

General Government, Public Works, Planning and Economic Development, and interest expense.

Total Governmental Activities revenues decreased $1.8 million in fiscal 2009, reflecting economic
slowdown associated with the recession. The decline in revenue reflects a $7.5 million decrease in
taxes and investment earnings which offset an increase of $5.8 million in program revenues.
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Governmental Activities

Table 5 presents the net expense of each of the City’s programs. Net expense is defined as total
program cost offset by revenues generated by those specific activities. In the City’s case, the net
expenses of several programs varied significantly from the total expense above. Overall, program
revenues reduced program expenses by an average of 26% of total expenses. The City’s program
revenues include developer fees, plan check fees, building inspection fees, traffic fines, recreation
fees, police fees, grants, assessment revenues and other charges for services.

Table 5: Governmental Activities
As of June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

Net (Expense) Revenue

from Services

2009 2008
General Government ($11.4) ($12.0)
Public Safety (43.1) (39.8)
Public Works (25.1) (26.5)
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services 1.2 (1.5)
Planning & Economic Development (7.4) (10.1)
Community & Recreation Services (2.4) (3.5)
Interest on Long-Term Debt (5.2) (5.5)
Total ($93.4) ($98.9)

Business-Type Activities
The net assets of Business-Type Activities increased to $84.8 million in fiscal 2009, up $0.3 million

from the prior year. Of this total, $83.5 million were reflected in the Sewer Fund and $1.3 million
were reflected in the Golf Course Fund.

Table 6: Business-Type Activities Net Assets
As of June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

Business-Type

Activities
2009 2008
Cash and Investments $36.3 $43.8
Other Assets (0.1) 0.1
Capital Assets 88.7 83.0
Total Assets 124.9 126.9
Long-Term Debt Outstanding 24.6 25.4
Other Liabilities 15.5 17.0
Total Liabilities 40.1 42.4

Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 71.3 70.4
Unrestricted 13.5 14.1

Total Net Assets $84.8 $84.5
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Table 7: Changes in Business-Type Activities Net Assets
As of June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

Business-Type

Activities
2009 2008

Net Revenues from Business-Type Activities:

Sewer Fund ($0.3) ($6.9)

Golf Course Fund (0.3) nil
General Revenues:

Investment Earnings 0.9 15

Transfers nil nil
Total $0.3 ($5.4)

Sewer generated $18.3 million of revenues in fiscal 2009, reflecting a $0.4 million increase in
service fees over the prior year. This was attributable to a slight increase in sewer customers in
fiscal 2009. Expenses decreased by $6.2 million to $18.7 million. As a result, Sewer Enterprise
experienced a $0.3 million loss for the year attributable to the City's support of capital projects for
treatment at the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District. The Golf Course Enterprise reflected a
$0.3 million loss due to a decrease in rounds played.

THE CITY’S FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Governmental Funds

At June 30, 2009, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $99.6 million,
a $6.6 million decrease when compared with last year’s combined fund balance of $106.2 million.
The General Fund accounted for a decrease of $5.9 million, the Redevelopment Agency fund
balance decreased $0.5 million, and the remaining governmental funds decreased $0.2 million.

Governmental fund revenues increased $2.2 million this year to total $107.3 million. General Fund
revenues decreased $4.0 million. Housing and Community Services Fund revenues increased
approximately $0.2 million. Redevelopment Agency revenues increased $0.7 million. General
Reimbursable Project revenues increased $3.0 million. Other Governmental fund revenues
increased $2.3 million.

Governmental expenditures increased $1.3 million this year to total $115.5 million. General Fund
and Housing and Community Services Fund expenditures increased $1.2 million and $0.3 million
respectively. Redevelopment Agency expenditures decreased $2.0 million. General Reimbursable
Project expenditures increased $1.4 million. Other Governmental fund expenditures increased $0.4
million.

Other Financing Sources (Uses) reflect transfers among the various funds in the City. During fiscal
2009, the General Fund received transfers in of approximately $2.5 million to fund Operating,
Administrative and General Services costs, and Capital Projects.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund net assets totaled $84.8 million at the end of the fiscal year, an increase of $0.3
million. Enterprise operating revenues were $19.7 million this year, up $0.3 million from last year.
Enterprise Fund operating expenses were $19.3 million this year, down $4.8 million from the prior
year.
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ANALYSES OF MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
General Fund

General Fund revenues totaled $70.4 million, reflecting a decrease of $4.0 million over the prior
fiscal year, due primarily to decreases in sales taxes with smaller decreases in other taxes. Actual
revenues were $7.4 million below the budgeted amounts with property and sales taxes comprising
the majority of the under-realization.

Sales tax decreased $3.7 million from the prior year due to a large drop in consumer spending.
Assessed valuations decreased during the year causing a $0.7 million decrease in property taxes.
Transient occupancy tax also decreased $0.5 million from the prior year.

General Fund expenditures increased $1.2 million due to the increased cost of providing services.
General Government expenditures were $2.0 million more than budgeted. Public Safety
expenditures increased $2.6 million to a total of $42.6 million in fiscal 2009 resulting from an
increase in the salaries and benefits.

At June 30, 2009 the General Fund fund balance totaled $23.8 million, reflecting a decrease of
$5.9 million. The ending fund balance consisted of $2.0 million in reserved for encumbrances and
loans and advances to other funds, $18.2 million designated primarily for reserves and $3.6 million
in unreserved, undesignated balances. Only the unreserved portion of fund balance represents
available liquid resources since the reserved portion is represented by non-cash assets or by open
purchase orders. The designated fund balance has been set aside by City Council, who may alter
or reverse its decisions with respect to designated fund balances and their users at any time.

Housing and Community Services

This Fund accounts for monies received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development
and the California Housing Finance Agency, and expended for development of jobs and suitable
housing for low-income residents.

The Fund revenues increased $0.2 million to $1.7 million in fiscal 2009. The Fund expenditures
totaled $1.4 million in fiscal 2009, an increase of 0.3 million from the prior fiscal year.

The fund balance at fiscal year end increased $0.4 million to $1.4 million as a result of operations.
The total fund balance is either reserved or designated for specific projects.

Redevelopment Agency

This fund accounts for all activities of the Redevelopment Agency, including property tax increment
and other Redevelopment Agency revenues, the portion of property tax increment required under
California law to be set aside to fund low and moderate income housing expenditures, the
accumulation of funds to pay debt service on the Agency’s 1988, 1993 and 2004 tax allocation
bonds and capital projects in the Redevelopment Agency’s project areas.

The fund’s revenues were $17.4 million in fiscal 2009, an increase of $0.7 million. Property tax
increment revenues increased to $17.7 million which were offset by pass-through payments
totaling $1.6 million. No contribution was required to be made to the State Educational Revenue
Augmentation Fund in fiscal 2009.

Fund expenditures were $15.8 million in fiscal 2009, a decrease of $2.0 million from prior year, and
consisted of $9.4 million in development and $6.4 million in debt service.
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The Redevelopment Agency fund balance decreased $0.4 million as a result of interest accruing
on existing notes receivable.

The fund’s fiscal year end fund balance of $62.9 million may be used only for redevelopment
purposes. This full amount is either reserved or designated primarily for future capital projects. As
such this fund balance is not available for unrestricted expenditure.

General Reimbursable Projects Fund

This fund accounts for capital project costs that are reimbursable from grants and charges to track
job specific projects

The fund’s revenues were $5.4 million in fiscal 2009, an increase of $3.0 million, primarily due to
an increase in capital projects activity and reimbursement from grantors.

Fund expenditures were $5.2 million in fiscal 2009, an increase of $1.4 million.

The fund balances at fiscal year end increased $0.7 million to a $0.7 million deficit. The deficit will
be reimbursed in accordance with grant funding policies.

Other Governmental Funds

These funds are not presented separately in the Basic Financial Statements, but are individually
presented as Supplemental Information.

Proprietary Funds

Sewer Fund

Net assets of the Sewer Fund increased by $0.5 million in fiscal 2009. At June 30, 2009, the
Fund’s Net Assets were $83.5 million, of which $69.2 million was invested in capital assets. $14.3
million of the Fund’s Net Assets were unrestricted at June 30, 2009.

Golf Course Fund

Golf Course revenues decreased slightly by $0.1 million to a total of $1.4 million in fiscal 2009

while operating expenses increased $0.1 million to $1.6 million. Net assets decreased by 0.2
million to a total of $1.3 million.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

GASB 34 requires the City to record all its capital assets, including infrastructure, in its financial
statements. Infrastructure includes roads, bridges, signals and similar assets used by the entire
population.

In accordance with GASB 34, in fiscal 2002, the City recorded the cost of all its infrastructure
assets and computed the amount of accumulated depreciation for these assets based on their
original acquisition dates. At the end of fiscal 2009 the cost of infrastructure and other capital
assets recorded on the City’s financial statements was as shown in Table 8 below:

Table 8: Capital Assets
For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008

Governmental Activities

Land $16.3 $16.3
Construction in Progress 2.4 3.3
Ground Improvements 14.3 14.2
Buildings and Improvements 77.9 77.8
Machinery and Equipment 8.5 12.0
Vehicles 8.1 7.7
Streets 415.8 409.2
Sidewalks 44.9 44.1
Storm Drains/Catch Basins 442.9 441.7
Street Lights 1.2 1.2
Traffic Signals 24.9 24.4
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (341.4) (322.7)
Governmental Activity Capital Assets, Net $715.8 $729.2

Business-Type Activities

Land $0.4 $0.4
Construction in Progress 12.7 3.0
Buildings and Improvements 8.2 8.2
Machinery and Equipment 0.4 0.6
Sewer Lines 196.5 196.4
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (129.5) (125.5)
Business-Type Activity Capital Assets, Net $88.7 $83.1

The principal additions to governmental capital assets in fiscal 2009 were focused on
infrastructure, including streets, storm drains, sidewalks and traffic signals. Continuing work on the
sewer line rehabilitation project is reflected in a $9.7 million increase in Business-Type Activities,
Construction in Progress. Further detail on capital assets, current year additions and construction
in progress can be found in Note 7.

The City depreciates all its capital assets over their estimated useful lives, as required by GASB
34. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of a capital asset over the years of its useful
life so that an allocable portion of the cost of the asset is borne by all users. Additional information
on depreciable lives may be found in Note 7.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The City made all scheduled repayments of existing debt. Each of the City’s debt issues is
discussed in detail in Note 8 to the Financial Statements. At June 30, 2009, the City’s debt was
comprised of the following issues:

Table 9: Outstanding Debt
As of June 30, 2009 and 2008 (Dollars in Millions)

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008 Net Change

Governmental Activity Debt:

Revenue Bonds:

1993 Lease Revenue Bonds, 2.70 - 5.25%, due 8/1/19 $5.7 $6.1 ($0.4)
1995 Lease Revenue Bonds, 6.33 - 8.24%, due 8/1/20 13.5 14.2 (0.7)
2001 Lease Revenue Bonds, 4.00 - 5.13%, due 3/1/23 7.3 7.7 (0.4)

Tax Allocation Bonds:
Series 1993 Senior Bonds

Capital Appreciation Bonds, 5.70 - 5.75%, due 7/1/08 0.0 25 (2.5)
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2004
3.90 - 5.05%, due 7/1/25 64.4 65.4 (1.0
Less deferred amount on refunding (2.7) (2.9) 0.2
Certificates of Participation:
ABAG 41 - Centre Concord, 4.00 - 5.00%, due 8/1/18 0.3 0.3 0.0
Judgment Obligation Bonds:
1999 Series Bonds, 4.25 - 5.30%, due 9/1/14 2.2 2.5 (0.3)
Notes Payable:
3.00%, due 9/2/13 2.4 2.3 0.1
Special Assessment with City Commitment:
Assessment District #79 0.0 nil nil
Assessment District #80 0.1 0.1 0.0
Assessment District #81 0.1 0.1 0.0
Capital Lease:
Key Government Finance, 4.65%, due 10/15/11 0.8 1.1 (0.3)
Total Government Activity Debt $94.1 $99.4 ($5.3)

Business-Type Activity Debt:

Enterprise Long Term Debt:
2004 Certificates of Participation, Wastewater System

Improvements, 2.00 - 4.63%, due 2/1/29 $10.8 $11.2 ($0.4)
2007 Certificates of Participation, Wastewater System

Improvements, 3.75 - 4.50%, due 2/1/32 12.1 $12.4 ($0.3)
ABAG 41 Certificates of Participation, Diablo Creek Golf

Course, 4.00 - 5.00%, due 8/1/18 1.7 1.8 (0.1)

Total Business-Type Activity Debt $24.6 $25.4 ($0.8)
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EcoNomic OUTLOOK AND MAJOR INITIATIVES

The economy of the City and its major initiatives for the coming year are discussed in detail in the
accompanying Transmittal Letter.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors,

and creditors with a general overview of the City's finances. Questions about this Report should
be directed to the Finance Department, at 1950 Parkside Drive, Concord, CA 94519-2578.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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City OF CONCORD JUNE 30, 2009

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities summarize the entire City's financial
activities and financial position. They are prepared on the same basis as is used by most businesses,
which means they include all the City's assets and all its liabilities, as well as all its revenues and
expenses. This is known as the full accrual basis—the effect of all the City’s transactions is taken into
account, regardless of whether or when cash changes hands, but all material internal transactions
between City funds have been eliminated.

The Statement of Net Assets reports the difference between the City's total assets and the City's total
liabilities, including all the City’s capital assets and ali its long-term debt. The Statement of Net Assets
summarizes the financial position of all the City's Governmental Activities in a single column, and the
financial position of all the City's Business-Type Activities in a single column; these columns are
followed by a Total column that presents the financial position of the entire City.

The City's Governmental Activities include the activities of its General Fund, along with ali its Special
Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds. Since the City's Internal Service Funds service
these Funds, their activities are consolidated with Governmental Activities, after eliminating inter-fund
transactions and balances. The City's Business-Type Activities include all its Enterprise Fund activities.

The Statement of Activities reports increases and decreases in the City's net assets. It is also prepared
on the full accrual basis, which means it includes all the City's revenues and all its expenses, regardless
of when cash changes hands. This differs from the “modified accrual” basis used in the Fund financial
statements, which reflect only current assets, current liabilities, available revenues and measurable
expenditures.

The Statement of Activities presents the City's expenses first, listed by program, and follows these with
the expenses of its Business-Type Activities. Program revenues—that is, revenues which are
generated directly by these programs—are then deducted from program expenses to arrive at the net
expense of each governmental and business-type program. The City's general revenues are then listed
in the Governmental Activities or Business-type Activities column, as appropriate, and the Change in
Net Assets is computed and reconciied with the Statement of Net Assets.

Both these Statements inciude the financial activities of the City and the City of Concord Redevelopment
Agency, City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority, Concord Sanitary Sewer Services, Inc., and
the City of Concord Retirement System, which are legally separate but are component units of the City
because they are controlled by the City, which are financially accountabie for the component units’
activities.
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JUNE 30, 2008
CITY OF CONCORD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments {Note 3) $90,561,121 $29,142,573 $119,703,694
Cash with Fiscal Agents (Note 3) 6,856,288 7,190,172 14,046,460
Receivables (Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles).
Accounts 2,377,192 66,086 2,444 178
Due from Other Governmenis 7,862,591 7,862,591 ,
Interest 550,555 13,770 564,325
Leans and Netes, Net of Reserves (Note 5) 24,623,699 24,623,699 ¢
Employee Computer Loans (Nofe 6) 31,580 31,580
Special Assessments 349,097 348,097
Inventories 132,263 132,263
Prepaid items and Other Assets 36,321 48,616 84,937
Internal Balances {Note 4) 221,107 (221,107)
Land Held for Redevelopment {(Note 1) 11,416,332 11,416,332
Investment in Joint Venture {Note 15) 1,404,484 1,404,484
Net OPEB Asset (Note 12} 9,516,723 9,516,723
Capital Assets (Note 7).
Land and Censtruction In Progress 18,760,444 13,043,010 31,803,454
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net of Accumuiated Depreciation 697,072,382 75,628,558 772,700,950
Total Assets 871,772,189 124,912,578 996,684,767
LIABILITIES
Accounts, Deposits and Contracts Payable 4,035,039 14,801,255 18,836,294
Accrued Liabilities 5,504,170 5,504,170
interest Payable 2,191,918 437,410 2,629,328
Refundable Deposits 4,147,248 4,147,248
Unearned Revenue 525,722 525,722
Compensated Absences (Note 1)
Due in One Year 3,402,736 196,241 3,598,977
Due in More Than One Year 780,767 47,154 827,921
Claims Payable (Note 14):
Due in One Year 2,180,542 2,180,542
Due in More Than Cne Year 4,840,468 4,840,468
Long-Term Debt (Note 8):
Due in One Year 5,780,763 540,000 6,620,763
Due in More Than One Year 88,395,942 23,750,000 112,145,942
Totai Liabilities 121,885,315 ‘ 40,072,060 161,957,375
NET ASSETS (Note 9)
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 622,560,100 71,320,356 693,880,456
Resfricted for,
Capital Projests 13,026,953 13,026,953
Debt Service 7,361,426 7,361,426
Community Development Projects 68,502,309 68,502,309
Total Restricted Net Assels 58,890,688 88,890,688
Unrestricted Net Assets 38,436,086 13,520,162 51,956,248
Total Net Assets $749,886,874 $84,840,518 $834,727,392

See accompanying notes {o financial statements
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JUNE 30, 2009

CITY OF CONCORD
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes In Net Assels
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Govemnmentat Business-Type
Functiens/Programs Expenses Services Contributions _ Contributions Adlivities Activifles Total
Governmental Activilies:
Generai Government 12,738,632 $966,501 $380,550 {$11,891,581} ($11,391,56%)
Pubiic Safety 45,291,048 1,672,348 $47%,053 40,582 {43,107,065) (43,107,065)
Pubiic Works 38,454,843 5,847,684 2,035,959 3,518,476 (25,052,722} (25,052,722}
Butding, Engineering & Neighborhood Services 6,571,713 3,363,813 267,196 4,166,741 1,226,037 1,226,027
Pianning & Ecanomic Deveiopment 10,579,123 2,390,462 B1%,432 (7,377,220) {7,377,229;
Community & Retreation Services 9,463,315 3,492,087 1,430,121 2,408,086 (2,435,021) (2,435,021}
Interest on Long-Term Debt 5,213,438 : . {5,213,438) (5,213,438}
Total Governmental Activities 126,312,112 17,732,895 4,715,761 10,512,437 {03,351,019) (93,351,018}
Business-Type Activities:
Sewer 18,688,255 18,296,077 117,815 ($274,263) (274,263)
Goif Course 1,679,995 1,422,154 (257,841) (257,841}
Total Business-Type Activitics 20,368,250 10,718,231 117,915 {532,104) (532,404)
Total $146,680,362 $37.451,128 94,715,761 $10,630,352 (99,351,019) {532,104) {93,883,123)
General Revenues:
Taxes
Properly Taxes 26,034,865 29,034,868
Sales Taxes 24,253,987 24,253,987
Motor Vehicle In Lieu, Unrestricted 8,625,835 D,625,635
Transient Occupancy Taxes 1,710,766 1,710,768
Business Lizense Taxes 3,262,762 3,262,762
Ciher Taxss 4,128,526 4,128,526
investment Eamings 2,300,008 809,161 3,109,168
Miecellanecus Revenues 247,607 52,450 300,147
Transfers {net), {(Note 4) (16,401) 16,401
Totai General Revenues 74,547,848 a78,012 75,425,860
Change in Net Assefs {18,803,17H) 345,908 (18,457,263)
Net Assets - Beginning 768,680,045 84,494,610 863,184,655
Net Assets - Ending $749,886,874 $84,840,518 £834,727,302

See accompanying notes to financlet statements
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major funds are defined generally as having significant activities or balances in the current year.

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City in fiscal 2009. Individual
non-major funds may be found in the Supplemental section.

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The major revenue
sources for this Fund are property taxes, sales taxes, unrestricted revenues from the State, charges
for services, and interest income. Expenditures are made for public safety, most street work and other
services not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Housing and Community Services — The Housing and Community Services Fund accounts for
monies received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and expended for
development of jobs and suitable housing for jow-income residents.

Redevelopment Agency — The Redevelopment Agency Fund accounts for all activities of the
Agency, including 1) tax increment allocations set aside for the purpose of increasing or improving
housing for low-income residents; 2) the accumulation of property taxes for payment of interest and
principal on the Redevelopment Agency tax allocation bonds issued in 1988, 1993 and 2004; 3)
capital projects connected with downtown redevelopment funded by property tax increment revenues.

General Reimbursable Projects Fund - To account for project costs that are reimbursable from
grants and to track job specific projects.
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CiTY OF CONCORD
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2008

Housing General Other Total
and Community Redevelopment Reimbursable Governmental Governmentat
General Sernvices Agency Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Investments {Note 3) $28,353,262 $2,262,932 $29,510,001 $1,304,664 $8,727,010 $70,157,868
Cash with Fiscal Agents {Note 3) 3,528,885 3,315,743 6,844,628
Receivables (Net of Aflowances for Uncollectibles):
Accounts 1,956,215 7,599 62,513 188,157 17,718 2,232,200
Due from Other Governrnents 3,239,628 204,984 2,121,721 2,296,061 7,862,591
interest 385,245 144,565 529,810
Due from Other Funds (Note 4) 171,615 1,280,844 4,452,659
Loans and Notes {Note 5) 2,613,395 21,804,980 205,324 24,623,699
Employee Computer Loans (Note &) 31,580 31,580
Special Assassments 349,087 349,087
Inventories 132,263 132,263
Prepaid items and Other Assets 4,111 15,257 a5 18,403
Advances to Other Funds {Note 4} 1,420,666 477,000 1,897,666
Land Held for Redeveiopment (Note 1) 11,416,332 11,416,332
Investment in Partnership (Note 15) 1,404,484 1,404,484
Total Asseis $35,694,985 $5,088,907 $67,887,017 $3,614.577 $16,668,795 $128,954,281
LIABILITIES:
Accounts, Deposits and Contracte Payable $3,647,817 $13,739 $52,001 $19,297 $253,787 $3,986,641
Accrued Liabilities 3,092,499 1,361,702 115,329 7,303 18,353 4,595,186
Dus o Other Funds {Mote 4} 668,983 608,878 1,287,871
Refundable Deposits 4,147,248 4,147,248
Deferred Revenue 455 722 2,333,385 4,823,765 3,631,627 2,252,953 13,497,462
Advances from Other Funds {Note 4) 550,000 1,281,247 1,831,247
Total Liabiities 11,893,286 3,708,836 4,991,095 4,347,220 4,415,318 29,355,755
FUND BALANCES:
Fund Balances: (Note 9)
Reserved for;
Encumbrances 406,808 20,000 1,480,381 450,248 1,270,847 3,628,285
Loans and Notes 31,580 280,000 16,981,215 185,445 17,478,240
Advances to Other Funds 1,420,666 477,000 4,897,666
Inventory, Prepaid items & Forfeitures 136,348 15,257 268,647 420,252
Land Held for Redevelopment 51,416,332 11,416,332
investment in Partnership 1,404,484 1,404,484
Low and Moderate Incorme Housing 6,233,314 6,233,314
Debt Service 3,528,75% 3,483,578 7.012,329
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Confingencies 17,929,392 17,929,392
Capital Prcjects
Reported in:
General Fund 237,069 237,058
Special Revenue Funds 619,233 519,233
Capital Project Funds 1,080,071 21,836,054 2,415,431 25,331,556
Community Development and Public Safety
Reported in:
Special Revenue Funds
Unrealized Incresse in Feir Vaiue of investments 134 134
Undesignated, Reported in:
General Fund 3,639,845 3,639,845
Special Revenue Funds 5,099,565 5,099,565
Capital Projects Funds {1,451,538} (1,297,622} (2,749,160)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 23,801,689 1,380,071 52,895,922 {732,643) 12,253,477 99,598,526
Total Liabiities and Fund Balances $35,604,985 $5,088,907 367,887,017 $3,614,577 $16,668,795 $128,954,281

Bee accompanying notes to financial statements
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JUNE 30, 2009

CiTY OF CONCORD
Recongiliation of the
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BALANCE SHEET
with the
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

TOTAL FUND BALANCES -- TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of

Net Assets are different from those reparted in the Governmental Funds above because of the following:

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current assets or financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the Governmentai Funds.

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND NET ASSETS
Internal Service Funds are not Governmental Funds. However, they are used by management to
charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and central services and maintenance,
to individual Governmental Funds.
Tha net current assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are therefore inciuded in
Governmental Activities fallowing line iftems in the Statement of Net Assets.
Cash and investments
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable
Prepaid ltems
Net OPEB Asset
Accounis Payable
Claims Payable

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Revenues which are deferred on the Fund Balance Sheefs because they are not available
currently are taken into revenue in the Statement of Activities.

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The assets and liabitities below are not due and payable in ihe current period and therefore are
not reported in the Funds:
Long-Term Debt
Loss on Refunding of Bond Issue
Interest Payable
Non-Current Portion of Accrued Liabilities

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statemenis

$99,598,526

715,832,836

20,414,912
144,992
20,745
16,918
9,516,723
(48,398)
(7,121,010)

13,083,861

(96,840,944)
2,664,239
2,191,918
(5,214,608)

$740 886,874
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JUNE 30, 2009

REVENUES
Taxes
Praperty
Less Tax increment Pass Through Payment
Less Tax increment Rebate
In Lieu Property Tax - VLF
Sales
Sales Tax In Lieu
Transient Ocsupancy
Franchises
Business License
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
Parks and Recreation
Use of Money and Property
Special Asssssment Collections
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Govemment
Public Safety
Public Works
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services
Planning & Economic Development
Community & Recreation Services
Capital Qutlay
Debi Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFiCIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long term debt (Note 8)
Trangfers in {Note 4)

Transfers (Out} (Note 4}

Totat Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT): AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND AT END OF PERIQD

CITY OF CONCORD
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Hausing Generat Other Tatal
and Community Redevelopment Reimbursable Governmental Governmental
General Services Agency Projects Funds Funds
$12,887,563 $17,702,809 $3,657.910 $34,248,282
{1,238,338) {1,238,338)
(377.503) (377,503)
0,201,212 8,201,212
17,757,981 17,757,081
6,496,005 6,496,005
1,710,767 1,710,767
4,128,525 4,128,525
3,262,763 3,262,763
1,262,916 $335,588 1,953,489 3,552,003
208,849 1,215,863 35,316,564 5025275 12,366,551
7,271,613 47,836 7,269,449
4,044,448 64,229 1,408,677
2,868,638 2,868,639
4,083,367 19,260 1,237,135 572 1,764,834 4,102,165
87,052 67,052
540,540 80,476 45,547 119,777 786,340
70,426,188 1,651,187 17,369,860 5,381,365 12,503,180 107,331,570
41,587,366 2,236 445,206 41,984,808
42,592,777 250,745 42,843,522
9,050,060 26,331 87,345 6,811,561 15,956,188
5,592,315 138,670 567,658 6,298,643
1,736,656 123,618 5,760,718 498,670 24,865 8,142,528
7,167 464 537,388 24,173 743,709 333,685 8,806,328
641,241 3,464,981 2,673,592 4,809,328 11,588,152
3,530,000 1,494,000 5,024,000
95,579 2,905,470 1,660,063 4,860,812
77,707,538 1,397,837 15,852,289 5,214,926 15,333,402 115,505,992
(7,281,350} 253,350 1,517,361 166,439 (2,830,222) (8,174,422)
95,579 95,579
2,482,510 30,000 985,870 2,059,388 5,557,868
{1,136,854) {1,161) {1,968,820) (487,898) (475,585) {4,071,298)
1,345,656 124,418 (1,968,820) 498,074 1,682,823 1,582,151
{5,935,694) 377,768 (451,459) 664,513 (1,247,399} (6,592,271)
29,737,393 1,002,303 63,347,381 {1,397,156) 13,500,876 306,190,797
$23,801,699 $1,380,071 $62,895,922 ($732,643) $12,253,477 $99,599,526

See accompanying notes fo financiat statements
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CITY OF CONCORD
Reconcitiation of the
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
with the
STATEMENT OF ACTMTIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

The schedule below reconciies the Nat Changes in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Batance, which maasures only changes in currant assets and current
liabilities on tha modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Assets of Goverhmental Activities reported in the
Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual basis.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANGES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (86,592,271)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activifies
are different becsuse of the foliowing:

CAPITAL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS

Governmental Funds report capitei outlays as expenditures. However,
in tha Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over
their estimated useful lives and repcried as depreciation expense.
The capital outiay and other expenditures are therefore added back fo fund balanca 9,184,710

Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance
(Depreciation expense is net of internal service fund depreciation of $3,753,916
which hes already been aliocated to serviced funds.) (20,389,813)

LONG TERM DEBT PROCEEDS AND PAYMENTS

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to Governmental Funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the Governmentai Funds, but
in the Statement of Net Assets the repayment reduces long-term liabilities.

Repayment of debt principal is added back fo fund balance 5,024,000
Amortization of loss on refunding Is deducted from fund balance (296,027)
Proceeds from jong-term debt (95,579)

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS

The amounts befow included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in
Governmental Funds (net change):

Long-Term Compenseated Absences and pension costs (%,153,457)
Deferred Revenus 30,108
Interest Payable 61,081

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTIVITY

Internal Servics Funds are used by manegement fo charge the costs of certain ectivities,
such as equipment acquisition, maintenance, and insurancs fo individual funds.
The portion of the net revenue {expense) of these Internal Servica Funds arising out
of their transactions with Governmenta Funds is reported with governmental activities,
because they service those ectivities,
Change in Net Assets - Ali Internal Service Funds, less contributions from
Govemmental Funds {4,575,923)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (818,803,171}

see accompanying notes fo financiat stetements
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CITY OF CONCORD
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
‘ BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

REVENUES:
Taxes
Property
in Lieu Property Tax VLF
Sales
Sales Tax In Lieu
Transient Occupancy
Franchises
Business License
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
Parks and Recreation
Use of Money and Property
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current

General Government:

Council

Manager

Aftorney

Human Resources

Finance

Total General Government

Public Safety
Public Works
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services
Planning & Economic Development
Community & Recreation Services

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES QVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURGCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (Ouf)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative}
$14,109,926 $13,053,288 $12,087,563 {$65,725)
9,539,712 9,259,712 9,201,212 {58,500)
22,550,000 17,656,000 17,757,881 101,981
7,500,000 7,500,000 6,496,005 {1,003,995)
2,170,000 2,067,342 1,710,767 {356,575)
3,966,426 3,966,426 4,128,525 162,099
3,300,000 2,870,000 3,262,763 392,763
1,356,086 4,149,754 1,262,916 113,162
1,051,839 1,134,839 808,849 (322,990)
7,124,943 7,124,943 7,271,613 146,670
909,187 959,187 1,044,448 85,261
2,981,808 2,981,808 2,869,639 (112,169}
1,127,804 825,794 1,083,367 257,573
180,895 180,995 540,540 359,545
77,868,816 70,727,088 70,426,188 (300,900)
412,854 410,378 300,388 100,990
3,129,657 3,057,156 3,320,060 {262,904)
1,635,480 1,628,785 1,551,835 76,950
1,631,039 1,528,651 1,361,537 167,114
4,792,091 4,742,692 5,024,546 (281,854}
11,601,131 11,367,662 11,567,366 (199,704}
42,177,592 41,086,650 42,592 777 (1,506,127}
9,827,489 9,626,510 9,050,960 575,550
6,014,543 5,697,638 5,582,315 105,323
1,858,886 1,850,100 1,736,656 113,444
7,494 342 7,332,678 7,167,464 165,214
78,973,983 76,961,238 77,707,538 (746,300}
(1,105,167} (6,234,150) {7,281,350) {1,047,200)
668,950 2,254,515 2,482,510 227,995
(1,776,799) (1,776,799} (1,136,854} 639,945
{1,107,839) 477,716 1,345,656 867,940
{$2,213,006) ($5,756,434) {5,935,694) ($179,260)
29,737,393
$23,801,699

See accompanying notes {o financial statements
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds account for City operations financed and operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise. The intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed
primarily through user charges.

The concept of major funds extends to Proprietary Funds. GASB 34 does not provide for the disclosure
of budget vs. actual comparisons regarding proprietary funds. The City reports all Enterprise Funds as
major funds:

Sewer Fund. To account for activities associated with sewage transmission and treatment.

Goif Course Fund. To account for activities associated with the development, operation and
maintenance of the Diablo Creek Golf Course.
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CIYT OF CONCORD
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities ~
Internal Service
Sewer Golf Course Totals Funds
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments (Note 3) $29,142,573 $29,142,573 $20,403,252
Cash with Fiscal Agents {Note 3) 6,937,233 252,939 7,190,172 41,660
Accounts Receivabie 21,054 45,932 66,986 444,992
Interest Receivable 13,770 13,770 20,745
Prepaid ltems 16,918
Total Current Assets 36,114,630 298,871 36,413,501 20,597,667
Non-Current Assets:
Advances io Other Funds {Note 4) 550,000 550,000
Debt Issue Costs (Net of Amartization) 48,616 48,616
Net OPEB Asset (Note 12) 9,516,723
Capital Assets (Note 7):
Land 334,838 60,344 395,182
Construction In Progress 12,194,285 453,643 12,647,828 13,696
Buildings and Improvements 2,824,944 5,389,313 8,214,257 73,700,490
Magchinery and Equipment 237,450 136,177 373,627 16,550,887
Sewer Collection System 196,538,010 196,538,010
Less: Accumulated Depreciation {126,910,893) {2,586,443) {129,497 336) (39,160,663)
Net Capital Assets 85,318,634 3,452 934 88,671,568 51,104,410
Total Non-Current Assets 85,768 634 3,501,550 89,270,184 60,621,133
Total Assets 121,883,264 3,800,421 425,683,685 81,218,700
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities (Payable fram Current Assets);
Accounts and Contracts Payable 14,790,365 10,890 14,801,255 48,398
Compensated Absences Payable (Note 1) 196,241 196,241 181,224
Bond Interest Payable (Note &) 398,637 38,773 437,410 39,282
Due to Other Fund (Note 4) 154,688 154,688
Capital Lease Payable (Note 8) 327,763
Certificates of Participation {(Note 8) 705,000 135,000 840,000
Judgment Obligation Bonds {Note 8) 330,000
Claims Payable (Note 14} 2,180,542
Total Current Liabilities 16,090,243 339,351 16,429,594 3,107,209
Noncurrent Liabiiities:
Compensated Absences Payable (Naote 1) 47,154 47,164 26,510
Advance from Other Funds {Note 4) 616,419 616,419
Capital Lease Payable (Nate &) 512,538
Claims Payable (Note 14) 4,940,468
Judgment Obligation Bonds {Note 8) 1,900,000
Certificates of Participation (Note &) 22,230,000 1,620,000 23,750,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 22,277,154 2,136,419 24,413 573 7,379,516
Total Liabilities 38,367,397 2,475,770 40,843,167 10,486,725
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 69,220,867 2,099,489 71,320,356 50,264,109
Unrestricted 14,295,000 (774,838) 13,520,162 20,467,866
Total Net Assets Business-Type Activities $83,515,867 31,324,651 $84,840,518 $70,731,975

See accompanying notes fo financial statemenis
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CITY OF CONCORD
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES iN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Iniernai Service
Sewer Goif Course Totals Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Service Fees $18,296,077 $18,296,077 .
Charges for Services $18,651,975
Golf Course Fees and Charges $1,422,154 1,422,154
Claims Settlement 85,802
Other 47,275
Total Qperating Revenues 18,296,077 1,422 154 19,718,231 18,785,052
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating and Maintenance 13,704,022 1,445,651 15,149,673 10,725,677
Cost of Sales and Services 4,727,000
Depreciation and Amortization 4,014,445 148,455 4,162,900 3,753,916
Claims and Judgments 3,471,993
Total Operating Expenses 17,718,467 1,594,106 19,312,573 22,678,586
Operating Income (Loss) 577,610 {171,952) '405,658 {3,893,534)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income 807,11 2,060 809,161 423,235
Inierest Expense (969,788) (85,889) {1,055,677) (162,597)
Gain from Disposition of Capital Assets 35,896
Other 52,450 52,450
Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) {162,677) {31,389) {194,066) 296,534
Income (Loss) Befare Contributions and
Transfers 414,933 (203,341) 211,592 (3,597,000}
Contributions 117,915 117,915 524,050
Transfer in {Note 4) 25,645 25,645 610,581
Transfer Qut (Nole 4) {9,244) (9,244) (2,113,5654)
Change in Net Assets 523,604 (177,696) 345,908 {4,575,923)
Total Net Assets - Beginning 82,992,263 1,502,347 84,494 610 75,307,898
Total Net Assets - Ending $83,515,867 31,324,651 $84,840,518 $70,731,975

Ses accompanying notes to financial statements
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CiTY OF CGNCORD
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmentai
Activities -
Internal Service
Sewer Golf Course Totals Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Cusiomers $18,275,023 51,448,145 $19,723,168 $18,744,512
Payments {o Suppliers (13,999,193) {1,364,320) (15,363,513) (12,037,213}
Payments tq Employees (1,269,369) {78,712) {1,348,08%) (4,824,251)
Claims paid (3,451,303)
Net Cesh Provided by Operating Activities 3,006,461 5113 3,011,574 {1,568,255)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIMTIES
Borrowings of Advences From/To Other Funds 154,688 154,688
Other Non-Operating Revenue 52,450 52,450
Transfers In 25,645 25,645
Transfars {Out) {9,244) (9,244) (1,502,973)
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activilies (9,244) 232,783 223,539 (1,502,978}
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTMTIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (9,562,433) {109,478) (9,671,911) (1,408,484)
Proceeds from saie of Capitel Assets 35,896
Principal Paid on Debt, Bond Maiurities (680,000} (125,000) (805,000} (315,000)
interest and Fiscal Charges Paid {979,116} {91,614} (1,070,730} (170,458)
Cash Fiows from Capitel and Related
Financing Acilvities {11,221,549) (326,092) (11,547,641) (1,858,046}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 820,865 2,050 822,915 534,596
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 820,865 2,050 822,915 534,596
Net increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (7,403,467} {86,146} (7,489,613} {4,394,678)
Cash and Investments at Beginning of Period . 43,483,273 339,085 43,822,358 24,809,590
Cash and Investments at End of Period $36,079,806 $252,939 $36,332,745 $20,414,912
NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Contributions and Transfers of Capital Assets, Net $117,915 $117,915 $524,050
Reconciiiation of Operating Income {Loss) fo Net Cash Provided by
QOperating Activities:
QOperating Income (Loss) $577.610 (3171,952) $405,658 {53,893,534)
Adiustments to Reconcile Operating Income fo Nat Cash Provided
hy Oparating Activities:
Dapreciation and Amortizetion 4,014,445 148,455 4,162,900 3,753,916
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, Net (21,054} 25,991 4,937 {40,540)
Prepaid Expansas 60 &0 43,459
Net OPEB Asset (1,488,720}
Accaunts Payable {1,589,787) (2,782) (1,592,569} 32,446
Accrued Liabilities 25,187 5,401 30,588 4,018
Seif Insurance Claims Payabie 20,690
Net Cash Provided by Oparafing Activities $3,006,461 $5,113 $3,011,574 ($1,568,255)

See accompanying notes {o financial staternents
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds — Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the City as a trustee agent for
individuals, private organizations, and other governments. The financial activities of these funds aré
excluded from the City-wide financial statement, but are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial
statements.
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CITY OF CONCORD
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

City of Concord
Retirement System
Pension Trust

ASSETS:
Cash and Investments (Note 3)

Money Market Funds $25,713,992
Corporate Debf Instrumentis 5,366,712
California Local Agency Investment Fund 4,747,851
Federal Agencies : 3,051,706
Pooled investmenis 2,439,642
Common Stock 3,002,113
Mutual Funds 865,140

Total Cash and investments 45,187,156

Receivables (Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles):

Interest 19,867
Total Assets 45,207,023
LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Employee Retirement System $45,207,023

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CiTY OF CONCORD
PENSION TRUST FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

City of Concord
Retirement System
Pension Trust

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $539,895
Total Contributions 539,895
investment [ncome 2,507,470
Less Management Expenses (96,666)
Net Investment Income 2,410,804
Total Additions 2,950,629
DEDUCTIONS
Retirement and Other Benefits 7,502,883
Total Deductions 7,502,883
NET DECREASE IN NET ASSETS {4,552,184)

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS

Beginning of Year 49,759,207

End of Year $45,207,023

See accompanying nates {a the financial statements
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Concord was incorporated in 1905 and operates under the Council-Manager form of
government. The City provides the following services: public safety (police services and building
inspection), highways and streets, sewer collection, leisure services, public improvements, planning
and zoning, redevelopment and general administration services.

The financial statements and accounting policies of the City of Concord conform with generally
accepted accounting principles applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standard
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

Reporting Entity

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial activity of the City, which is the
primary government presented, along with the financial activities of its component units, which are entities
for which the City is financially accountable. Although they are separate legal entities, blended
component units are in substance part of the City's operations and are reported as an integral part of the
City’s financial statements.

The City’'s component units which are described below are all biended.

The Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord was formed in March 1973 for the purpose of
renovating designated areas within the City limits. The City Council sits as the Governing Board of the
Agency, which is a component unit of the City and is accounted for in the fund established by the City.
The Agency adopted the Redevelopment Plan in November 1974. The Plan established the Central
Concord Redevelopment Project, which includes approximately 870 acres in the City's Central
Business District.

The City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority is a nonprofit corporation organized by the
City of Concord and the Concord Redevelopment Agency under the laws of the State of California. The
Authority was organized to provide financial assistance to the City by financing real and personal
properties and improvements for the benefit of the residents of the City and surrounding areas.
Administrative and related normal business expenses incurred in the day-to-day operations of the
Authority are provided by the City. Such expenses are insignificant to the Authority’s operations. The
Authority obtains financing for City and Agency sponsored projects using leases signed by the City or
Agency as collateral. The amounts of the leases are calculated to provide sufficient resources to repay
the debt incurred to finance the projects.

Concord Sanitary Sewer Services, Inc. was formed to finance the acquisition, construction and
improvement of sewer facilities in the City of Concord. The facilities were constructed in accordance
with the City's specifications on City property leased back to the City for a rental sufficient to meet the
debt service obligations of the underlying bonds. The lease agreement expired in fiscal year 2001-2002
and all bonds were fully paid and retired, at which time title to the sewer facilities transferred to the City

and remaining surpius funds were distributed to the City. Concord Sanitary Sewer Services, Inc. is
currently inactive.

The City of Concord Retirement System is governed by the City's Retirement System Ordinance,
Article 1i, Chapter 8 of the City of Concord Municipal Code, and is used to account for contributions and
investment income restricted to pay retirement and death benefits of general and police employees,
The Plan’s benefit provisions are frozen and retirement and death benefit payments are restricted to
eligible employees who retired or left the City of Concord eligible for a pension prior to June 28, 1999.
Contribution provisions are established by the City Council. Eligibility, actuarial interest rates,
administration and certain other tasks are the responsibility of the Retirement Board established by the
above ordinance. Financial statements for the above component units can be obtained from the City of
Concord, 1950 Parkside Drive, Concord, CA 94519.
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The financial statements exclude the California Public Entity Insurance Authority, the Concord Plaza
Tower Inc., the Concord Pleasant Hill Aquatic Foundation, the Pavilion Associates, the Concord Senior
Citizens Club, and the Friends of Camp Concord, as they are administered by boards separate from
and independent of the City.

Basis of Presentation

The City’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board is the
acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards
followed by governmental entities in the United States of America.

Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall City government, except for fiduciary activities, Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish
between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each segment of the bhusiness-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a)
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a particular program and (¢) fees,
grants and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of capital assets.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including ali taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds,
including fiduciary funds and biended component units. Separate statements for each fund category-
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary-are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is
on major individual governmental and enterprise funds, each of which is displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor
funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Operating expenses result from the cost of providing
those services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. Al revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, resuit from nonexchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

Major Funds

The City's major governmental and business-type funds are identified and presented separately in the
fund financial statements. All other funds, called non-major funds, are combined and reported in a
single column, regardless of their fund-type.
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Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, fiabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses
equal to ten percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. The General Fund is
always a major fund. The City may also select other funds it believes should be presented as major
funds.

The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The major revenue
sources for this Fund are property taxes, sales taxes, unrestricted revenues from the State, charges for
services and interest income. Expenditures are made for public safety, most street work and other
services not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Housing and Community Services — The Housing and Community Services Fund accounts for
monies received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and California Housing
Finance Agency, and expended for development of jobs and suitable housing for low-income residents.

Redevelopment Agency — The Redevelopment Agency Fund accounts for all activities of the Agency,
including 1) tax increment allocations set aside for the purpose of increasing or improving housing for
low-income residents; 2) the accumulation of property taxes for payment of interest and principal on the
Redevelopment Agency tax allocation bonds issued in 1988, 1993, and 2004, and 3) capital projects
connected with downtown redevelopment funded by property tax increment revenues.

General Reimbursable Projects — To account for project costs that are reimbursable from grants and
to track job specific projects.

The City reported all its Enterprise Funds as major funds in the accompanying financial statements:
Sewer Fund - To account for activities associated with sewage collection, transmission and treatment.

Golf Course Fund —~ To account for activities associated with the development, operation and
maintenance of the Diablo Creek Golf Course.

The City also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds — These funds account for workers’ compensation costs, non-reimbursable
portion of insurance claims, post-retirement health care benefits, City facilities’ maintenance expenses,
maintenance and replacement costs of City licensed vehicles, motorized equipment, and technology
equipment; all of which are provided to other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the City as trustee agent for other
govermnmental units, private organizations or individuals. The City of Concord Retirement System Pension
Trust Fund, the only Fiduciary Fund of the City, accounts for accumulation of resources to be used for
retirement annuity payments at appropriate amounts and times in the future.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of
when the related cash flows take place.
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Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the
revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. General capital asset acquisitions are reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants entitements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Other revenues susceptible to accrual include intergovernmental revenues, interest and charges for
services.

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the
terms of grant agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical biock grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and
unrestricted net assets may be available to finance program expenditures, The City's policy is to first
apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenues if necessary.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related
fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule include accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay
and other employee amounts which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured,
and principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due. Financial
resources usually are appropriated in other funds for transfer to a debt service fund in the period in
which maturing debt principal and interest must be paid. Such amounts thus are not current liabilities of
the debt service fund, as their settlement will not require expenditure of existing fund assets.

The City follows Statements and interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board and its
predecessors that were issued on or before November 30, 1989, in accounting for its business-type
activities, unless they conflict with Government Accounting Standards Board pronouncements.

Land Held for Redevelopment
At June 30, 2009 the Redevelopment Agency held the following properties for resale or redevelopment:
a) During fiscal year 2009 the Agency purchased six parcels of land located in the downtown area

to assist in implementing the Agency’s Strategic Plan.

b) A parcel of land held by the Agency was purchased in fiscal year 2007 which will be held for
resale for future development projects.

c) A parcel of land held by the Agency was purchased in fiscal year 2004 which is to be sold in the
future for redevelopment projects.

d) A parcel of land was purchased in fiscal year 2002 which is to be sold in the future for the Town
Center Project.

e) One property purchased in fiscal year 2001 which is to be sold for the purpose of constructing a
new hotel in downtown Concord.
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f) Two parcels consisting of land and buildings purchased for redevelopment into an auto sales
center in fiscal year 1989. In fiscal year 2008, the Agency sold 3.8 acres of one of the parcels
to a developer. During fiscal year 2009, the Agency sold the other parcel for $170,000.

g) During the year ended June 30, 1999, the Agency purchased a parcel which is to be sold in the
future for development projects.

h) Five properties purchased between 1982-1987 which are being held for resale for future
development projects.

These parcels are accounted for as investments on the balance sheet at the lower of cost or net
realizable value.

Inventory and Prepaid items

Inventories are valued at cost (on the first-in, first-out basis). inventories of the General Fund consist of
expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure in the General Fund
at the time individual inventory items are consumed. Reported General Fund inventories are equally
offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not constitute available spendable
resources even though they are a component of net current assets.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items in governmental funds
are equally offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not constitute available
spendable resources even though they are a component of net current assets.

Property Taxes and Special Assessment Revenue

The County of Contra Costa levies, bills and collects property taxes for the City; the County remits the
entire amount levied and handles all delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties. Secured and
unsecured property taxes are levied on January 1 of the preceding fiscal year.

Secured property tax is due in two installments, on November 1 and February 1, and becomes a lien on
those dates. It becomes delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured property tax
is due on July 1 and becomes delinquent on August 31.

Compensated Absences

In governmental funds, Compensated Absences (unpaid vacation and sick leave) are recorded as
expenditures in the year paid, as it is the City's policy to liquidate any unpaid vacation or sick leave at
June 30 from future resources rather than currently available expendable resources. The City's liability
for Compensated Absences is determined annually. For all governmental funds, amounts expected to
be paid out for permanent liquidation are recorded as fund liabilities; the long term portion is recorded
in the Statement of Net Assets.

Compensated Absences are included in accrued liabilities. Compensated Absences are liquidated by
the fund that has recorded the liability. The long-term portion of governmental activities compensated
absences is liquidated primarily by the General Fund. Compensated Absences are accounted for by
Proprietary funds as expenditures in the year earmed. The changes in Compensated Absences of
governmental and business-type activities were as follows:
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Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Beginning Balance $4,071,310 $218,208 $4,289,518
Additions 3,080,937 72,459 3,163,396
Payments {2,978,744) {47,272) (3,026,016)
Ending Balance $4,183,503 $243,395 $4,426,898
Due in One Year $3,402,736 $196,241 $3,508,977

Renamed Funds

Activity previously reporied in the Special Developers Capital Projects Fund is now reporied in the
Special Developers Capita!l Projects Fund and the Intergovernmental Capital Projects Fund.

NOTE 2 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1.

The City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

The budget is legally enacted through passage of separate resolutions for the City and for the
Redevelopment Agency.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts from one program, department or
account to another within the same fund. All transfers of appropriations affecting Personnel
Service type accounts require the Director of Human Resources and City Manager approval.
Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level without City
Council approval.

The City is required to adopt an annual operating budget on or before June 30 for the ensuing
fiscal year for the General Fund, six Special Revenue Funds (State Gas Tax, Maintenance
Districts, Art in Public Places, Traffic System Management, Storm Water Management and
Monument Community Partnership) and two Debt Service Funds (Police Facilities Revenue
Bonds and ABAG). From the effective date of the budget, the amounts stated therein as proposed
expenditures become appropriations to the various funds. The City Council may amend the
budget during the fiscal year.

The City also adopts budgets for its Capital Projects, which are based on the project life rather
than a fiscal year. Therefore, capital project budgets may span several fiscal years. Project
appropriations transfers of $20,000 or more require City Council approval.

All governmental fund type annual operating budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles except capital outlay expenditures for two Special
Revenue Funds are budgeted on a project time frame rather than an annual basis.
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Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund
balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Appropriation Lapses
Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end unless budgeted on a project basis.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s dependence on property tax receipts, which are received semi-annually, requires it to
maintain significant cash reserves to finance operations during the remainder of the year. The City
pools cash from all sources and ali funds except Cash with Fiscal Agents so that it can be safely
invested at maximum yields. Individual funds are able to make expenditures at any time during the
year,

Policies

All investments are carried at fair value and as a general rule investment income is allocated among
funds on the basis of average monthly cash and investment balances in these funds, Interest income
on certain investments is allocated based on the source of the investment and legal requirements
which apply.

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with a
market value of 110% of the City’s cash on deposit, or first trust deed morigage notes with a market vaiue
of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held in a
separate investment pool by another institution in the City’'s name and places the City ahead of general
creditors of the institution.

Cash and investments are used in preparing proprietary fund statements of cash flows because these
assets are highly liquid and are expended to liquidate liabilities arising during the year.

Classification
Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below at June 30, 2009:

Internal
Governmental Enterprise Service
City: Funds Funds Funds Total
Cash and investments available for City operations $70,157,869 $29,142,573 $20,403,252 $119,703,604
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 6,844,628 7,190,172 11,660 14,046,480
Total cash and investments $77,002,497 $36,332,745 $20,414,912 133,750,154
Retirement System Pension Trust Fund:
Pooled cash and investmenis ' $1,985,162
California Local Agency Investment Fund 4,747 851
Public Agency Retirement Services 38,454,143
Total System cash and investments $45,187 156
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Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy

The City of Concord operates its investment activities under the prudent man rule. This affords the City
a broad spectrum of investment opportunities as long as the investment is deemed prudent and is
allowable under current statutes of the State of California. The City is authorized to invest in the
following types of instruments, and the table also identifies certain provisions of the California
Government Code, or the City's investment policy where it is more restrictive:

Minimum Maximum Maximum
Maximum Credit Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio In One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Bills, Bonds and Notes 5 years None None
Obligations issued by United States 5 years None None
Government Agencies
Bankers Acceptances 180 days 30% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days A1/P1/F1 25% (A) 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years A 30% None
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 years A 30% (A) None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A Top rating 5% 10%
category

California Local Agency Investment Fund N/A None $40 Miaccount
(LAIF)
Time Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% 10%
Derivative Securities (B) 5 years None None

(A) Total combined corporate debt (Commercial Paper and Medium Term Notes) may not
exceed 30% of the cost value of the portfolio.

(B) Investments in derivative securities will be made using the Prudent Investor Rule and
will be limited to federal agency callable issues.

Under the City's Investment Policy, investments not described above are ineligible investments. In
addition, the City may not invest any funds in inverse floaters, range notes, or interest only strips that
are derived from a poo! of mortgages in accordance with the California Government Code. With the
exception of callable federal agency securities, any security that derives its value from another asset or
index is prohibited. in addition, the City may not invest any funds in any security that could resuit in
zero interest accrual if held to maturity.
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Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal agents under
the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves
to be used if the City fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California Government
Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with City resolutions, bond indentures or State
statutes. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by
fiscal agents. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Minimum
Maximum Credit

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality
Federal Agency Securities{a) 5 years AAA
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund
Commercial Paper 270 days A1PF1
Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 180 days
Bank Deposits FDIC insured
US Government Treasury Obligations
State/ Local Obligations AAA
Federal Securities
Corporate Notes AAA
Repurchase Agreements AAA
Money Market Mutual Funds AAA
Investment Agreements AAA

(a) For the ABAG 41 Certificates of Participation, the investments in federal agency securities
may not exceed 10% of the investment amount.

Retirement System Authorized Investments

The System’s investment policy authorizes the System to invest in financial instruments in three broad
investment categories: equity, fixed income, and real estate. These financial instruments can include,
but are not limited to, corporate bonds, commercial paper, U.S. government securities, common and
preferred stock, real estate investment trusts, and mutuai funds. Fixed income investments may
include bonds and commercial paper in order to provide added flexibility in managing the fixed income
portfolio.

The asset allocation ranges for the plan are as follows:
Allocation Ranges

Target Mix Minimum Maximum

Large/Medium Cap 20% 10% 35%
Domestic Equity

International Equity 5 2 12
Small Cap Equity 5 2 12
Domestic Real Estate 0 0 8
Domestic Fixed Income 65 50 80
Cash 5 0 20
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The System’s investment policy authorizes the System to invest in financial instruments in three broad
investment categories: equity, fixed income, and real estate. These financial instruments can include,
but are not limited to, corporate bonds, commercial paper, U.S. government securities, common and
preferred stock, real estate investment trusts, and mutual funds. Fixed income investments may
include bonds and commercial paper in order to provide added flexibility in managing the fixed income
portfolio.

Interest Rate Risk

interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways the City manages its exposure to interest
rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing
cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s and Retirement System’s investments
(including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the City's investments by maturity or earliest call date:

City and Fiscal Agents:

Remaining Maturity {in Months)

12 months or

Less 13 {0 24 Months 251036 Months  Over 36 Months Total
investment Type:
Federal Agency Securities $1,204,977 $8,008,752 $11,090,1986 $12,109,790 $32,503,715
Money Market Funds 25,000 25,000
(U.S. Securities)
Corporate Bonds 2,532,400 5,843,060 2,027,600 10,403,060
LAIF 75,811,080 75,811,080
Held by bond trustee:
Money Market Funds 2,039,053 2,039,053
(U.8. Securities)
Federal Agency Securities 5,604,351 5,604,351
LAIF 6,403,056 6,403,056
Total $93,619,917 $13,941,812 $13,117,796 $12,109,790 132,789,315
Cash deposits with banks and on hand 960,839
Total Cash and Investments $133,750,154
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Retirement System Pension Trust Fund:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 months or 131024 251060
Less Months Months Over 60 Months Total
Investment Type:
Money Market Mutual Funds $25,713,992 $25,713,092
Corporate Debt instruments $264,375 $1,835,141 $3,167,196 5,366,712
LAIF 4,747,851 4,747,851
Federal Agency Securities 628,151 2,423,555 3,054,706
Pooled Investments 2,439,642 2,439,642
Total $32,901,485 $264,375 $2,563,292 $5,590,751 41,319,903
Non-Maturing Investments:
Common Stock 3,002,113
Mutual Funds 865,140
Total Cash and Investmenis $45,187,156

The City and the Retirement System are participants in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that
is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California, The City reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF,
which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand,
and is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost
basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obiligations, mortgage-
backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate
securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury

Notes and Biils, and corporations. At June 30, 2009, these investments have an average maturity of
235 days.

Money market funds and mutual funds are available for withdrawal on demand and at June 30, 2009,
have an average maturity of 47-49 days.

Fair value of investments

GASB Statement 31 requires governments to present investments at fair value. The City adjusts the
carrying value of its investment to reflect the fair value at each fiscal year-end, and it includes the effect
of this adjustment in income for that fiscal year. At June 30, 2009, the cost of investments was
$165,574 less than the City's fair market vaiue. The City has included the following net increases in
the fair value of investments in income as follows: $8,307 in General Fund, $43,305 in the Sewer
Enterprise Fund, $29,545 in the Redevelopment Agency Fund, and $84,417 in all other funds. The
City holds investments to maturity.

At June 30, 2009, the cost of the Retirement System’s investments was $9,470 less than the City’s fair
market vaiue.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2009 for each investment type as
provided by Standard & Poor’s for the City’s investments and Moody’s for the Retirement System.

City and Fiscai Agents

Investment Type AAA/AAAM  AA+H/AATAA-  A+/ATA BB+ Total
Federal Agency Securities $38,108,066 $38,108,088
Corporate Bonds 1,526,880 $5,087,670 $3,031,580  $756,930 10,403,060
Money Market Funds

- (U.S. Securities) 2,064,053 2,064,053
Totals - $41,698,999 $5,087,670 $3,031,580  $756,930 50,575,179

Not rated:
California Local Agency Investment Fund 82,214,136
Total Investments $132,789,315

Retirement System Pension Trust Fund:

Investment Type Aaa/Aaam  Aai/Aa2/Aa3 A1/A2/A3 Bal/BaZ/Bal Total

Money Market Mutuai Funds $25,713,992 $25,713,992
Corporafe Debt Instruments $1,002,821  $2,148,690 $2,125,201 5,366,712
Federal Agency Securities 3,051,706 3,051,706

Totals $28,765,698 $1,002,821  $2,148,600 $2,125,201 34,132,410
Not rated:
Local Agency Investment Fund 4,747 851
Common Stock 3,002,113
Muiuai Funds 865,140
Pooled Investments 2,439,642

Total Investments $45,187,156
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Investments in the securities of any individual issuer, other than U. S. Treasury securities, mutual
funds, and external investment fund that represent 5% or more of total Entity-wide investments are as

follows at June 30, 2009:

Fund issyer Type of Investments Amount
Entity Wide:
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities $14,139,722
Federal Horme Loan Bank Federal Agency Secutities 11,140,628
Major Governmental Funds:
Redevelopment Agency Federa! Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities 3,322,075
Non Major Governmental Funds Federai Horme Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities 727,970
Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Securities 704,930
Proprietary Funds:
Goif Course Federal National Mortgage Association Federat Agency Securities 319,968

Current interfund Balances

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Current Interfund balances arise out of short term cash flow needs and are due from one fund to
another, all of which are expected to be repaid in the normal course of business. At June 30, 2009 the
interfund balances are as follows;

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS AMOUNT
General Reimbursable Projects Fund Special Developers Capital Projects Fund $688,0993
Golf Course Enterprise Fund General Fund 154,688
Monument Community Partnership
Special Revenue Fund Genera! Fund 17,128
intergovernmental Capital Projects Fund Speciat Developers Capital Projects Fund 591,850
. $1,452,659
Long-Term Interfund Advances
At June 30, 2009 the funds below had made the following advances:
Amount of
Fund Receiving Advance Fund Making Advance Advance
General Fund Sewer Enterprise Fund $550,000
Golf Course Enterprise Fund General Fund 616,419
Special Developers
Capital Projects Fund General Fund 804,247
Maintenance District
Special Revenue Fund Traffic Systems Management Special Revenue Fund 477,000
$2,447 666
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The General Fund advance will be repaid in installments starting in fiscal year 2014 and bears no
interest.

The Golf Enterprise Fund advance was made during fiscal years 2007 and 2008 and will be factored
into the next 10 year budget plan and repaid as business improves within the regional golf market.

The Special Developers Fund advance will be repaid in instaliments starting in fiscal year 2009 and
bears interest of 3% as described in the City's Capital improvement Program 10 year plan.

The Maintenance Districts Fund advance will be repaid in 6 annual payments beginning in fiscal year
2010 and bears interest from 3.5 - 5%.
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Transfers between funds

With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another without a
requirement for repayment. Transfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 were
as follows:

Amount
Fund Recejving Transfers Fund Making Transfers Purpose Transferred
Redevelcpment Agency
General Fund Low and moderate Income Housing Fund  To Fund Operating Costs §38,047
Redevelcpment Agency
General Fund Capital Projects Fund To Fund Operating Costs 499,807
General Reimbursable Projects
General Fund Capital Projects Fund To Fund Operating Costs 122,116
Sewer
General Fund Proprietary Fund To Fund Capital Projects 9,244
State Gas Tax
General Fund Speclal Revenue Fund To Fund Capital Projects 16,569
Mainfenance Districis
General Fund Special Revenue Fund To Fund Administrative & General Services 203,394
Traffic System Management
General Fund Special Revenue Fund To Aliocate Interest Earnings 2,881
Speciai Devalopers
General Fund Capita Projects Fund To Fund Capitai Projects 71,333
Intergovernmental
General Fund Capitai Projects Fund To Fund Capltai Projects 5,566
Risk Managemsnt/Liability
General Fund Infernal Service Fund To Fund Operating Costs 50,000
Fleet Maintenance
General Fund Intermatl Service Fund To Fund Cperating Costs 175,404
information Technolegy Replacement
General Fund Internal Service Fund To Fund Qperating Costs 1,000,661
Buitding Mainienance
General Fund internal Service Fund To Fund Operating Costs 287,489
Redeveiopment Agency
Housing & Community Services Capital Projects Fund Te Fund Interest on Notes 30,000
Generat Reimbursable Projects General Fund To Fund Capital Projects 831,671
Housing & Community Services
Generai Reimbursebie Projects Special Revenue Fund To Fund Capital Projects 1,164
Redevelopment Agency
General Raimbursabie Projects Capital Projects Fund To Fund Capital Projects 1,371
State Gas Tax
General Reimbursable Projecis Special Revenue Fund To Fund Capitai Projects 26,056
Speclai Davelopers
General Reimbursable Projects Capital Projects Fund To Fund Capital Projects 3,885
Intergovernmentat
General Reimbursable Projects Capltal Projects Fund To Fund Capital Projects 122,826
Genera! Relmbursable Projects
Golf Course Capital Projects Fund To Fund Capita!l Projects 25,645
Special Revenue Funds:
Intergovernmentat
State Gas Tax Capitai Projects Fund To Fund Capital Projects 25,056
Maintenance Districts General Fund To Fund Downtown Maintenance Pregrams 203,394
Debt Service Funds:
Redeveiopment Agency
Police Faciiities Revenue Bonds Capital Projects Fund Te Fund Debt Services 676,565
Redevelopment Agency
Parking Structure Revenue Bonds Capital Projects Fund To Fund Debt Services 723,040
ABAG General Fund To Fund Debt Services 91,208
General Reimbursabie Projects
Pedforming Arts Revenue Bonds Capitat Projocts Fund To Fund Debt Services 335,133
Capital Projects Fund: General Reimbursable Projects
Special Developers Capital Projects Fund To Fund Capliai Projects 5,002
Internat Sarvice Funds:
Waorkers' Compensation
Risk Management/Liabilify Internai Service Fund To Fund Aniicipated Costs Per Budget 800,000
Information Technology Replacement  Generai Fund To Fund Equipment Purchase 10,681
Total Transfers $6,194,094
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Internal Balances

Internal balances represent the net interfund receivables and payable remaining after the elimination of
all such balances within governmental and business—type activities.

Note 5 — Loans, Notes Receivable and Development Agreement

The City and Agency engage in programs designed to encourage business enterprises or construction
or improvement in low-to-moderate income housing or other projects. Under these programs, grants or
loans are provided under favorable terms to businesses, home-owners or developers who agree to
spend these funds in accordance with the City’s terms. Although these loans and notes are expected to
be repaid in full, their balance has been offset by deferred revenue or a reservation of fund balance as
they are not expected to be repaid during fiscal year 2009. These loans and notes were comprised of
the following at June 30, 2009:

Housing Assistance $362,350
Housing Conservation 3,080,246
Downtown Revitalization and

Low and Moderate income Housing Rehabilitation 14,450,446
Lakeside Apartments 2,893,850
Detroit Avenue Apartments 618,000
Virginia Lane 3,058,407
Lehmer's 1925 Market 190,400

Total ioans and notes receivable $24,623,699

Housing Assistance
This program provides housing assistance to Concord residents through a variety of housing
programs.

Housing Conservation
This program involves loans made to rehabilitate housing within the City of Concord which are funded
by Community Development Block Grant and Redevelopment Agency monies.

Downtown Revitalization and Low and Moderate Income Housing Rehabilitation

Low and no interest loans are made by the Redevelopment Agency to provide businesses assistance
for rehabilitating buildings in the downtown area and to businesses or individuals for the rehabilitation
of housing within the City of Concord owned and/or occupied by persons of iow and moderate income.
Included in these loans, are two loans amounting to $57,789 and $24,198, which were made to a
former and a current employee.

Lakeside Apartments

The City and the Agency entered into a $3,433,945 loan agreement with Lakeside Apartments, L.P. for
the acquisition and rehabilitation of Lakeside apartments. An additional loan of $283,000 was made in
fiscal year 2007 which brings the loan to $3,716,945. Of the $283,000, $110,000 is funded by
Community Development Block Grants, $93,000 is funded by Redevelopment Agency, and $80,000 is
funded by California State EAGR funds. The outstanding balance of the loan bears interest at a rate of
1% per annum. The repayments on the loan shall be made from residual receipts. The Agency expects
the loan to be repaid on November 5, 2058.
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Detroit Avenue Apartments

The City entered into a $600,000 ioan agreement with Standard Housing Company for the acquisition
and rehabilitation of a ten-unit apartment complex. The outstanding balance of the loan bears interest at
a rate of 3% per annum. The payment of interest commenced on July 1, 2005 and is due monthly in the
amount of $1,500. The Agency expects the loan to be repaid on April 30, 2014.

Virginia Lane

In June 1999, the City and the Agency entered into a $1,984,200 loan agreement with Virginia Lane
Limited Partnership for the rehabilitation of Golden Glen and Maplewood Apartments. An additional
loan of $450,000 was made in fiscal year 2007 which brings the loan to $2,434,200. Of the $450,000,
$100,000 is funded by Community Development Block Grant funds and $350,000 is funded by Cal
FHA funds. The outstanding balance of the loan bears interest at a rate of 3% per annum. The
repayments on the loan shall be made from residual receipts. The Agency expects the loan to be
repaid on March 2, 2081.

Lehmer Investment Company Development Agreement

In August 2008, the City and the Agency entered into a $170,000 loan agreement with Lehmer
Investment Company for the purchase of the Agency’s parking lot at 1925 Market Street. The
outstanding balance of the loan bears interest at a rate of 3% per annum. Subsequently, the loan
agreement was amended in July 2009 to extend the payment terms. The monthly interest payments
will begin in August 2010. The Agency expects the loan to be repaid on August 28, 2012.

Fry's Electronics Development Agreement

The Agency entered into a $3,900,000 loan agreement with Fry's Electronics to provide assistance with
rehabilitation of the building and surrounding site improvements. The substance of the agreement is
that Fry's will be paid a portion of future sales tax revenues produced by the development. These
payments are conditioned on the generation of annual sales tax revenues by the development of at
least $500,000 per year, adjusted annually for inflation, and the Agency is not required to use any other
resources to pay these amounts. Beginning with the year that the sales tax collections first exceed the
threshold, the Agency has agreed to pay Fry's compound interest of 7% on the loan principal balance
not yet disbursed to Fry's, however the calculation of this annual interest due is limited to the lesser of
the actual calculation or the principal amount of the loan disbursed to Fry's in that year. The loan will
be forgiven after ten calendar years as long as the building continues to be operated by Fry’s
Electronics. In addition, the Agency has entered into an agreement with the City under which the City
has agreed to annually reimburse the Agency for any amounts that it has paid to Fry’s, but that
reimbursement is subordinated to the City's other obligations.

During fiscal year 2009, sales tax collections did not exceed the threshold, therefore the Agency did not
disburse interest to Fry’s in accordance with the terms of the agreement. At June 30, 2009, the
remaining portion of sales tax revenues subject to reimbursement was $3.9 million plus interest at 7%.
The agreement terminates in 2019, regardiess of whether the entire loan amount has been disbursed.
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NOTE 6 — EMPLOYEE COMPUTER LOANS

All full-time City employees who have completed their probationary pericd are eligible to obtain a loan
up to $3,000 with a 4% interest rate to purchase a computer. All requests for loans are subject to
review and approval by the Information Technology Department. Equipment purchased must be
compatibie with the City's computer equipment. Repayment of these loans is handled through payroli
deductions which are spread over the life of the loan, not to exceed three years. Employees must pay
off any outstanding balance of their loans upon ending employment with the City. As of June 30, 2009,
23 employees had $31,580 in loans due to the City. The program will be discontinued effective August
15, 2009, with no new loans being issued.

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed. The City’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding certain minimum
thresholds and with useful lives exceeding two years.

The City has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) capital assets, which include roads, bridges,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems in the government-wide
financial statements.

All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The
purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of
these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata
share of the cost of capital assets.

Depreciation of capital fixed assets in service is provided using the straight line method which means
the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense
each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The City has assigned the useful lives and capitalization
thresholds listed below to capital fixed assets.

Capitalization

Useful Lives Threshold
Ground improvements 25-33 Years $100,000
Buildings and improvements 25-33 Years 100,000
Machinery and equipment 5-10 Years 7,500
Vehicles 5-10 Years 7,500
Streets 30 Years 100,000
Sidewalks 50 Years 100,000
Storm drains/catch basins 100 Years 100,000
Traffic signals 30 Years 100,000
Sewer lines 40-50 Years 100,000

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
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Capital Asset Additions and Retirements
Capital asset transactions and balances comprise the following at June 30, 2009:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2008 Additions Retiremenis Transfers June 30, 2009
Governmenial Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $16,311,186 $16,311,196
Construction in progress 3,265,427 $504,254 ($1,320,433; 2,449,248
Total capital assets not being depreciated 19,576,623 504,254 (1,320,433} 18,760,444
Capital assets being depreciated:
Ground improvements 14,197,192 129,400 14,326,592
Buildings and improvements 77,739,396 160,747 77,900,413
Machinery and equipment 11,999,981 356,907 $4,902,888 1,030,316 8,484,316
Vehicles 7,722,984 869,640 526,053 8,066,571
Streets 409,223,373 6,555,051% 415,778,424
Sidewalks 44,405,115 831,871 44,936,986
Storm drains/catch basing 441,691,796 1,242,691 442 904,487
Street Lights 1,196,000 1,196,000
Traffic Signals 24,436,804 471,298 24,908,102
Total capital asseis being depreciated 1,082,312,641 10,297,458 5,428,941 1,320,433 1,038,501,591
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Ground improvements {7,205,463) {350,514} (7,555,977}
Buildings and improvements {25,661,594) (2,219,399} (27,880,993}
Machinery and equipment (9,693,101) (1,017,997} (4,902,888) (5,608,210}
Vehicles (6,739,722) {630,105) (526,053) (6,843,774)
Streets (169,113,118} {13,750,029) {182,863,147)
Sidewalks (16,878,804} (800,421) {17,769,225)
Storm drains/catch basins (74,023,770) {4,422,982) (78,448,752)
Traffic Signals (13,262,839) (822,415} (14,085,254)
Street Lights (136,000) (39,867) (175,867)
Total accumulated depreciation {322,714 411) {24,143,729) (5,428,941) (341,429,1989)
Governmental activily capital assets, net $729,174,853 ($13,342,017) $715,832,836
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $395,182 $395,182
Construction in prograss 2,981,318 $9,666,510 12,647,828
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,376,500 9,666,510 13,043,040
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvemenis 8,214,257 8,214,257
Machinery and equipment 574,091 9,535 $209,099 373,627
Sewer lines 196,429,630 108,380 196,538,010
Total cap#al assets being depreciated 205,217,978 117,915 209,099 205,125,894
Less accumuiated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (4.182,173) (224,763} {4,406,936)
Machinery and equipmant (568,433} (3,060) (209,099) (361,494}
Sewer lines (120,799,230) (3,929,676) (124,728,906)
Totai accumuiated depreciation (125,549,8386) (4,157,499} {209,999} {129,497 ,336)
Business-typa activity capital assets, net $83,044,642 $5,626,826 $88,671,568
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Construction in progress comprised the following at June 30, 2009:

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDED TO DATE

AUTHORIZATION June 30, 2009

Governmental activities:

Meadow Homes Fool $648,534 $262,335
City Financial System 452,999 420,424
Downtown Streetscape & Lighting 945,000 150,122
Citywide Entry Signage 1,017,594 927,607
Creek Drainage Repair 938,007 394,263
Miscellaneous Projects 1,290,523 294 497
Total $5,292,657 $2,449 248

Substantially all the project authorization amounts above are represented by signed contracts and have
been recorded as encumbrances.

Depreciation Allocation — Governmental Activities

Depreciation expense is charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the related assets.
The amounts allocated to each function or program were as follows:

Governmental Activities

Public Works $20,389,813
Internal Service Funds 3,753,916
Total $24,143,729

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Description and Activity
The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful
lives.equal to or greater than the related debt.

The City's governmental activities long-term debt is recorded only in the government-wide financial
statements. This debt will be repaid only out of governmentai funds but is not accounted for in these
funds because this debt does not require an appropriation or expenditure in this accounting period.

In governmental fund types, debt discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period.
Debt discounts and issuance costs incurred by proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized over
the term of the debt using the bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest
method.

The City’s debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail thereafter.
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Current Year Transactions and Balances
REPAYMENT CURRENT
JUNE 30, 2008 ADDITIONS  RETIREMENTS  JUNE 30, 2008 PORTION
Governmentat Activity Debt:
Revenue Bonds:
1993 Lease Revenue Bonds, 2.70- 5.25%,
due 08/0119 $6,100,000 $375,000 $6,725,000 $365,000
4995 Parforming Arts Lease Revenue Bonds,
6.33-8.24%, due 08/01/20 14,470,000 536,000 13,535,000 630,000
2001 Lease Revenue Bonds, 4.0-5,13%
due D3/01/23 7,670,000 385,000 7,305,000 380,000
Tax Allocation Bonds:
Series 1992
Capitaf Appreciation Bonds,
5.7-5.75% due 07/01/08 2,520,000 2,520,000
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Serles 2004
3,9-5.05%, dua 0770425 65,445,000 1,010,000 64,435,000 3,540,000
Less deferred amount an refunding {2,980,266) (296,027) {2,664,239)
Certificates of Participation:
ABAG 41 - Centre Concord
4,0-5.0%, due 8/01118 365,000 80,000 275,000 90,000
Judgment Obfigation Bonds:
1999 Series Bonds, 4.25% - 5.30%,
due 08/01114 2,545,000 315,000 2,230,000 330,000
Notes Payahte;
3%, due 09/02/13 2,260,064 %05,579 2,355,643
Assessment Districts, with City obligation:
#78, 6.75%, due 09/02/08 3,000 3,000
#80, 5.00%, due 09/02/14 80,000 15,000 55,000 15,000
#31, 6.00%, due 09/02/14 86,000 11,000 75,000 43,000
Capital Lease:
Key Government Finance, 4.66% due 9/15/12 1,155,633 315,532 840,301 327,763
Totat Government Activity Dabt $99,439,631 $95,579 $5,368,505 $94,176,705 $5,760,763
Business-Type Activity Debt;
2004 Certificates of Parlicipaticn - Wastewater
System Improvemert, 2.0-4.63%, due 2/01/29 $11,215,000 $365,000 $10,850,000 $375,000
2007 Certificates of Participation - Wastewater
System Improvemant, 3.75-4,50%, due 2/01/32 12,400,000 35,000 12,085,000 330,000
ABAG 41 Certificates of Participation - Diablc
Creek Golf Course, 4.0-5.0%, due 8/0118 1,780,000 125,000 1,655,000 135,000
Total Business Type Activity Debt $25,396,000 $B805,000 324,520,000 $840,000

Repayments on the above debt are made from the following sources:

Lease revenue received by the Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund.

Lease revenues received by Live Nation.

Incremental property taxes received by the Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund.
General and operating revenues available for lease payment in the ABAG Debt Service Fund
and Golf Course Enterprise Fund.

Operating revenues available for bond payment in the Risk Management internal Service Fund.
Notes payable received by the Housing and Community Services Special Revenue Fund.
Included is $1,950,000 in principal and the remaining balance is interest.

g. Special assessments received in the Assessment District Debt Service Fund.

h. Operating revenues received by the Sewer Enterprise Fund.

i. Operating revenues available for lease payment in the Information Technology Replacement
Internal Service Fund.

ooow
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Debt Service Reguirements
Debt service and capitalized lease requirements are shown below for all long-term debt:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
For the Year
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principai Interest
2010 $5,780,763 $4,747,190 $840,000 $1,037,771
2011 6,058,658 4,471,125 875,000 1,004,819
2012 6,160,880 4,182,545 805,000 972,787
2013 6,175,000 3,886,482 940,000 042,244
2014 8,805,643 3,580,918 975,000 908,087
2015-2019 35,690,000 12,442,324 5,510,000 3,903,782
2020-2024 22,285,000 3,821,625 5,525,000 2,778,754
2025-2029 5,885,000 305,173 6,820,000 1,471,257
2030-2032 ) 2,300,000 206,925
(Sub)Total $96,840,944 $37,437,382 $24,590,000 $13,227,426
Reconciliation of long-
term debt;
Less unamortized
deferred amount
on refunding {2,664,239)
Total __ 994,176,705

The City’s bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions regarding annual debt service
requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies through various restricted accounts and minimum
revenue bond coverages. City management believes the City is in compliance with all such indenture
requirements.

Revenue Bonds

On September 9, 1993 the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued the 1993 Lease
Revenue Bonds in the principal amount of $9,700,000, bearing interest at rates ranging from 2.7% to
5.25%, due August 1, 2019. The Bonds are collateralized by revenue received from the City by the
Authority under the lease agreement and by the Authority’s interest in the site and facilities lease.
Proceeds from the Bonds were used to finance a portion of the Police Facilities Project leased by the
City from the Redevelopment Agency. The Redevelopment Agency has agreed to reimburse the City
for these lease payments.

On August 1, 1995 the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued Lease Revenue Bonds
in the principal amount of $18,700,000, bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.33% to 8.24% due
August 1, 2020. The Bonds are collateralized by revenue received from the City by the Authority under
the Concord Pavilion lease agreement and by the Authority's interest in the site and facilities lease.
Proceeds from the Bonds were used to repay the Concord Performing Arts Center Authority's 1973
Revenue Bonds, due in 1999, and partially finance the renovation and expansion of Concord Pavilion
which is leased by the City from the Authority.
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On April 4, 2001 the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued Lease Revenue Bonds in
the principal amount of $9,580,000, bearing interest at rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.13% due March 1,
2023. The Bonds are collateralized by revenue received from the City by the Authority under the Civic
Center and Corporation Yard lease agreement and by the Authority’s interest in the site and facilities
lease. Proceeds from the Bonds were used to finance the design and construction, and to equip and
landscape a new three-level, 432-space parking structure which is leased by the City from the
Authority. The Redevelopment Agency has agreed to reimburse the City for these lease payments.

Tax Allocation Bonds (TABs) Outstanding
Tax Allocation Bonds were issued in 1988 and 1993 by the Redevelopment Agency. The TABs are
special obligations of the Agency and are secured by the Agency's tax increment revenues.

Final principal payment for the Series 1993 Capital Appreciation Bonds of $2,520,000 was paid on July
1, 2008.

The pledge of future tax increment revenues ended upon repayment of the $2,520,000 in remaining
debt service on the 1993 Bonds which occurred July 1, 2008. For fiscal year 2009 tax increment
revenues amounted to $17,702,809 which represented coverage of 7.02 over the $2,520,000 in debt
service.

Tax Allocation Bonds were issued in 2004 by the Redevelopment Agency to defease the 1988 Current
Interest Term Bonds, 1993 Senior Current Interest Term Bonds, and the 1993 Subordinate Term
Bonds. Interest payments on the 2004 TABs are payable semi-annually on January 1 and July 1. The
2004 TABs are special obligations of the Agency and are secured by the Agency’s tax increment
revenues.

The pledge of future tax increment revenues ends upon repayment of the $88,545,164 in remaining
debt service on the Redevelopment Agency’s Tax Allocation Bonds which is scheduled to occur in
2026. As disclosed in the originating offering documents, pledged future tax increment revenues are
expected to provide coverage over debt service of 1.63 over the life of the jong term debt. For fiscal
year 2009 tax increment revenues amounted to $17,702,809 which represented coverage of 4.53 over
the $3,909,771 in debt service.

Certificates of Participation

On July 1, 1998, the City issued $3,560,000 of Certificates of Participation (COPs) to fund Diablo
Creek Golf Course improvements and to defease $810,000 of outstanding ABAG XXIli Certificates of
Participation. Proceeds from the COPs were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for the future
debt service payments on the defeased COPs. The defeased COPs were called December 1, 1998.
The COPs bear interest at 4.0% - 5.0% and are due August 1, 2018. Principal payments are due
annually on August 1. Interest payments are due semi-annually on February 1 and August 1.

On February 1, 2004 the City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued Certificates of
Participation (COPs) in the principal amount of $12,605,000, bearing interest at rates ranging from
2.0% to 4.625% due February 1, 2029. Proceeds from the COPs were used to finance the first phase
of wastewater system capital improvement projects.
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On October 18, 2007, the City Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority issued Certificates of
Participation (COPs) in the principal amount of $12,820,000, bearing interest rates ranging from 3.75%
to 4.50%. Proceeds from the COPs were used to fund the next phase of the wastewater system
improvement project to install pipelines from the Concord pump station to the intersection of Meridian
Park Boulevard and Galaxy Way. Principal is payable annually on February 1 and interest is payable
semi-annually February 1 and August 1 through 2032.

Under related installment agreements, the City remits instaliments to the Authority which are used to
repay debt service on the 2004 and 2007 COPS. The City has pledged Wastewater System Net
Revenues defined as gross revenues less operating and maintenance expenses, to be used to make
required installments. The pledge of future Net Revenues ends upon repayment of the $35,701,528
million in remaining debt service on the COPS which is scheduled to occur in 2033. As disclosed in the
originating offering documents, projected net revenues are expected to provide coverage over debt
service of 3.40 over the life of the bonds. For fiscal year 2009, Wastewater System Revenues
including operating revenues and non-operating interest earnings amounted to $19,103,188 and
maintenance and operating costs amounted to $10,684,654 Net Revenues available for debt service
amounted to $8,418,534 which represented coverage of 5.07 over the $1,659,116 in debt service.

Judgment Obligation Bonds

On September 16, 1999, the City issued $4,620,000 of Judgment Obligation Bonds to fund the
payment of a judgment rendered by a Court. The Bonds bear interest at 4.25% - 5.3% and are due
semi-annually on March 1 and September 1. Principal payments are due annually on September 1 until
September 1, 2014.

Notes Payable

The City entered into two loan agreements with California Housing Finance Agency (CHFA);
$1,000,000 was used for a loan to Lakeside apartments (see Note 5), and $1,600,000 is to be used for
the Detroit Avenue Apartments loan (see Note 5) and a Multifamily Acquisition and Rehabilitation Loan
Program. As of June 30, 2007, the City had drawn down $1,950,000 from the loans, and the remaining
$650,000 will not be drawn down. The CHFA funds bear interest at a 3.0% simple rate and all
payments of principal and interest are deferred for a ten year period.

Capital Leases

On September 15, 2007, and October 15, 2007 the City entered into lease agreements in the amount
of $1,250,352 and $126,870, respectively with Key Government Finance, Incorporated, to acquire
equipment for network upgrades. The City agreed to pay the leases in monthly payments for $27,013
and $2,893, respectively, for 48 months.  Since the leases are in essence a financing agreement, the
cost of the equipment and the amount of the lease have been included in the City's financial
statements.

Special Assessment District Debt with City Obligation

Special assessment districts within the City have issued debt repayable out of special assessments
levied on property in each respective district. Under the terms of the special assessment bond
indentures, the City is obligated to be the purchaser of last resort of property on which any delinquent
special assessments have been levied and it therefore has reflected this debt as a liability in the
accompanying financial statements. At June 30, 2009 all these districts were in compliance with the
requirements of their respective debt covenants.

The pledge of future special assessment levies approximates and ends upon repayment of the
$241,790 in remaining debt service on the bonds which is scheduled to occur in 2015. For fiscal year
2009, special assessment revenues amounted to $67,052 while debt service amounted to $41,641.
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The City has an arrangement with Contra Costa County under which the County collects and remits all
special assessments levied by the Districts. The County remits the entire amount levied and is
responsible for collecting delinquent amounts; it retains any interest and penalties it collects. Taxes
collected during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 were sufficient to meet all debt service obligations
of the Special Assessment Districts.

NOTE 9 — NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCES

Net Assets are measured on the full accrual basis, while Fund Balance is measured on the modified
accrual basis.

Net Assets

Net Assets are the excess of all the City's assets over all its liabilities, regardiess of fund. Net Assets are
divided into three captions. These captions apply only to Net Assets, which are determined only at the
Government-wide level, and are described below:

Invested in Capital Assets, net of refated debt describes the portion of Net Assets which are represented
by the current net book value of the City's capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued
to finance these assets.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Assets which are restricted as to use by the terms and conditions
of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the City
cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include developer fees received for use on capital projects,
debt service requirements; redevelopment funds restricted to low and moderate income housing
purposes.

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Assets which are not restricted as to use.

Fund Equity

Fund equity consists of reserved and unreserved amounts. Reserved fund equity represents that
portion of a fund balance or retained earnings which has been appropriated for expenditure or is legally
segregated for a specific future use. The remaining portion is unreserved.

A portion of unreserved fund balance may be designated to indicate plans for financial resource
utilization in a future period, such as for general contingencies or capital projects. Such plans are
subject to change and may never be legally authorized or result in expenditures.

The General Reimbursable Projects Capital Projects Fund had deficit fund balance of $ 732,643 which
is expected to be eliminated by future grant revenue.

The Intergovernmental Capital Projects Fund had a deficit fund balance of $451,381 which is expected
to be eliminated by future revenue.
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Note 10 - City of Concord Retirement System Plan

Plan Description and Provisions

The Retirement System is a closed plan and is a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering
all full-time employees of the City retired prior to June 28, 1999 or who left the employment of the City
eligible for a pension. Participants are divided into two primary groups for coverage: general employees
and police employees. Membership in the Retirement System comprised the following at June 30,
2009:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 229
Vested terminated employees 80
Total participants 309

On July 1, 1994 the City converted to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as described
in Note 11.

Eligibility, administration, actuarial interest rates and certain other tasks are the responsibility of the
Retirement Board. The Retirement Board consists of ten members, selected as foliows: the Mayor, City
Manager, City Attorney, Director of Human Resources, Director of Finance and one representative
from each of the five employee organizations.

During the year ended June 30, 1999 $56,300,000 was transferred from the Retirement System to
PERS to purchase prior years’ service credit for its active vested employees.

The Retirement System provides retirement and death benefits for general and police employees as
well as disability benefits for police employees. General employees are eligible for retirement benefits
at age 50, provided the employee has completed 20 years of service or has accumulated contributions
in excess of $500 and was employed before June 30, 1990 or has completed 5 years of service and
was terminated after July 1, 1991, Sworn police employees are eligible for retirement at age 50,
provided the employee has completed 20 years of service or has accumulated contributions exceeding
$500. Retirement benefits are determined based on the employee’s length of service, highest one-year
compensation upon retirement, and age at retirement.

Funding Status and Progress

The actuarial accrued liability was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at June 30, 2007.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the actuarial accrued liability include: (a) a rate of
return on the investment of present and future assets of 4.50 - 6.50% per year compounded annually, (P)
inflation rate of 3.5% {(c) annual post-retirement increases at 2% per year. Required contributions are
determined using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The plan is amortized using the CalPERS
Mortality Table on a closed basis.

For actuarial purposes, the value of the Plan's assets was determined to be fair value.

Audited annual financial statements and ten-year trend information are available from City of Concord,
1950 Parkside Drive, Concord, CA 94519.
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Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made

Prior to June 21, 1993 (see Note 11) contributions were made to the Retirement System by both the
City and the employee participants. City contributions were actuarially determined annuaily to provide the
Retirement System with assets sufficient to pay basic benefits not provided for by employees’
contributions. All general employees were required to contribute 6%, and all police employees were
required to contribute 8% of their base salary (decreased by a Social Security ailowance) to the
Retirement System. The City is funding the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability with an additional 1%
contribution of eligible employee salaries.

The City contributed 4% to 8% of this percentage on behalf of general empioyees, depending upon job
classification, and all of the contribution for sworn police employees.

The City maintains a program of death and disability benefits financed wholly by employer premium
payments under a group term life insurance policy and group long-term disability insurance policy.

Required contributions determined by the actuary are paid annually in full. Any refunds or additional
contributions are recognized as a plan reduction or addition in the year paid or received in accordance
with the terms of the Plan.

Trend Information

Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due and an indication of whether all required contributions have been made.
Assumptions used to compile data presented below are the same as those described above. The
actuarial value of the Plan’s assets was determined to be its fair value.

Schedule of funding status is as foliows:

Actuarial Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual {Overfunded)
Valuation Value Liability Percentage {Overfunded) Covered AAL Covered
Date of Assets {AAL) AAL Funded AAL Payroll Payroll
2007 $51,129,808 $70,922,000 72% $19,792,192 *N/A *N/A
2008 49,716,026 (a) *N/A *N/A *N/A *N/A *N/A
2009 45,187,156 (a) *N/A *N/A *N/A *N/A *N/A

*N/A  The Actuarial Study was not completed.
(a) Net assets available for benefits, since actuarial study not completed.
A schedule of required contributions determined by the actuary which were paid is as follows:

Fiscal Year Employee Employer Total

2006-2007 0 1,329,458 1,329,458
2007-2008 0 1,345,407 1,345,407
2008-2009 0 539,895 539,895

During fiscal 2008-09 the City accrued a Net Pension Obligation of $1,031,105 representing the
remainder of the Annual Required Contribution as determined by the Actuary.
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NOTE 11 - PENSION PLAN

CalPERS Safety and Miscellaneous Employees Pension Plans

On June 21, 1993 the City joined the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), an
agent multipie-employer public employee retirement system which acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating member employers.

The City joined PERS on a prospective basis and participates in two plans, the Safety (Police)
Employees Plan and the Miscellaneous Employees Plan. All qualified permanent and probationary
employees are eligible to participate. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
The City's employees participate in the separate Safety (police) and Miscelianeous (ail other) Employee
Plans. Benefit provisions under both Plans are established by State staiute and City resolution. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Funding contributions
for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS; the City must
contribute these amounts.

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2009, are summarized as follows:
SAFETY

5 years service
monthly for life

MISCELLANEOQUS
5 years service
monthly for life

Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments

Retirement age 50 50
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 3% 1.426-2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 9% 8%
Required employer contribution rates 22.341% 13.646%
Actuarially required contributions $5,718,425 $5,489,759

The City’s policy and labor contracts require the City to pay all PERS contributions for sworn safety
employees (Police) and 4%-8% for miscelianeous employees.

CalPERS determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Normal Method.
Under this method, the City’s total normal benefit cost for each employee from date of hire to date of
retirement is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost. Normal benefit cost
under this method is the level amount the City must pay annually to fund an employee's projected
retirement benefit. This level percentage of payroli method is used to amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are also used to
compute the actuarial accrued liability. The City does not have a net pension obiigation since it pays
these actuarially required contributions monthly. Annual Pension Costs, representing the payment of all
contributions required by CALPERS, for the last three fiscal years were as follows:

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed  Obligation
Safety Plan
June 30, 2007 $4,708,461 100% $0
June 30, 2008 5,303,294 100% 0
June 30, 2009 5,718,435 100% 0
Miscellaneous Plan
June 30, 2007 $4,827,905 100% $0
June 30, 2008 5,280,499 100% 0
June 30, 2009 5,498,759 100% 0
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CalPERS uses the market related value method of valuing the Plan’s assets. An investment rate of
return of 7.75% is assumed, including inflation at 3.00%. Annual salary increases are assumed to vary
by duration of service. Changes in liability due to plan amendments, changes in actuarial assumptions, or
changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a rolling thirty year
basis, Investment gains and losses are accumulated as they are realized and approximately seven
percent of the net balance is amortized annually.

The schedule of funding progress presents muilti-year trend information about whether the actuariai value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
The Plans’ actuarial value (which differs from market value) and funding progress over the most
recently available past three years, are set forth below at their actuarial valuation date of June 30:

Safety Plan:
Actuarial
Entry Age Unfunded Annual Unfunded
Valuation Accrued Value of {(Overfunded) Funded Covered (Overfunded)
Date Liability Asset Liability Ratio Payroll as % of Payroll
2005 $90,508,857 $72,308,264 $18,110,593 80.0% $14,133,510 128.1%
2008 100,408,742 80,722,975 19,685,767 80.4% 14,504,616 135.7%
2007 110,144,025 89,655,672 20,488,353 81.4% 14,869,004 137.8%
Miscellaneous Plan:
Actuarial
Entry Age Unfunded Annual Unfunded
Valuation Accrued Value of {Overfunded) Funded Covered {Overfunded)
Date Liability Asset Liability Ratio Payroll as % of Payroli
2005 $96,360,603 $79,342,456 $17,018,147 B82.3% $21,774,841 78.2%
2008 105,587,503 88,228,842 17,358,661 B83.6% 21,649,844 B0.2%
2007 116,003,479 97,759,057 18,244,422 B4.3% 22,182,982 82.2%

Audited annual financial statements and ten-year trend information are availabie from CalPERS at P.O.
Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709,

PERS has reported that the value of the net assets in the pians held for pension benefits changed as
follows during the year ended June 30, 2007, the most recent available:

2007
Safety Miscellaneous
Beginning Balance $85,327,679 $93,251,494
Contributions received 4,776,296 5,332,827
Benefits and Refunds Paid (3,105,782) (3,868,725)
Transfers and Miscellaneous Adjustments (46,428) (32,777)
Expected Investment Earnings Credited 16,359,392 18,013,634
Expected Actuarial Value of Assets $103,311,157 $112,698,453
Market Value of Assets $103,311,157 $112,698,453
Actuarial Value of Assets $89,655,672 $97,759,057

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 the City transferred $56,300,000 from the Concord
Retirement System to PERS to purchase prior years’ service credit for its active vested employees.
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Social Security

The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 (OBRA) mandates that public sector employees who
are not members of their employer’s existing system as of January 1, 1992 be covered by either Social
Security or an alternative plan.

The City's Local 780 union members, management and part-time seasonal and temporary employees
are covered under Social Security, which requires these employees and the City to each contribute
6.2% of the employees' pay. Total contributions to Social Security during the year ended June 30, 2002
amounted to $4,970,380 of which the City paid half.

NOTE 12 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT HEATH CARE BENEFITS

Substantially all full-time City employees and their eligible dependents are eligible for post-retirement
health care benefits under the CalPERS sponsored health plans currently funded during the employees
active service. During fiscal year 2008, the City implemented the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment_Benefits_QOther Than Pensions. This Statement establishes uniform financial
reporting standards for employers providing postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB).
Required disclosures are presented below.

By Council resolution and through agreements with its labor units, the City provides certain health care
benefits for retired employees (spouse and dependents are not included) under third-party insurance
plans. A summary of eligibility and retiree contribution requirements are shown below by bargaining
unit:

The City pays health insurance premiums up to $508, $1,017, $1,322 for a retiree, couple, and family,
respectively.

As of June 30, 2009, approximately 233 participants were eligible to receive benefits.

Funding Policy and Actuarial Assumptions

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a June 30, 2006 actuarial valuation
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. This is a projected benefit cost method, which takes
into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those already
accrued. The actuarial assumptions inciuded (a) 7.75% investment rate of return including 3%
inflation, (b) 3.25% projected annual salary increase, and (c) 4-5% health care costs inflation
increases. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to revision at least biannually as results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The City's OPEB unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll using a 30 year
amortization period.

in accordance with the City’s budget, the annual required contribution (ARC) is to be funded through
out the year as a percentage of payroll. Concurrent with impiementing Statement No. 45, the City
Council passed a resolution to participate the California Employers Retirees Benefit Trust (CERBT), an
irrevocable trust established to fund OPEB. CERBT is administrated by CalPERS, and is managed by
an appointed board not under the control of City Council. This Trust is not considered a component unit
by the City and has been excluded from these financial statements. Separately issued financial
statements for CERBT may be obtained from CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-
2709,
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Funding Progress and Funded Status

Generally accepted accounting principles permits contributions to be treated as OPEB assets and
deducted from the Actuarial Accrued Liability when such contributions are placed in an irrevocable trust
or equivalent arrangement. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City contributed
$6,237.160 to the Plan which represented 15% of $41,362,267 million of covered payroll. The City
also contributed additional funds to CERBT representing funds accumulated in prior years in the City’s
Internal Service Fund, As a result, the City has recorded the Net OPEB Asset, representing the
difference between the ARC, the amortization of the Net OPEB Asset and actual contributions, as
presented below:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $4,574,000
Interest on net OPEB asset (622,170)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 796,610
Annuail OPEB cost 4,748,440
Contributions made:
City portions of current year premiums paid 2,237,160
Contributions to CERBT 4,000,000
Total contributions 6,237,160
Change in net OPEB Asset 1,488,720
Net OPEB Asset at June 30, 2008 8,028,003
Net OPEB Asset at June 30, 2009 $9,516,723

The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) representing the present value of future benefits, included in the
actuarial study dated June 30, 2006, amounted to $48,085,000 miliion and was unfunded since no assets
had been transferred into CERBT as of that date. However, as of June 30, 2009, the City transferred
additional contributions to CERBT which along with investment income totaled $12,181,446 and reduced
the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

The Plan’s annual OPEB cost and actual contributions for fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and 2009 are
set forth below:

Percentage
Annual of Annual Net
OPEB Actuai OPEB Cost OPEB
Fiscal Year Cost Contribution Contributed Asset
6/30/2008 $5,997,529 $14,025,5632 234% $8,028,003
6/30/2009 4,748,440 6,237,160 131% 9,516,723
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The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits. Trend data from the actuarial studies is presented below:

Unfunded
Entry Age Unfunded Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Liability as
Actuarial  Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (A) {B) (B-~A) {A/B) (C) [(B —AYC]
6/30/2006 $0 $48,085,000 $48,085,000 0.00% $36,741,000 131%

NOTE 13 —~ DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

City employees may defer a portion of their compensation under City sponsored Deferred
Compensation Plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and 401K. Under
these plans, participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their compensation until distributed to
them; distribution may be made only at termination, retirement, death or in an emergency as defined by
the Plans.

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust for
the exclusive benefit of Plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these
plans are not the City’s property and are not subject to city control, they have been excluded from
these financial statements.

NOTE 14 — RISK MANAGEMENT AND INSURANCE

Insurance Risk Pool

In July 2003, the City joined the California State Association of Counties - Excess insurance Authority
(CSAC-EIA), a joint powers authority. CSAC-EIA provides coverage against the following types of loss
risks, including commercial insurance coverage, under the terms of a joint-powers agreement with the
City and several other cities and governmental agencies as follows:

Type of Coverage (Deductible) Coverage Limits
General Liability ($500,000) $35,000,000
Workers' Compensation ($500,000) Statutory
All Risk Property including Flood $600,000,000

($10,000 per occurrence all risk and $25,000 flood)
Earthquake (5% with a $100,000 minimum) $50,000,000

CSAC-EIA was established for the purpose of creating a risk management pool for ail California public
entities. CSAC-EIA is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of representatives of its member
public entities.

The City's deposits with CSAC-EIA are in accordance with formulas established by CSAC-EIA. Actual
surpluses or losses are shared according to a formula developed from overall loss costs and spread to
member entities on a percentage basis after a retrospective rating.
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Audited financial statements for CSAC-E!A are available from CSAC-EIA at 3017 Gold Canal Drive,
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670.

The City is self-insured for auto physical damage claims.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the amount of settlements did not exceed
insurance coverage.

Uninsured Claims Payable

The City provides for the uninsured portion of claims and judgments in its Risk Management (general
liability and auto physical damage) and Workers' Compensation Internal Service Funds. Claims and
judgments, including a provision for claims incurred but not reported, are recorded when a loss is
deemed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable.

The City’s liability for uninsured claims is limited to worker's compensation, general liability and auto
physical damage claims, as discussed above, which are reported at their present vaiue using expected
future investment yield assumptions ranging from 3 to 4 percent. In addition, the general fiability claims
are based on an eighty percent confidence level. The undiscounted worker's compensation claims
totaled $7,714,000 and undiscounted general liability claims totaled $688,551 at June 30, 2009.

The change in the claims liabilities, including claims incurred but not reported are based on independent
actuarial studies and were computed as follows for the years ended June 30:

WORKERS RISK
COMPENSATION MANAGEMENT/
INTERNAL SERVICE LIABILITY INTERNAL TOTAL TOTAL
FUND SERVICE FUND 2008 2008

Beginning balance $6,264,000 $836,320 $7,100,320 $6,840,039
Liahility for current fiscal year claims 627,346 1,500,000 2,127,346 2,771,498
Change in liability for prior fiscal year claims and

clgims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 1,500,585 (144,248} 1,365,337 {492,179)
Claims paid (2,136,931} (1,335,082} {3,471,993) {2,019,038)
Ending balance $6,264,000 $857,010 $7,121,010 $7,100,320
Current portion $1,760,483 $420,049 $2,180,542 $2,070,495

Health Care

The City provides its employees with a choice of five different medical insurance plans through
CalPERS. The City pays the premium up to $1,322 per month per employee. The City also provides its
employees with Dental Insurance paying premiums up to $188 per month per employee. The City also
provides long-term disability and life insurance to its employees.
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NOTE 15 - JOINT VENTURE

Salvio Grant Land Joint Venture

The Salvio Grant Land Joint Venture was formed in 1985 as an equal partnership by the
Redevelopment Agency and a local non-profit corporation to lease certain land for low-income/elderly
housing. The Heritage Building was constructed on that land by Plaza Towers Associates, which
leases the land from the Partnership under a lease which terminates in 2040.

The Joint Venture had no debt at the end of its fiscal year, December 31, 2008 the Redevelopment
Agency's equity in the Partnership’s assets was $1,404,484 at that date and its share of the
Partnership's net income for the year then ended was $47,224. The City made no monetary
contributions to the partnership during the year. Financial statements for the Partnership can be
obtained from the Concord Redevelopment Agency, 1950 Parkside Drive, Concord, CA 94519.

NOTE 16 —~ COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY

The City is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the City
Attorney there is no additiona! pending fitigation, which is likely to have material adverse effect on the
financial position of the City.

The City participates in several Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited
through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 by the City’s independent accountants in accordance with
the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and applicable State requirements.
No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of these audits; however, these programs are still
subject to further examination by the grantors and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time. The City expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 17 —~ SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The State of California adopted AB26 4X in July 2009 which directs that a portion of the incremental
property taxes which had been received in fiscal year 2008-07 by redevelopment agencies be paid
instead to the County supplemental educational revenue augmentation fund (SERAF) in fiscal years
2009-10 and 2010-11. The State Department of Finance will determine each agency’s SERAF
payment by November 15 of each year, and payments are due by May 10 of the applicable year.
Based on the calculations in AB26 4X, the Agency’s SERAF’s are estimated to be $6,016,369 in fiscal
year 2009-10 and $1,238,664 in fiscal year 2010-11. The Agency can use any legally available funds
to make the SERAF payments. The payment due in fiscal year 2009-10 represents 20% of the
Agency’s cash and investments available for operations at June 30, 2009. The obligation to make the
SERAF payment is subordinate to obligations to repay bonds, however if the Agency fails fo make the
SERAF payment the Agency may not encumber or expend future funds other than to pay pre-existing
indebtedness, contractual obligations and 75% of the amount expended on Agency administration for
the preceding fiscal year until the SERAF is paid in full.

On September 21, 2009, the City Council authorized staff to issue a tender offer for the 1995
Performing Arts Lease Revenue Bonds for up to $8.5 million. As a result the City purchased its $8.235
million of the bonds at an 8% premium. Funds were borrowed from three sources within the City and
will be repaid over time at a rate not less than that paid by the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
plus one half percent. Given the high interest rate associated with these bonds and the City's inability
to issue an optional cali to retire the bonds, the transaction is seen as an opportunity both to lower its
interest rate and to provide more flexibility in the management of the Pavilion venue.
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NON-MAJOR FUNDS

State Gas Tax Fund. To account for revenue apportioned to the City from State-collected gasoiine
taxes and expended for construction and maintenance of City streets.

Maintenance Districts Fund. To account for revenue from property tax and annual assessments
against property owners and expended for their share of the City's cost for maintenance in the areas of
the service provided.

Art in Public Places Fund. To account for fees applied to new construction and expended for the
purchase and installation of art objects in the City.

Traffic System Management Fund. To account for monies from in-lieu parking fees, to be expended
for traffic management facilities.

Housing Assistance Program Fund. To account for monies from the Concord Redevelopment
Agency and developers' contributions to be expended for low-income housing loans.

Storm Water Management Fund. To account for activities necessary to comply with the Federal
Ciean Water Act.

Monument Community Partnership Fund. To account for capital projects resulting from the
partnership between the Contra Costa First 5 children and Monument community partnership.

Police Facilities Revenue Bonds Fund. To account for accumutation of property taxes for payment of
interest and principal on the Police Faciiity iease revenue bonds.

Parking Structure Revenue Bonds Fund. To account for accumulation of property taxes for
payment of interest and principal on the Parking Structure lease revenue bonds.

ABAG Fund. To account for transfers of revenue from the General Fund for payment of interest and
principal on Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) certificates of participation.

Performing Arts Revenue Bonds Fund. To account for the accumulation of revenue provided by Bill
Graham Presents for payment of interest and principal on the Pavilion lease revenue bonds issued in
1995.

Assessment Districts Debt Service Fund. To account for accumulation of special assessment taxes
for payment of special assessment bond interest and principal.

Special Developers Fund. To account for capital projects within the City funded by various fees
collected from developers.

Governmental Capital Projects Fund. To account for approved capital projects funded from other
governmental agencies.
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ASSETS:
Cash and Investments
Cash with Fiscal Agents

Recelvables {Net of Aflowances for Uncoliectibles):

Accounts Receivabie

Due from Qther Governments

Due from Qther Funds

|oans and Notes

Speciai Assessmenis
Advances to Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:
Accounts, Deposits and Coniracts Payable
Accrued Liabilitles
Due {o Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabitities

Fund Balance:
Reserved for;
Encumbrances
Loans and Notes
Advances
Debt Service
Prepaid Hems & Asse{ Seizure
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital Projects
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabliities and Fund Balances

CITY OF CONCORD

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Artin Traffic Housing
State Maintenance Public System Assistance
Gas Tax Districts Places Management Program
$1,126,514 $2,663,771 $129,519 $71,931 5461,995
161,003
205,324
477,000
$1,287,517 $2,663,771 $129,519 $548,931 $667,319
$29,332
10,203 51,860 $15
519,879
477,000
39,535 478,860 15 19,879
210,516 8,699 16,060
185,445
477,000
326,931 171,855 $120,302
701,535 2,004,357 9,217 55,856 461,995
1,247,982 2,184 911 129,519 548,016 647,440
$1,287,517 52,663,771 $129,519 $548,931 $667,319

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Storm Monument Performing
Water Community Police Facllities  Parking Structure Arts Assessment
Management Partnership Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds ABAG Revenue Bonds Districts
$1,869.617 $167,835
$721,267 $751,588 $64,939 $1,777,949
$17,716
349,097
$1,869,617 $17.716 $721,267 $751,588 $64,939 $1,777,948 $516,932
$3,458
817,128
$349,097
3,455 17,128 340,097
$721,267 $751,588 $64,039 $1,777,949 167,835
145
1,866,017 588
1,866,162 588 721,267 751,588 654,939 1,777,949 167,835
$1,869,617 $17,716 §721,267 $751,588 $64,939 $1,777,949 $516,932
{Continued)
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CITY OF CONCORD
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
Total
Non-Major
Special inter- Governmental
Developers Governmental Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Investments $2,167.019 $68,808 $8,727,010
Cash with Fiscal Agenis 3,315,743
Receivables {(Net of Allowances for Uncollectibies):
Accounts Recelvable 17,716
Due from Other Governments 2,135,058 2,296,061
Due from Other Funds 1,280,844 1,280,844
Loans and Notes 205,324
Special Assessmenis 349,097
Advances to Other Funds 477,000
Total Assets; $3,447,863 $2,203,867 $16,668,795
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:
Accounts, Deposits and Contracts Payable 346,428 $178,027 $253,787
Accrued Liabilities 1,426 1,394 18,353
Due to Other Funds 591,850 608,978
Deferred Revenue 1,883,977 2,252,953
Advance from Other Funds 804,247 1,281,247
852,101 2,655,248 4,415,318
Fund Balance;
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 180,331 846,241 1,270,847
Loans and Notes 185,445
Advances 477,000
Debt Service 3,483,578
Prepald items & Asset Seizure
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital Projects 2,415,431 3,034,864
Undesignated (1,297 622) 3,801,043
Tatal Fund Balances (Deficit) 2,585,762 {451,381} 12,253,477
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $3,447,863 $2,203,867 $16,668,795
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CITY OF CONCORD
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Artin Traffic
State Maintenance Public System
Gas Tax Districts Places Managemant
REVENUES:
Taxes $1,495,793
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental $2,009,488
Charges for Services
Finas and Forfeitures
Use of Money and Property 18,142 60,430 $3,426 $2,573
Special Assessment Collections
Other 12,516
Totel Revenues 2,027,630 1,568,839 3,426 2,573
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works 1,693,779 1,155,936 60,507
Planning & Economic Development
Community & Recreation Services
Capital Outiay 385,580
Debt Service
Principal Repayment
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expendiiures 2,089,359 1,155,936 60,507
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
QOVER EXPENDITURES {61,729) 412,903 3,426 (57.934)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 25,056 203,394
Transfers (Out) (41,625) {203,394) (2,661)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {16,569} (2,881)
Net Change in Fund Balances {78,298) 412,903 3.426 {60,815)
Fund Baiances at the Beginning of Pericd 1,326,280 1,772,008 126,093 609,734
FUND BALANCES AT END OF PER}OD $1,247,982 $2,184,911 $129,519 $548,916
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Housing Storm Monurnent Perfarming
Assistance Water Community Police Facilities  Parking Struclure Ars Assessment
Program Management Parthership Revenue Bonds  Revehue Bonds ABAG Revenue Bonds Districts
$2,062,117
$277,696
$17,836
9,421 43,852 $22,310 $34,884 $37 $1,394,404 $1,902
67,052
2,143
27,257 2,108,112 277,686 22,310 34,884 37 1,394,404 68,954
2,067,887
24,865
277,696
375,000 365,000 90,000 635,000 29,000
345,659 378,224 8,374 1,147,514 10,282
24,865 2,067,887 277,696 690,659 743,224 08,374 1,782,514 39,292
2,392 40,225 (668,349) (708,340) (98,337) (388,110} 29,662
676,555 723,040 91,208 335,133
676,555 723,040 91,208 335,133
2,392 40,225 B,206 14,700 (7,128} (52,977} 29,662
645,048 1,825,937 588 713,061 736,888 72,068 1,830,926 138,173
$647,440 $1,866,162 $588 $721,267 751,588 $64,039 31,777,948 $167,835
{Continued)
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CITY OF CONCORD
NON-MAJCR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Total
Non-Major
Special Inter - Governmentai
Developers Governmental Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes $3,557,910
Licenses and Permits $1,953,499 1,953,499
Infergovernmental $2,738,091 5,025,275
Charges for Services 17,836
Fines and Ferfeitures
Use cf Mcney end Property 88,120 82,330 1,761,831
Special Assessmeni Coilections 67,052
Other 105,018 119,777
2,146,637 2,820,421 12,503,180
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works 124,265 1,709,187 6,811,561
Pianning & Economic Development 24,865
Community & Recreation Services 55,889 333,585
Capital Outlay 1,682,076 2,731,672 4,809,328
Debt Service
Principal Repaymant 1,494,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,860,063
Total Expenditures 1,862,230 4,440,859 15,333,402
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 284,407 {1,620,438) {2,830,222)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 5,002 2,059,388
Transfers {Ouf) (75,218} {153,447) {476,565)
Totai Other Financing Sources (Uses) (70,216) (153,447) 1,582,823
Net Change in Fund Balances 214,194 (1,773,885) (1,247,309)
Fund Balances at the Beginning of Period 2,381,571 1,322,504 13,500,876
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) AT END OF PERIOD $2,595,762 (3451,381) $12,253 477
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REVENUES:
Property Taxes
Intergovernmentat
Fines and Forfeitures

Use of Money and Property

Other
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public Works

CITY OF CONCORD

BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

COMBINING SCHEDULE CF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

Buiding, Engineering & Neighborhcod Services

Gommunily & Recreation Services

Capital Qutlay
Debt Service
Principat Repaymant

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):

Transfers in
Transfers {Cut)

Totai Other Financing Sources (UJses)

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER USES

Fund Balances at Beginning af Year

Fund Balances at End of Year

STATE GAS TAX MAINTENANCE DiSTRICTS
Variance Vanance
Positive Positive
Budget Actual {Nepative) Budget Actusi (Negative)
$1,603,958 $1,495,793 {$B,165)
$2,060,000 $2,009,488 (%40,512)
190,000 18,142 {171,858) 75,112 60,430 (14,682)
12,616 12,616
2,240,000 2,027,630 (212,370) 1,679,070 1,668,838 (10,234}
2,729,639 1,693,779 1,035,860 1,642,314 4,155,926 486,378
776,583 395,580 381,003
3,506,222 2,089,358 1,416,863 1,642,314 1,155,936 486,378
{1,266,222) (61,726) 1,204,493 (63,244) 412,903 476,147
25,056 25,056 203,394 203,294
(41,625) (41,625) (203,394) {203,394)
(16,569) {16,569)
(1,266,222) (78,208) 1,187,924 (63,244) 412,903 476,147
1,326,280 1,326,280 1,772,008 1,772,008
$60,058 $1,247,882 $1,187,824 $1,708,764 $2,184,911 $476,147
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ART iN PUBLIC PLACES TRAFFIC SYSTEM MANAGEMENT STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
Variance Variance Variance
Posifive Positive Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$1,953,330 $2,062,117 $108,787
$2,000 $3,426 51,426 $4,000 $2,573 ($1,427) 65,460 43,852 (21,608)
2,143 2,143
2,000 3,426 1,426 4,000 2.573 {1,427) 2,018,790 2,108,412 89,322
88,095 60,507 27,588 2,701,104 2,067,887 633,217
58,085 60,507 27,588 2,701,104 2,067,887 633,217
2,000 3,426 1,426 (84,095) (57,934) 26,1681 (682,314) 40,225 722,539
(4,000) (2,881) 1,119
{4,000) {2,881} 1,119
2,000 3,426 %426 {B5,095) {60,815) 27,280 (682,314) 40,225 722,538
126,093 126,083 609,731 609,731 1,825,937 1,825,837
$128,093 $128,519 $1,426 $521,636 $548,916 $27,280 $1,143,623 51,866,162 $722,539

{Continued)
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CITY OF CONCORD
BUDGETED NCN-MAJCR FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

MONUMENT COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP POLICE FACILITIES REVENUE BONDS
Variance Varlance
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual {Negaiive)
REVENUES:
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental 277,696 277,696
Fines and Forfeitures
Use of Money and Property §22,310 $22,310
Other
Total Revenues 277,686 277,696 22,310 22,310
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services
Community & Recreation Services 277,686 (277,696}
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal Repayment $375,000 375,000
interest and Fiscat Charges 318,406 315,658 2,747
Total Expenditures 277,696 (277,696) 693,406 690,659 2,747
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (692,406) (668,349} 25,057

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 693,406 676,555 (16,851}
Transfers (Out}

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses} 693,406 676,555 {16,851)

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER USES 8,206 B,206
Fund Balancas at Beginning of Year 588 588 713,061 713,061
Fund Baiances at End of Year $588 $588 $713,061 $721.267 $8,206
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ABAG
Variance
Posifive
Budget Actual (Negative)
37 $37
37 a7
90,000 90,000
8,664 8,374 310
968,664 £68,374 310
{98,684} {98,337} 347
98,664 91,208 {7,476}
98,5684 91,208 {7,476}
{7,129) (7,429)
72,068 72,068
$72,068 $64,039 ($7,128)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to finance and account for special activities and services performed by a
designated department for other departments in the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

The concept of major funds does not extend to internal service funds because they do not do business
with outside parties. GASB Statement 34 requires that for the Statement of Activities, the net revenues or
expenses of each internal service fund be eliminated by netting them against the operations of the other
City departments which generated them. The remaining balance sheet items are consolidated with these
same funds in the Statement of Net Assets.

However, internal service funds are still presented separately in the Fund financial statements, including
the funds below.

Worker's Compensation Fund. To account for workers' compensation expenses. This fund is
financed by fees charged to the City departments.

Risk Management/Liability Fund. To account for the non-reimbursable portion of insurance claims.

Post-Retirement HealthCare Benefits Fund. To account for the contributions and benefits paid in
relation to the Post-Retirement Health Care Program.

Fleet Maintenance/Replacement Fund. To accumulate resources to fund the replacement of City
licensed vehicles and motorized equipment.

Information Technology Replacement Fund. To accumulate resources to fund the replacement of
computers and software for City staff.

Building Maintenance Fund. To accumulate resources required to maintain City facilities.
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CITY OF CONCORD

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Risk Post-Retirement Flest Information
Workers' Management/ Heaithcare Maintenance/ Technoiogy
Compensation Liabitity Benefit Replacement Replacement
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Invesimenis $6,422,374 $3,070,494 $1,548,002 $2,020,018 $5,272,202
Cash with Fiscal Agents 11,660
Accounts Receivable 38,132 85705 21,155
Interest Receivable 5,058 15,687
Prepaid items 16,918
Total Current Assets 6,460,506 3,167,859 1,553,060 2,041,173 5,304,807
Net OPEB Asset 0,516,723
Capital Assets:
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment 8,066,571 8,484,316
Construction in Progress 13,696
8,066,571 8,498,012
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (6,843,774) {5,808,210)
Net Capital Assels 1,222,797 2,689,802
Totai Assels 6,460,506 3,167,859 11,069,783 3,263,970 7,994,609
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts and Contracts Payable 220 4,347 32,461
Compensated Absences Payable 19,287 81,146
Capital Lease Payable 327,763
Judgment Obligation Bonds 330,000
Bond Inierest Payable 37,707 1,575
Claims Payable 1,760,493 420,049
Total Current Liabilities 1,760,713 787,756 23,634 442 945
Non-Current Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable 17,950
Judgment Obligation Bonds 1,900,000
Capital Lease Payable 512,538
Claims Payable 4,503,507 436,961
Total Liabilities 6,264,220 3,124,717 41,584 955,483
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capitat Assets 1,222,797 1,849,501
Unrestricted 196,286 43,142 11,069,783 1,999,589 5,189,625
Total Net Assets $196,286 $43,142 $11,069,783 $3,222 386 $7,039,126
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Building
Maintenance Total

$2,070,162 $20,403,252
11,660

144,992

20,745

16,918

2,070,162 20,597,567
9,516,723

73,700,490 73,700,490
16,550,887

13,696

73,700,480 90,265,073
(26,508,679) {39,160,663)
47.191,811 51,104 410
49,261,973 81,218,700
11,370 48,398
80,791 181,224
327,763

330,000

30,282

2,180,542

92,161 3,107,200
8,560 26,510
1,900,000

512,538

4,940,468

100,721 10,486,725
47,191,811 50,264,109
1,069,441 20,467,666
$49,161,252 $70,731,975
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OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Claims Settlement
Cther

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and Maintenance
Cost of Sales and Services
Depreciafion
Claims and Judgments
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss}
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest Expense
Gain from Sale of Capital Assets
Total Non-Cperating Revenue

Income (Less) Before Contributions
Ceniributicns
Transfers in
Transfers Out
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets (Deficils) Beginning

Net Assets (Deficits) Ending

CITY OF CONCORD

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Risk Post-Retirement Fleet Information
Workers' Management/ Healthcare Maintenance/ Technology

Compensation Liablity Benefit Replacement Replacement

$2,110,063 $1,591,259 $1,468,009 $2,866,884 $6,563,498
85,802
43,785 3,490
2,110,063 1,677,061 1,611,784 2,870,374 6,563,498
93,452 317,772 51,822 1,908,477 5,019,173
4,727,000
630,105 1,017,997
2,136,931 1,335,062

2,230,383 1,652,834 4,778,922 2,536,582 6,037,170
(120,320) 24,227 (3,267,128) 333,792 526,328 '

©8,886 76,373 31,731 54,202 109,448
{117,680) (44,917)

35,806

08,886 (41,307) 31,731 80,188 64,531

{21,434) (17,080) (3,235,397} 423,980 580,859

8,165 355,169

600,000 40,681
(600,000) {50,000 {175,404) {1,000,661)
(621,434) 532,920 (3,235,397) 256,741 (44,052)

817,720 {489,778) 14,305,180 2,965,645 7,083,178

$196,286 $43,142 $11,069,783 $3,222,386 $7,039,126
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Building
Maintenance: Total

$4,052,262 $18,651,975
85,802

47,275

4,052,262 18,785,052
3,336,881 10,725,677
4,727,000

2,105,814 3,753,016
3,471,993

5,442,685 22,678,586
(1,390,433} (3,893,534)
52,505 423,235
{162,597)

35,896

52,505 296,534
(1,337,928} (3,597,000)
160,716 524,050
610,581
{287,489) {2,113,554)
(1,464,701} (4,575,923)
50,625,953 75,307,896
$49,161,252 $70,731,975
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CITY OF CONCORD
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Ciaims Paid

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer In/ {Out)

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assels
Principai Paid on Debt, Bond Maturities
interest and Fiscal Charges Paid

Cash Flows from Capita! and Related
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and invesiments at Beginning of Period

Cash and Investments at End of Period

Reconcifiation of Operating income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss}
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
{o Net Cash Provided by QOperating Activities:
Depreciation
Change in Assets and |iabilities:
Recejvables, Net
Prepaid Expenses
Net OPEB Asset
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabifities
Self Insurance Ciaims Payable

Met Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Non.cash Condributions and Transfers of Fixed Assets, Net

Risk Post-Retirement Fleet infarmation
Workers' Management/ Heaithcare Maintenance/ Technology
Compensation Liability Benefit Replacement Replacement
$2,071,931 $1,879,125 $1,611,794 $2,858,865 $6,570,202
(12,802) (317,772) (6,267,642) (1,247,721} (2,846,949)
(80,471) (651,483) (2,112,386)
(2,136,931) (1,314,372)
{158,273) 46,981 {4,755,848) 959,661 1,510,867
{600,000 550,000 {175,404) (990,080}
{600,000} 550,000 {175,404} (990,080}
{861,475} (547,009}
35,895
(315,000}
(127,116) {43,342)
(442,116} {825,579) (590,351)
138,132 76,373 119,533 54,292 93,761
138,132 76,373 119,533 54,292 83,761
(620,141} 231,238 {4,636,315) 12,970 124,187
7,042,515 2,850,916 5,184,317 2,007,048 5,148,005
$6,422,374 $3,082,154 $1,548,002 $2,020,018 $5,272,202
{$120,320) $24,227 {$3,267,128) $333,792 $526,328
630,105 1,017,997
(38,132) 2,064 {11,509} 6,704
43,409
(1,488,720}
179 2,233 25,057
5,040 {8,628)
20,690
($158,273) $46,981 ($4,755,848) $959,661 $1,610,867
$8,165 $355,169
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Building
Maintenance Total
$4,052,595 $18,744,512
{1,344,327) {12,037,213)
(1,979,911} (4,824,251)
{3,451,303)
728,357 {1,568,255)
(287,489} (1,502,973}
(287,489} (1,502,973}
(1,408,484}
35,896
(315,000}
(170,458)
{1,858,046)
52,505 534,596
52,505 534,596
493,373 (4,394,678)
1,576,789 24,809,580
32,070,162 $20,414,912
{$1,390,433) {$3,893,534)
2,105,814 3,753,916
333 (40,540)
60 43,469
{1,488,720)
4977 32,446
7,606 4,018
20,690
$728,357 {$1,568,255)
$460,716 $524,050
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OllCOI’

STATISTICAL TABLES AND OTHER SCHEDULES (UNAUDITED)

This part of the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information discusses about the City's overall financial health. In contrast to the financial section, the statistical
section information is not subject to independent audit.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance and
well being have changed over time:

o Net Assets by Component

¢ Changes in Net Assets

+ Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

e Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

Revenue Capacity
The schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's significant local revenue source, the
property tax:

* Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

+ Propeny Tax Rates, All Overlapping Governments

» Principal Property Taxpayers

s Propeny Tax Levies and Collections

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordabiiity of the City's current levels of
outstanding debt and the City of Concord’s ability to issue additional debt in the future:
» Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Debt
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
Computation of Legal Bonded Debt Margin
Sewer Revenue Bonds Coverage
Bond Debt Pledged Revenue Coverage - Tax Allocation Bonds

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the City's financial activities take place:

s Demographic and Economic Statistics

» Principal Empioyers

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs;

» Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) City Government Employees by Function

» Operating Indicators by Function/Program

s Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Sources

Uniess otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2002; Schedules presenting
government-wide information include information beginning in that year.
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Table 1: Net Assets by Component
Last Seven Fiscal Years (Accrual Basis of Accounting)

$1,000 -
$900 -
$800 -
$700 -
g $600 -
= $500 -
= $400
$300 -
$200 -
$100 -
$0
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
E Net of Related Debt O Restricted @ Unrestricted
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Governmental Activities
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt $679,488,292 $677,663,295 $664,630,378 $656,737,995 $649,269,154 $630,495,335 $622,560,100
Restricted 78,093,485 69,730,092 73,086,978 75,036,355 93,999,338 89,429,887 88,890,688
Unrestricted 35,920,211 37,373,061 39,968,088 44,689,818 42,186,355 48,764,823 38,436,086
Total Governmental
Activities Net Assets $793,501,988 $784,766,448 $777,685,444 $776,464,168 $785,454,847 $768,690,045 $749,886,874
Business-Type Activities
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt $86,301,125 $81,904,364 $79,789,175 $77,720,525 $72,124,314 $70,374,727 @ $71,320,355
Restricted
Unrestricted 11,600,088 14,317,386 13,760,715 15,757,201 17,775,509 14,119,883 13,520,168
Total Business-Type
Activities Net Assets $97,901,213  $96,221,750 $93,549,890 $93,477,726  $89,899,823  $84,494,610  $84,840,523
Primary Government
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt $765,789,417 $759,567,659 $744,419,553 $734,458,520 $721,393,468 $700,870,062 $693,880,456
Restricted 78,093,485 69,730,092 73,086,978 75,036,355 93,999,338 89,429,887 88,890,688
Unrestricted 47,520,299 51,690,447 53,728,803 60,447,019 59,961,864 62,884,706 51,956,248

Total Primary
Government Net Assets $891,403,201 $880,988,198 $871,235,334 $869,941,894 $875,354,670 $853,184,655 $834,727,392
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Table 2: Changes in Net Assets
Last Seven Fiscal Years (Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government $10,820,036  $11,500,179 $9,622,634 $11,142,712  $13,090,236 $13,275,497 $12,738,632
Public Safety 30,129,478 32,490,241 36,466,365 37,585,077 39,002,036 42,367,364 45,291,048
Public Works 28,573,938 29,048,534 34,904,128 34,976,572 35,491,488 36,554,748 36,454,843
Planning & Economic Development 3,884,615 5,710,011 5,087,871 4,836,179 5,065,830 6,530,424 10,579,123
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services 5,281,208 5,563,100 5,690,760 7,239,616 9,313,264 12,291,176 6,571,713
Community & Recreation Services 13,473,690 14,439,500 6,771,302 7,820,034 8,230,319 9,484,383 9,463,315
Interest on Long Term Debt 7,700,863 5,214,110 6,340,280 5,919,742 5,700,631 5,521,049 5,213,438
Total Governmental Activities Expenses 99,863,828 103,965,675 104,883,340 109,519,932 115,893,804 126,024,641 126,312,112
Business-Type Activities:
Sewer 15,756,172 16,536,922 17,880,681 18,850,426 20,803,448 24,868,475 18,688,255
Golf Course 1,856,460 1,831,742 1,774,805 1,635,069 1,769,623 1,601,983 1,679,995
Total Business-Type Activities Expenses 17,612,632 18,368,664 19,655,486 20,485,495 22,573,071 26,470,458 20,368,250
Total Primary Government Expenses $117,476,460 $122,334,339 $124,538,826 $130,005,427 $138,466,875 $152,495,099 $146,680,362
Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government $499,199 $151,645 $237,121 $1,025,938 $883,778 $782,744 $966,501
Public Safety 1,620,643 1,612,896 1,484,683 1,371,870 1,642,445 1,499,727 1,672,348
Public Works 3,467,007 3,669,880 6,712,375 4,814,755 4,964,185 2,575,986 5,847,684
Planning & Economic Development 323,332 1,628,316 1,567,764 4,903,145 4,492,293 3,281,902 2,390,462
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services 2,787,941 2,427,260 2,703,914 2,957,954 2,694,836 777,091 3,363,813
Community & Recreation Services 2,992,000 2,999,927 3,390,454 2,706,210 3,015,576 3,287,962 3,492,087
Operating Grants and Contributions 7,255,523 7,311,503 6,458,722 6,825,581 8,100,031 6,188,496 4,715,761
Capital Grants and Contributions 6,417,819 9,659,289 4,392,944 14,452,119 7,755,904 8,768,985 10,512,437
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 25,363,464 29,460,716 26,947,977 39,057,572 33,549,048 27,162,893 32,961,093
Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:
Sewer Wastewater 14,130,952 14,518,522 14,735,514 17,130,440 15,968,289 17,915,613 18,296,077
Golf Course 1,863,948 1,814,642 1,672,696 1,556,405 1,602,581 1,535,148 1,422,154
Capital Grants and Contributions 311,843 689,253 233,662 79,419 117,915
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 15,994,900 16,645,007 16,408,210 19,376,098 17,804,532 19,530,180 19,836,146
Total Primary Government Program Revenues $41,358,364  $46,105,723 $43,356,187 $58,433,670 $51,353,580 $46,693,073 = $52,797,239
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities ($74,500,364) ($74,504,959) ($77,935,363) ($70,462,360) ($82,344,756) ($98,861,748) ($93,351,019)
Business-Type Activities (1,617,732) (1,723,657) (3,247,276) (1,109,397) (4,768,539) (6,940,278) (532,104)

Total Primary Government Net Expense

($76,118,096) ($76,228,616)

($81,182,639) ($71,571,757)

($87,113,295)

($105,802,026)

($93,883,123)

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities:
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Motor Vehicle In-Lieu
Transient Occupancy Taxes
Business License Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Grants & Contributions Not Restricted to
Specific Programs
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenues
Transfers
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Land
Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenues
Transfers
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

Change in Net Assets
Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

$21,865,693 $22,436,555 $21,710,942 $23,202,025 $28,151,765  $30,269,864 = $29,034,866
27,564,127 27,817,974 28,313,462 27,219,549 28,574,582 27,325,370 24,253,987
7,177,764 5,689,008 9,496,201 9,064,920 9,266,868 9,759,831 9,625,635
1,630,746 1,528,836 1,629,388 1,836,002 2,057,241 2,193,085 1,710,768
2,836,339 2,815,574 3,153,959 3,107,600 3,218,553 3,157,176 3,262,762
2,950,503 3,256,347 3,368,778 3,347,905 3,853,558 3,991,357 4,128,526
3,830,034 2,160,336 3,147,879 2,962,518 4,218,014 5,346,348 2,300,008
88,938 55,193 74,071 59,733 53,915 247,697
(5,203) 9,596 (40,321) (16,401)
819,435 (1,559,168) 11,994,854
68,758,376 65,769,410 _ 70854359 _ 69,241,084 __ 91335435 82,096,946 74,547,848
445,058 53,790 535,095 1,037,233 1,190,636 1,485,065 809,161
50,000 52,450
5,203 (9,596) 40,321 16,401
450,261 44,194 575,416 1,037,233 1,100,636 1,535,065 878,012
$69,208,637 _ $65,813,613 _ $71,429,775 _ $70,278,317 _ $92,526,071 __ $83,632,011 | $75,425,860
($5,741,988) ($8,735,540) ($7,081,004) ($1,221,276)  $8,990,679  ($16,764,802) ($18,803,171)
(1,167,471) _ (1,679,463) (2,671,860 (72,164)  (3,577,903)  (5,405,213) 345,908
(36,909,459) ($10,415,003) ($9,752,864) ($1,293,440) _ $5412,776 _ ($22,170,015) _($18,457,263)
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Table 3: Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

$45 ~

$40 ~

Millions

$35 +
$30
$25
$20 ~
$15
$10 ~

$5

$0
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
B Reserved B Unreserved
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

General Fund

Reserved $2,281,311  $2,382,640 $6,462,821 $2,202,408 $1,864,192 $947,419 $1,032,824 $865,652  $2,410,869 | $1,995,403

Unreserved 19,461,452 24,878,296 25,989,185 33,917,725 34,649,045 38,634,501 31,015,852 32,675,265 27,326,524 21,806,296

Total General Fund $21,742,763 $27,260,936 $32,452,006 $36,120,133 $36,513,237 $39,581,920 $32,048,676 $33,540,917 $29,737,393 $23,801,699
All Other Governmental Funds

Reserved $41,156,582 $45,486,691 $50,368,878 $51,894,833 $43,743,972 $42,087,866 $38,193,568 $43,184,063 $39,242,159 $47,495,499

Unreserved, Reported in:

Special Revenue Funds 8,792,772 9,359,938 4,196,815 2,998,229 5,468,518 4,305,242 5,037,425 5,709,576 5,446,005 = 5,718,932

Capital Project Funds 25,281,414 30,903,794 20,942,982 16,816,752 13,785,820 19,890,639 23,048,359 33,847,270 31,743,285 22,582,396

Debt Service Funds 96 26 12,594 21,955

Total All Other

Governmental Funds $75,230,768 $85,750,423 $75,508,675 $71,709,814 $62,998,310 $66,283,843 $66,279,378 $82,753,503 $76,453,404 $75,796,827

Note:

(a) The change in total fund balance for the General Fund and Other Governmental Funds
is explained in Management's Discussion and Analysis.
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Table 4: Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2000 (b) 2001 2002 2003 2004
Revenues
Taxes $51,079,806 $56,228,728 $57,826,527 $60,693,494 $61,735,974
Licenses and Permits 2,882,256 2,520,364 3,468,079 2,539,529 3,291,112
Intergovernmental 13,977,875 16,632,718 13,965,410 16,115,511 16,209,022
Charges for Services 3,718,352 4,090,155 6,234,680 5,502,226 6,088,123
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 565,270 651,855 719,477 645,723 738,476
Parks and Recreation 2,331,808 1,985,340 2,079,835 2,143,019 2,117,718
Use of Money and Property 4,962,517 8,284,146 7,303,139 5,457,259 3,749,005
Special Assessment Collections 781,744 701,531 648,564 628,420 587,663
Other 662,976 751,170 545,261 687,006 855,196
Total Revenues 80,962,604 91,846,007 92,790,972 94,412,187 95,372,289
Expenditures
Current:
General Government 8,430,549 9,012,826 10,062,672 10,935,855 11,719,382
Public Safety 24,422,917 25,426,450 26,920,521 28,889,785 30,197,506
Public Works 9,318,454 12,730,072 10,347,913 9,327,836 9,400,460
Building, Engineering & Neighborhood Services 9,549,078 5,108,797 4,871,229 5,349,636 5,441,037
Planning & Economic Development 1,328,188 1,314,166 5,129,842 3,740,770 7,081,755
Community & Recreation Services 4,424,909 9,684,192 10,065,069 12,196,418 12,936,943
Non-Departmental 28,149
Capital Outlay 9,824,592 12,863,903 18,496,739 14,917,505 8,515,838
Debt Service:
Principal Repayment 4,333,000 4,699,217 4,818,000 5,117,000 5,293,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges 5,291,137 6,276,355 6,905,805 6,837,478 8,356,499
Refund to Property Owners 32,978 505,148 156,691 55,955
Total Expenditures 76,983,951 87,621,126 97,617,790 97,468,974 98,998,375
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 3,978,653 4,224,881 (4,826,818) (3,056,787) (3,626,086)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 12,580,624 12,276,116 2,787,097 7,244,083 2,014,711
Transfers (Out) (12,725,841) (12,235,056) (6,757,401) (5,204,465) (1,952,059)
Refunding Bonds Issued 72,310,000
Proceeds from Debt Issuance 255,000 9,580,000 1,569,330
Proceeds from Sale of Property 2,155,661 886,435
Bond Issuance Premium 407,090
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow (79,041,386)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 109,783 11,776,721 (3,970,304) 2,926,053 (4,692,314)
Special Item
Loss on Sale of Property
Total Special Item
Net Change in Fund Balances $4,088,436 $16,001,602 ($8,797,122) ($130,734) ($8,318,400)
Debt Service as a Percentage of
Non-Capital Expenditures (@) (@) 17.4% 17.0% 17.8%

Notes:
(a) The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in Fiscal Year 2002. Therefore this calculation is included only
for fiscal years subsequent to that date.

(b) The City underwent reorganization during 2000, 2005 and 2006.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2005(b) 2006(b) 2007

$62,108,412  $70,913,480  $78,285,780  $78,204,323  $75,189,694
3,138,724 4,877,758 3,073,607 1,599,886 3,552,003
18,659,169 10,647,688 10,335,065 8,265,305 12,366,551
6,399,020 7,130,622 7,182,525 6,343,372 7,289,449
717,015 897,435 989,426 1,055,807 1,108,677
2,420,106 2,585,962 2,678,282 3,006,184 2,869,639
4,740,989 5,371,381 5,943,217 5,968,313 4,102,165
99,623 75,021 72,524 65,610 67,052
758,718 713,853 701,526 613,023 786,340
99,041,776 103,213,209 109,261,952 105,121,823 = 107,331,570
9,422,828 11,056,922 12,633,576 12,678,872 11,984,808
35,687,725 37,384,952 38,587,496 40,285,037 42,843,522
15,292,558 14,830,313 15,508,044 17,060,398 15,956,198
5,716,968 5,009,679 5,028,829 6,408,585 6,298,643
4,749,351 7,357,162 10,046,844 11,385,205 8,142,528
6,682,215 7,428,161 7,828,837 8,745,778 8,806,329
6,555,700 5,602,918 5,947,842 7,822,286 11,589,152
4,554,000 4,655,000 4,586,000 4,852,000 5,024,000
3,950,417 5,326,328 5,133,210 4,952,854 4,860,812

41,453 326,836 34,431
92,653,215 98,978,271 105,300,678  114,225446 = 115,505,992
6,388,561 4,234,938 3,961,274 (9,103,623) (8,174,422)
5,461,790 4,204,776 2,608,732 3,733,972 5,557,868
(5,526,805)  (14,418,255) (6,248,494) (4,733,972) (4,071,296)
30,670 350,000 95,579

17,294,854
(34,345)  (10,213,479) 14,005,092 (1,000,000) 1,582,151
(1,559,168)
(1,559,168)

$6,354,216  ($7,537,709)  $17,966,366  ($10,103,623)  ($6,592,271)
11.0% 12.0% 10.9% 10.2% 10.3%
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Table 5: Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
=8=—Unsecured Property  =#=Secured Property
Redevelopment Total Real Total
Fiscal City Agency Secured Unsecured Total Estimated Direct
Year Property Property Property Property Assessed (a) Full Market (a) Tax Rate (b)
2000 $6,088,725,538  $938,367,170 $7,027,092,708  $408,400,178  $7,435,492,886  $7,435,492,886 1%
2001 6,525,536,359 967,506,649 7,493,043,008 444,462,619 7,937,505,627 7,937,505,627 1%
2002 7,142,630,996 1,035,491,209 8,178,122,205 520,828,043 8,698,950,248 8,698,950,248 1%
2003 7,671,737,081 1,094,128,597 8,765,865,678 537,720,228 9,303,585,906 9,303,585,906 1%
2004 8,341,081,601 1,144,591,474 9,485,673,075 560,749,296  10,046,422,371  10,046,422,371 1%
2005 9,069,533,622 1,180,661,137  10,250,194,759 508,157,337  10,758,352,096  10,758,352,096 1%
2006  10,026,955,409 1,222,314,892  11,249,270,301 576,005,523  11,825,275,824  11,825,275,824 1%
2007 11,205,538,297 1,365,259,358 12,570,797,655 567,282,828  13,138,080,483  13,138,080,483 1%
2008 11,966,162,328 1,479,908,386  13,446,070,714 556,719,852  14,002,790,566  14,002,790,566 1%
2009 10,741,002,606 1,589,385,967 12,330,388,573 580,130,554  12,910,519,127  12,910,519,127 1%
Notes:

(a) The State Constitution requires property to be assessed at one hundred percent of the most recent
purchase price, plus an increment of no more than two percent annually, plus any local over-rides.
These values are considered to be full market values.

(b) California cities do not set their own direct tax rate. The State Constitution establishes the rate at 1% and
allocates a portion of that amount, by an annual calculation, to all the taxing entities within a tax rate area.
The City of Concord encompasses more than 15 tax rate areas.

Source: Contra Costa County Auditor-Controller's Office, Certificate of Assessed Valuations
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Table 6: Property Tax Rates, All Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Hundred $

W Bay Area Rapid Transit
H Basic County Wide Levy

[ East Bay Regional Park District

B Mt. Diablo Unified School District & Community College

East Bay Mt. Diablo Unified
Fiscal Basic County Bay Area Regional Park School District &
Year Wide Levy Rapid Transit District Community College Total
2000 1.0000 0.0065 1.0065
2001 1.0000 0.0072 1.0072
2002 1.0000 0.0065 1.0065
2003 1.0000 0.0057 0.0563 1.0620
2004 1.0000 0.0057 0.0563 1.0620
2005 1.0000 0.0057 0.0453 1.0510
2006 1.0000 0.0048 0.0057 0.0465 1.0570
2007 1.0000 0.0050 0.0085 0.0489 1.0624
2008 1.0000 0.0076 0.0080 0.0532 1.0688
2009 1.0000 0.0090 0.0100 0.0521 1.0711

Note: The above ratios are expressed as dollars assessed per $100 of assessed valuations.

Source: Contra Costa County Auditor-Controller's Office
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Table 7: Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
2008-09 2008-09
Assessed Projected
Property Owner Primary Land Use Value Revenue (a)
1. Bank of America* Office Building $173,174,390 $1,731,744
2.  Taubman Land Associates LLC Regional Mall 158,666,771 1,586,668
3. Chevron USA* Office Building 128,752,151 1,287,522
4. Rreef America REIT Il Corp. Office Building 106,201,493 1,062,015
5. Sierra Pacific Properties, Inc.* Office Building 99,352,432 993,524
6. Transwestern Concord Corp. Center  Office Building 99,000,000 990,000
7.  Seecon Financial & Construction Co. Office Building 83,856,495 838,565
8. Concord Airport Plaza Associates* Office Building 63,084,654 630,847
9. Clayton Valley Shopping Center Shopping Center 56,307,836 563,078
10. EQR & Legacy Partners LLC Apartments 51,524,817 515,248
Total $1,019,921,039 $10,199,210
Notes:

(a) Projected Revenue is calculated using 1% Basic County Wide Levy Rate.

*

In the Top 10 for 1999-2000.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Table 8: Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
$30.0
$27.5
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$22.5
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" $17.5
5 $15.0
= $125 |
= $10.0 H
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$5.0 1
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$0.0 -
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
B Total Tax Levy (a) B Tax Collections
Percent of
Current Percent Delinquent Total Total Tax
Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Tax Tax Collections
Year TaxLevy(a) Collections Collected Collections Collections  to Tax Levy
2000  $18,539,359  $18,539,359 100.0000% $18,539,359 100.0000%
2001 18,978,753 18,978,753 100.0000% 18,978,753 100.0000%
2002 20,874,360 20,874,360 100.0000% 20,874,360 100.0000%
2003 22,268,670 22,268,670 100.0000% 22,268,670 100.0000%
2004 23,117,284 23,117,284 100.0000% 23,117,284 100.0000%
2005 21,710,945 21,710,945 (b) 100.0000% 21,710,945 100.0000%
2006 23,202,024 23,202,024 (b) 100.0000% 23,202,024 100.0000%
2007 28,151,765 28,151,765 (b) 100.0000% 28,151,765 100.0000%
2008 28,304,789 28,304,789 (b) 100.0000% 28,304,789 100.0000%
2009 29,074,531 29,074,531 (b) 100.0000% 29,074,531 100.0000%
Notes:

Current tax collections beginning in 1993 have been reduced by a mandatory
tax reallocation imposed by the State of California.

(a) During fiscal year 1995, the County began providing the City 100% of its
tax levy under an agreement which allows the County to keep all interest
and delinquency charges collected.

(b) Tax collections in fiscal year 2005 to 2009 are net of pass-thru payment and
Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund withholding.

Source: City of Concord Finance Department
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Table 9: Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Dollars in Millions)
$150.0
$135.0
$120.0 +
$105.0 +
$90.0 -
2
S $75.0
= $60.0 -
$45.0 ~
$30.0 -
$15.0 ~
$0.0 -
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
B Total Governmental @ Total Business
Governmental Activities
Tax Certificates Judgment Special
Fiscal Revenue Allocation of Obligation ~ Assessment Notes Capital
Year Bonds Bonds Participation Bonds Debt Payable Lease Total
2000 $27.2 $95.2 $0.8 $4.6 $3.1 $130.9
2001 35.8 92.7 0.8 4.4 2.6 136.3
2002 34.7 89.6 0.7 4.2 2.0 131.2
2003 33.7 87.1 0.7 3.9 1.4 126.8
2004 32.7 80.0 0.6 3.7 0.9 $1.6 119.5
2005 31.6 77.4 0.6 34 0.5 1.6 1151
2006 30.4 74.3 0.5 3.2 0.3 17 110.4
2007 29.2 71.2 0.5 29 0.3 2.1 106.2
2008 27.9 68.0 0.4 2.5 0.2 2.3 $1.2 102.5
2009 26.6 64.4 0.3 2.2 0.1 24 $0.8 96.8
Business-Type Activities
Certificates Golf Total Percentage
Fiscal of Equipment Notes Primary of Personal Per
Year Participation Lease Obligation Payable Total Government Income (a) Capita (a)
2000 $2.8 $0.3 $3.1 $134.0 4.03% $1,100.3
2001 2.7 0.2 2.9 139.2 4.13% 1,129.21
2002 25 0.2 $0.9 3.6 134.8 4.05% 1,087.67
2003 24 0.1 0.9 34 130.2 3.89% 1,044.48
2004 14.9 1.0 15.9 135.4 4.04% 1,084.45
2005 14.4 0.7 15.1 130.2 3.74% 1,043.29
2006 13.9 0.5 144 124.8 3.67% 1,002.93
2007 13.5 0.2 13.7 119.9 3.37% 957.64
2008 25.4 25.4 127.9 3.46% 1,033.32
2009 24.6 24.6 121.4 3.29% 974.33
Notes:

Debt amounts exclude any premiums, discounts, or other amortization amounts.
(a) See Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.

Sources: City of Concord Finance Department

State of California, Department of Finance (population)

U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census (income)
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Table 10:
As of June 30, 2009

2008-09 Assessed Valuation

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

$13,553,237,007

Percentage Amount
Net Applicable Applicable

Debt to City of to City of

Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt Outstanding Concord Concord
Bay Area Rapid Transit District $441,360,000 2.714% $11,978,510
Contra Costa Community College District 176,050,000 8.669% 15,261,775
Mt. Diablo Unified School District 212,965,000 41.468% 88,312,326
Mt. Diablo Unified School District Community Facilities District No. 1 63,600,000 41.468% 26,373,648
East Bay Regional Park District 125,850,000 4.002% 5,036,517
City of Concord 1915 Act Bonds 140,000 100.000% 140,000
Contra Costa County Reassessment District 3,260,000 7.513% 244,924
Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt $1,023,225,000 $147,347,700

Direct and Overlapping General Fund Obligation Debt

City of Concord General Fund Obligations 28,495,000 100.000% 28,495,000
City of Concord Judgment Obligations 2,230,000 100.000% 2,230,000
Contra Costa County General Fund Obligations 285,315,000 8.641% 24,654,069
Contra Costa County Pension Obligations 465,455,000 8.641% 40,219,967
Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Pension Obligations 123,465,000 19.288% 23,813,929
Contra Costa Community College District Certificates of Participation 1,050,000 8.669% 91,025
Mt. Diablo Unified School District Certificates of Participation 5,670,000 41.468% 2,351,236

Total Direct and Overlapping General Fund Obligation Debt

Gross Combined Total Debt

Net Combined Total Debt

Ratios to 2008-09 Assessed Valuation

Direct Debt
Total Gross Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt
Total Net Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt

Note:

0.23%
1.09%
1.09%

$911,680,000

(1) Excludes Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes, Enterprise Revenue, Mortgage Revenue and

Tax Allocation Bonds and Non-Bonded Capital Lease Obligations.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

$121,855,225

$269,202,925

$269,202,925 (1)
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Table 11:  Computation of Legal Bonded Debt Margin

As of June 30, 2009 (Dollars in Thousands)

Assessed Valuation:
Secured Property Assessed Value, Net of
Exempt Real Property

Bonded Debt Limit (15% of Assessed Value) (a)

Amount of Debt Subject to Limit:
Total Bonded Debt

Less Tax Allocation Bonds and Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds, Certificate of Participation Not Subject to Limit

Amount of Debt Subject to Limit
Legal Bonded Debt Margin

$12,910,519
$1,936,578

$0

0
0
$1,936,578

Total Net Debt

Total Net Debt Legal Applicable to the Limit
Fiscal Debt Applicable to Debt as a Percentage
Year Limit Limit Margin of Debt Limit
2000 $1,115,324 0 $1,115,324 0.00%
2001 1,190,626 0 1,190,626 0.00%
2002 1,304,843 0 1,304,843 0.00%
2003 1,395,530 0 1,395,530 0.00%
2004 1,506,963 0 1,506,963 0.00%
2005 1,613,753 0 1,613,753 0.00%
2006 1,690,397 0 1,690,397 0.00%
2007 1,887,236 0 1,887,236 0.00%
2008 2,100,419 0 2,100,419 0.00%
2009 1,936,578 0 1,936,578 0.00%

Note:

(a) California Government Code, Section 43605 sets the debt limit at 15%. The
Code section was enacted prior to the change in basing assessed value to
full market value when it was previously 25% of market value.

Source: City of Concord Finance Department
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Table 12: Sewer Revenue Bonds Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
14.00
12.00 A
10.00 / \
8.00 / \
6.00 /
4.00 / v
2.00 f
0.00 _\ / \1
(2.00)
(4.00)
(6.00)
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2009
@ Coverage
Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Gross Operating Available for
Year Revenue (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2000 $11,557,081 $11,752,828 ($195,747) $385,000 $61,415 $446,415 (0.44)
2001 11,688,270 13,740,937 (2,052,667) 415,000 31,950 446,950 (4.59)
2002 12,559,526 11,470,818 1,088,708 450,000 - 450,000 2.42
2003 14,581,213 11,719,429 2,861,784 - - - -
2004 14,572,312 12,309,611 2,262,701 - 190,709 190,709 11.86
2005 15,270,609 11,448,079 3,822,530 330,000 479,632 809,632 4.72
2006 18,157,899 11,901,646 6,256,253 345,000 472,193 817,193 7.66
2007 17,104,858 12,843,396 4,261,462 355,000 471,126 826,126 5.16
2008 19,392,829 13,384,062 6,008,767 780,000 600,827 1,380,827 4.35
2009 19,103,188 10,684,653 8,418,535 680,000 979,116 1,659,116 5.07
Notes: (1) Includes all Wastewater Operating Revenues, Non-Operating Interest Revenue,

Connection Fees and Other Non-Operating Revenue.
(2) Includes all Wastewater Operating Expenses less Capital Improvement Expense,

Depreciation and Interest.

Source: City of Concord Annual Financial Statements
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Table 13: Bonded Debt Pledged Revenue Coverage,

1988, 1993 & 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
B Tax Increment Revenue @ Debt Service Payment
Tax Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal Increment
Year Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage
2000 $10,044,354 $3,525,000 $4,486,992 $8,011,992 1.25
2001 10,784,826 3,560,000 4,449,066 8,009,066 1.35
2002 11,458,517 3,580,000 4,421,029 8,001,029 1.43
2003 11,545,583 3,620,000 4,396,812 8,016,812 1.44
2004 11,693,425 3,665,000 6,013,235 9,678,235 1.21
2005 11,058,396 2,950,000 1,716,712 4,666,712 2.37
2006 11,428,431 3,220,000 3,155,171 6,375,171 1.79
2007 13,904,384 3,265,000 3,102,146 6,367,146 2.18
2008 14,598,613 3,390,000 2,986,571 6,376,571 2.29
2009 16,086,969 3,530,000 2,899,771 6,429,771 2.50

Source: City of Concord Annual Financial Statements

112



CiTty oF CONCORD

JuNE 30, 2009

Table 14:

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

14.00% $3,800
13.50% $3,700 1
13.00% $3,600 -
£ $3,500 -
12.50% -+ 2
= $3,400 |
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
e=g==City Population as a % of County Population W Total Personal Income
$40 12.50%
$35
o 30 | L PN 10.00% -
5 925 M 7.50%
3 $20
£ $15 5.00% -|
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$5 2.50% -
$0 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 0.00% ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ;
==¢==pPer Capita Personal Income == Jnemployment Rate (%)
Total Per Capita Contra Costa City
Fiscal City Personal Personal Unemployment County Population
Year Population Income Income Rate Population % of County
2000 121,780 $3,325,153,206 $27,305 2.4% 930,025 13.09%
2001 123,272 3,367,555,656 27,318 3.2% 948,816 12.99%
2002 123,935 3,324,533,759 26,825 4.7% 981,600 12.63%
2003 124,655 3,343,847,628 26,825 4.8% 994,900 12.53%
2004 124,856 3,349,239,416 26,825 5.1% 1,003,800 12.44%
2005 124,798 3,484,323,723 27,920 5.2% 1,020,898 12.22%
2006 124,436 3,400,903,754 27,331 4.5% 1,029,377 12.09%
2007 125,203 3,559,134,392 28,427 4.9% 1,034,874 12.10%
2008 123,776 3,699,669,661 29,890 6.7% 1,051,674 11.77%
2009 124,599 3,692,159,331 29,632 11.2% 1,060,435 11.75%

Source: State of California, Department of Finance
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Table 15:

Principal Employers
Calendar Year 2009

Percentage
Number of of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment
Mt. Diablo Unified School District 4,320 1 7.1%
Bank of America (all locations) 3,100 2 5.1%
Wells Fargo Credit Center 1,500 3 2.5%
John Muir Medical Center 1,500 4 2.5%
Chevron Credit Center 1,396 5 2.3%
BEI 666 6 1.1%
Comcast 614 7 1.0%
Conco Cement 549 8 0.9%
Macy's Concord 500 9 0.8%
AT&T 500 10 0.8%
Subtotal 14,645 24.1%
Total City Day Population 60,691

Note: Information about Principal Employers was not available prior to 2005-06.

Source: City of Concord Planning and Economic Development Department

114



CiTty oF CONCORD

JuNE 30, 2009

Table 16: Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) City Government Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

600
== = E B
400
w
,'-'_J 300 -
L
200
100
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
B General Government B Public Safety
OPublic Works OBuilding, Engineering & Neighborhood Services
O Planning & Economic Development OCommunity & Recreation Services
W Sewer O Golf Course
Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Function
General Government 73 69 80 79 80 76 75 76 84 83
Public Safety 221 221 227 227 226 226 224 223 219 220
Public Works 83 83 101 102 110 99 102 103 103 103
Building, Engineering &
Neighborhood Services 55 55 53 53 51 47 47 45 44 43
Planning & Economic Development 18 18 21 25 23 28 27 25 26 21
Community & Recreation Services 29 33 25 25 25 24 21 20 20 20
Sewer 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Golf Course 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 - - -
Total 494 494 521 525 529 514 510 501 505 499

Source: City of Concord Adopted Budget
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Table 17:

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program
Public Safety
Police:
Number of Public Contacts
Police Calls for Service
Law Violations:
Part | Crimes
Physical Arrests (Adult and Juvenile)
Parking Violations

Public Works
Street Resurfacing (millions of square feet)
Potholes Repaired

Culture and Recreation
Community Services:
Recreation Class Participants
Senior Center Activity/Event Participants

Wastewater
Storm Drain Inlets
Sewer Overflows
Average Daily Pumping (millions of gallons)

Note: N/A denotes information not available.

Source: City of Concord

34,452
50,339

N/A
N/A
4,045

1,357

2,315
N/A

N/A
N/A
13.49

34,075
52,415

N/A
N/A
5,033

617

2,437
N/A

N/A
N/A
13.61

31,504
54,490

N/A
N/A
4,919

381

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
12.24

23,638
55,148

641
3,368
5,237

11
231

3,143
N/A

N/A
47
12.26

Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Fiscal Year

2004

21,053
57,341

634
3,803
5,042

30

2,970
4,234

N/A
24
12.24

2005

21,198
59,404

650
3,550
7,745

86

2,977
5,430

N/A
21
11.28

19,522
55,808

772
3,331
11,741

513

4,089
6,699

5,581
26
14.01

18,304
53,793

1,237
4,081
10,042
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5,030
11,935

5,600
16
12.36

17,693
49,309

6,223
3,758
10,400

162

5,299
17,039

5,678
12
13.53

17,845
54,480

5,817
4504
17,132

437

4,826
19,486

5,712
19
10.75
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Table 18: Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006 2007

Function/Program
Public Safety

Police Stations 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Police Patrol Units (black and whites) 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 57
Public Works

Miles of Streets 301 301 301 301 301 305 305 305 305 305

Street Lights 1,279 1,394 1,441 1,493 1,657 7,978 8,124 8,125 8,179 8,216

Traffic Signals 126 130 130 130 141 141 141 142 153 154

Culture and Recreation
Community Services:

City Parks 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
City Parks Acreage 379 379 379 379 379 379 379 379 379 379
Playgrounds 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 15 15 18
City Trails N/A N/A 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 8
Miles of City Trails N/A N/A 18 18 18 18 18 18 19 19
Roadway Landscaping Acreage 41 41 41 41 48 48 48 48 52 52
Regional Park Acreage 92,001 92,718 94,740 95509 96,141 97,134 97,565 97,912 98,880 @ 98,895
Regional Park Facilities:

Golf Courses (18 holes) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Banquet Facility 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Historic House 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Community Gardens 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Community Centers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Senior Centers 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Sports Centers 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Performing Arts Centers 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Swimming Pools 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Tennis Courts 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15
Baseball/Softball Diamonds 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Soccer/Football Fields 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Wastewater

Sewer Lines (miles) 405 405 405 383 405 384 384 384 383 383

Note: N/A denotes information is not available.

Source: City of Concord
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Concor

MUNICIPAL DEBT CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority

Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Pavilion) Series 1995

a.

Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority

Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

—ARTTSQ@Tmeo0T

Balance in the Parking Structure Revenue Fund

Balance in the Other Funds and Accounts Held by the City or the Trustee
Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding

Taxable Sales Transactions

Taxable Sales Transactions by Type of Business

Adopted and Final Budgets for Unrestricted General Fund

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
City's Pooled Investment Portfolio

General Fund - Tax Revenues by Source

Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Largest Local Secured Property Taxpayers

Tax Levies and Collections

City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority

Certificates of Participation (2004 Wastewater System Improvement Project)

Certificates of Participation (2007 Wastewater System Improvement Project)

a.
b.
C.

Ten Largest Users of the Wastewater System
Sewer Rates
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord

(Table 1)

(Table 2)

(Table 3)

(Table 4)

(Table 5)

(Table 6)

(Table 7)

(Table 8)

(Table 9)

(CAFR, page 28)
(CAFR, page 104)
(CAFR, page 106)
(CAFR, page 107)

(Table 10)
(Table 11)
(CAFR, page 109)

(Central Concord Redevelopment Project) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series 2004

Qo ow

Historical Taxable Values and Tax Increment Revenues
Largest Property Taxpayers by Assessed Value and Revenue
Annual Assessed Value Appeals

Tax Revenue Collection

(Table 12)
(Table 13)
(Table 14)
(CAFR, page 112)
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Pavilion) Series 1995

Table 1: Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
Last Five Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
REVENUES:
Debt Contribution $1,758,758 $1,726,559 $1,698,279 $1,382,810 $1,402,201
Operating Revenues
Nonoperating Income 108,364 137,017 149,580 179,478 141,768
Total Revenues 1,867,122 1,863,576 1,847,859 1,562,288 1,543,969
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service 1,777,821 1,781,148 1,786,642 1,784,418 1,782,514
Operating Expenditures
Nonoperating Expenditures 79,052 54,272 104,703 125,008 61,126
Total Expenditures 1,856,873 1,835,420 1,891,345 1,909,426 1,843,640
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 10,249 28,156 (43,486) (347,138) (299,671)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 100,000 100,000 577,067 335,133
Transfers (Out)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 100,000 100,000 0 577,067 335,133
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Uses $110,249 $128,156 ($43,486) $229,929 $35,462

Source: City of Concord Financial Statements
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

Table 2: Balance in the Parking Structure Revenue Fund
Last Nine Fiscal Years

Use of Interest,

Fiscal Money and Principal Fiscal Charges and Proceeds from Transfers, Ending
Year Property Retirement Cost of Issuance Debt Issuance Net Fund Balance
2001 $9,684 $0 ($296,384) $1,116,000 $0 $829,300
2002 14,126 0 (428,808) 0 331,110 745,725
2003 10,035 (290,000) (459,112) 0 734,971 741,622
2004 3,988 (300,000) (447,751) 0 745,337 743,196
2005 14,516 (310,000) (434,325) 0 735,620 749,007
2006 23,822 (325,000) (420,539) 0 721,679 751,969
2007 30,488 (335,000) (405,554) 0 709,568 751,471
2008 15,340 (350,000) (394,341) 0 714,418 736,888
2009 34,883 (365,000) (378,224) 0 723,041 751,588

Source: City of Concord Financial Statements
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

Table 3: Balance in the Other Funds and Accounts Held by the City or the Trustee
Last Nine Fiscal Years

Use of

Fiscal Money and Proceeds from Transfers, Ending

Year Property Debt Issuance Net Capital Outlay  Fund Balance
2001 $74,778 $8,464,000 $0 $2,425,913 $6,112,865
2002 145,118 0 47,120 5,618,783 686,320
2003 11,393 0 31 518,057 179,687
2004 0 0 0 0 179,687
2005 67,646 0 (247,333) 0 0
2006 0 0 0 0 0
2007 0 0 0 0 0
2008 0 0 0 0 0
2009 0 0 0 0 0

Source: City of Concord Financial Statements
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

Table 4: Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding
Last Nine Fiscal Years

Fiscal Principal Principal
Year Retired Outstanding
2001 $9,580,000
2002 9,580,000
2003 $290,000 9,290,000
2004 300,000 8,990,000
2005 310,000 8,680,000
2006 325,000 8,355,000
2007 335,000 8,020,000
2008 350,000 7,670,000
2009 365,000 7,305,000

Source: City of Concord Financial Statements
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

Table 5:

Taxable Sales Transactions
Last Ten Calendar Years

Number Taxable
Calendar of Sales
Year Permits Transactions
1999 3,263 2,032,919,000
2000 3,282 2,316,623,000
2001 3,281 2,230,072,000
2002 3,354 2,426,439,000
2003 3,388 2,575,981,000
2004 3,400 2,566,498,000
2005 3,651 2,641,740,100
2006 3,559 2,566,273,900
2007 3,530 2,516,666,300
2008 3,460 2,356,818,900

Sources: California State Board of Equalization
The HAL Companies
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

Table 6:

Taxable Sales Transactions by Type of Business
Calendar Year 2008 (Dollars in Thousands)

Number
of

Type of Business Permits
Autos and Transportation 368
Building and Construction 212
Business and Industry 852
Food and Drugs 131
Fuel and Service Stations 55
General Consumer Goods 1,502
Restaurants and Hotels 339
Transfers & Unidentified 1
Total Outlets 3,460

Sources: California State Board of Equalization
The HdL Companies

Taxable
Sales
Transactions

$559,602
276,116
317,912
109,770
177,756
749,633
166,026

3

$2,356,818
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

Table 7:
Fiscal Years 2008-09 and 2009-10

REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Current Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Use of Money and Property
Other

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Salaries and Benefits
Operating Expenditures
Fixed Charges
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers (Out)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Uses

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

Adopted and Final Budgets for Unrestricted General Fund

2008-09 2008-09 2009-10

Adopted Final Adopted
General Fund General Fund General Fund

Budget Budget Budget
$63,136,064 $56,372,768 $54,203,800
1,356,086 1,149,754 1,140,487
1,051,839 1,131,839 723,800
10,106,751 10,106,751 7,845,280
909,187 959,187 1,040,223
1,127,894 825,794 773,686
180,995 180,995 2,648,274
77,868,816 70,727,088 68,375,550
56,775,310 55,929,709 55,968,029
9,611,153 8,402,420 6,034,171
12,513,163 12,554,752 12,285,493
78,899,626 76,886,881 74,287,693
(1,030,810) (6,159,793) (5,912,143)
668,960 2,254,515 17,282
(1,776,799) (1,776,799) (602,773)
(1,107,839) 477,716 (585,491)
(2,138,649) (5,682,077) (6,497,634)
27,148,685 27,148,685 21,466,608
$25,010,036 $21,466,608 $14,968,974

Sources: City of Concord Financial Statements and Adopted Budget
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

Table 8: Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Last Eight Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
REVENUES:
Taxes $43,116,810 (1) $45,827,687 $46,721,417 $47,698,542  $56,102,956 $61,059,439  $60,165,471  $55,544,816
Licenses and Permits 1,772,720 1,728,767 1,540,358 1,538,066 1,671,153 1,661,706 1,149,753 1,262,916
Intergovernmental 9,502,433 9,576,061 9,123,025 9,742,965 1,403,045 1,105,917 959,923 808,849
Charges for Current Services 5,495,808 5,396,382 6,057,346 6,112,694 7,016,914 6,989,030 6,312,313 7,271,613
Fines and Forfeitures 514,190 454,200 583,533 671,137 787,598 920,845 993,105 1,044,448
Parks and Recreation 2,079,835 2,143,019 2,117,718 2,420,106 2,585,962 2,678,282 3,006,184 2,869,639
Use of Money and Property 2,446,186 1,228,700 618,363 1,166,428 1,465,897 1,577,463 1,571,499 1,083,367
Other 200,872 156,503 335,466 198,408 332,986 203,118 315,337 540,540
Total Revenues 65,128,854 66,511,319 67,097,226 69,548,346 71,366,511 76,195,800 74,473,585 70,426,188
EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General Government 10,006,177 10,876,499 11,659,213 8,791,670 10,331,725 12,370,595 12,258,475 11,567,366

Public Safety 26,736,545 28,687,140 29,977,656 35,442,623 36,860,686 38,056,048 39,945,559 42,592,777

Public Works 3,170,375 2,678,363 2,744,650 7,889,828 8,315,970 8,228,093 8,798,826 9,050,960

Building, Engineering & Neighborhood 2,092,787 1,665,332 1,307,734 1,303,665 4,691,323 4,649,666 6,255,946 5,591,155

Services

Planning & Economic Development 3,717,847 3,907,888 4,457,583 4,946,941 1,513,787 1,744,610 1,838,002 1,736,656

Community & Recreation Services 9,664,763 11,556,586 12,615,468 5,669,750 5,767,138 6,138,323 7,382,172 7,167,464

Non-Departmental

Capital Outlay 5,743,841 7,973,788 4,403,253 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 61,132,335 67,345,596 67,165,557 64,044,477 67,480,629 71,187,335 76,478,980 77,706,378

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3,996,519 (834,277) (68,331) 5,503,869 3,885,882 5,008,465 (2,005,395)  (7,280,190)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers In 5,713,804 560,018 837,530 694,061 166,562 541,298 2,482,510
Transfers (Out) 1,556,452 (2,097,835) (98,583) (3,272,716)  (12,113,187) (3,682,786) (2,339,427) (1,136,854)
Sale of Fixed Assets (4,108,346) 886,435 0 0 0 0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,551,894) 4,502,404 461,435 (2,435,186)  (11,419,126) (3,516,224) (1,798,129) 1,345,656

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures

and Other Uses 1,444,625 3,668,127 393,104 3,068,683 (7,533,244) 1,492,241 (3,803,524) (5,934,534)
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 31,007,381 (1) 32,452,006 36,120,133 36,513,237 39,581,920 32,048,676 33,540,917 29,737,393
Fund Balance at End of Year $32,452,006 $36,120,133 $36,513,237 $39,581,920  $32,048,676 $33,540,917  $29,737,393  $23,802,859
Notes:

(1) In Fiscal Year 2003, the City restated sales tax revenues in accordance with GASB 33.
The effect of this restatement was not carried back to years prior to Fiscal Year 2001.

(2) The City underwent reorganization in 2005 and 2006.

Source: City of Concord Financial Statements
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds (Concord Avenue Parking Structure) Series 2001

Table 9:

City's Pooled Investment Portfolio
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Carrying Percent of Yield/360-Day

Investment Value Portfolio Year Equivalent

Local Agency Investment Fund $42,213,121 52.19% 1.358%
Money Market Fund

- Checking Account 25,000 0.03% 0.207%

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 29,137,750 36.02% 4.416%

Miscellaneous Securities - Coupon 9,509,480 11.76% 4.156%

Total Investments $80,885,351 100.00% 2.788%

Note: Excludes Redevelopment Agency investments and cash and investment with

fiscal agent.

Source: City of Concord Finance Department
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority
Certificates of Participation (2004 and 2007 Wastewater System Improvement Projects)

Table 10:  Ten Largest Users of the Wastewater System
12 Months through June 30, 2009

Customers Type of Use Percent
1. Mt. Diablo Unified School District 30 School Sites 0.67%
2. John Muir Medical Center Hospital 0.51%
3. Killarney Properties 300 Apartments 0.50%
4. Concord Family Apartments, LP 281 Apartments 0.49%
5. U.S. Coast Guard 287 Dwelling Units 0.48%
6.  Concord Gardens Mobile Home Park 260 Mobile Homes + Rec. Bldg. 0.44%
7. EQR/Legacy Partners, LLC 259 Apartments + Rec. Bldg 0.44%
8. Evilsizor, John L & Mary A 218 Apartments 0.37%
9. Clayton Creek Partnership 208 Apartments 0.35%
10. Chevron USA, Inc. Chevron Office Complex 0.35%

Source: City of Concord Public Works Department
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City of Concord Joint Powers Financing Authority

Certificates of Participation (2004 and 2007 Wastewater System Improvement Projects)

Table 11: Sewer Rates for Fiscal Year 2008-09

RESIDENTIAL OWNERS

1. Minimum rate for any premises $294.00

2. Each single-family dwelling unit 294.00

3. Each dwelling unit in a multiple dwelling structure 294.00 per unit
4. Mobile Home Park 294.00 per space

COMMERCIAL OWNERS - Charge based upon gquantity of water used in cubic feet

1. Minimum rate for any premises $294.00

2 Bowling Alleys 2.59/100 cu. ft.
3 Car Washes 2.59/100 cu. ft.
4 Health Studios and Gymnasiums 2.59/100 cu. ft.
5. Hospitals - Convalescent 2.59/100 cu. ft.
6 Multiple Lodging Structures (hotels, motels and rooming houses) 2.59/100 cu. ft.
7 Laundromats and Laundries 2.59/100 cu. ft.
8 Restaurants 5.17/100 cu. ft.

Restaurants with pretreatment facilities approved annually

2.94/100 cu. ft.

9. Bakeries

Determined Individually

10. All others

2.94/100 cu. ft.

INSTITUTIONAL OWNERS

1. Minimum rate for any premises $294.00

2. As defined in Section 110-31, except for Convalescent Hospitals 2.94/100 cu. ft.
INDUSTRIAL OWNERS - Charge based upon quantity of water used and quality of effluent

1. Minimum rate for any premises $294.00

2. Flow/Million Gallons 2,281.00

3. Biochemical Oxygen Demand (B.O.D.) per thousand pounds 536.00

4, Suspended Solid (S.S.) per thousand pounds 456.00

SPECIAL DISCHARGE PERMITS, AS ISSUED BY THE DISTRICT

1. Charge based upon quantity of water used and quality of effluent

Determined Individually

SPECIAL CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

Determined Individually

Note: The sewer service charges are set by separate City Ordinance under Concord Municipal Code Section 110-32(c).
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Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord
(Central Concord Redevelopment Project) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series 2004

Table 12: Historical Taxable Values and Tax Increment Revenues
Last Five Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Total Assessed Values $1,287,098,989 $1,328,752,444 $1,471,696,910 $1,819,494,204 $1,249,800,149
Base Year Values 106,437,552 106,437,552 106,437,552 339,585,818 339,585,818
Incremental Assessed Values 1,180,661,437 1,222,314,892 1,365,259,358 1,479,908,386 1,589,385,967
Incremental Property Taxes 12,777,047 13,280,957 14,993,137 15,809,457 17,702,810
Less:

Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (1,197,780) (1,125,875)

Tax Increment Pass Through (520,871) (248,711) (254,361) (840,484) (1,238,338)

Tax Increment Rebate (477,940) (834,392) (370,360) (377,503)
Net Tax Revenues $11,058,396 $11,428,431 $13,904,384 $14,598,613 $16,086,969

Source: City of Concord Redevelopment Agency
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Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord
(Central Concord Redevelopment Project) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series 2004

Table 13: Largest Property Taxpayers by Assessed Value and Revenue
Fiscal Year 2008-09
2007-08 2008-09 2008-09
Assessed Assessed Projected
Property Owner Primary Land Use Value Value Revenue (*)

1. Bank of America Office Building $170,371,636 $173,174,390 $1,731,744
2. Chevron USA, Inc. Office Building 118,694,681 128,752,151 1,287,522
3. Sierra Pacific Properties, Inc. Office Building 97,404,346 99,352,432 993,524
4  Rreef America REIT Ill Corporation Office Building 65,869,118 67,186,495 671,865
5  Concord Airport Plaza Associates Office Building 61,847,700 63,084,654 630,847
6. Seecon Financial & Construction Co. Office Building 51,776,397 53,175,420 531,754
7. EQR/Legacy Partners LLC Apartments 50,527,284 51,524,817 515,248
8. Willows Center Concord Shopping Center 43,032,957 43,893,614 438,936
9. 1001 GOPI&IILLC Office Building 30,095,651 31,918,838 319,188
10. Interstate Concord LLC Hotel 28,969,655 29,403,359 294,034
Total $718,589,425 $741,466,170 $7,414,662

Note: * Projected Revenue is calculated using the 1% Basic County Wide Levy Rate.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Redevelopment Agency of the City of Concord
(Central Concord Redevelopment Project) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series 2004

Table 14:  Annual Assessed Value Appeals
Last Three Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09
Appeals Filed 11 35 55
Appeals Resolved to Date 28 29
Appeals Pending 11 7 26
Values of Appeals Pending $50,421,951 $143,462,568 $216,479,922

Note: Information on Annual Assessed Value Appeals was not available prior to
Fiscal Year 2006-07.

Source: Contra Costa County Assessor's Office
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CONCORD, CALIFORNIA

BAY AREA MAP
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